
CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
20025 Mack Plaza 

Regular City Council Meeting Agenda 
Monday, December 18, 2017 

7:30 p.m. 

1. 	CALL TO ORDER 
2. 	ROLL CALL 
3. 	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
4. 	RECOGNITION OF COMMISSION MEMBERS 
5. 	ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 

6. MINUTES A. Council 12/04/17, 11/20/17 w/correction 
1. Community Events Committee 

B. Committee-of-the-Whole 12/04/17, 12/11/17 Excerpt w/ 
recommendation 

1. Camera Systems 
C. Planning Commission 09/26/17 
D. Historical Commission 10/12/17 
E. Community Tree Commission 11/01/17 

7. 	COMMUNICATIONS 	A. Application for Permit/License — Solicitor 
1. Isiah Fulton — IC Systems, Inc. 

B. Budget Amendment: Education & Training 
1. Memo 12/18/17 — Treasurer/Comptroller 

C. Budget Transfer: SAW Grant 
1. Memo 12/18/17 — Treasurer/Comptroller 

D. Michigan Municipal Executives Winter Institute/Budget 
Transfer 

1. Memo 12/06/17 — City Administrator 
2. Registration Brochure 

E. 	2016-17 Fiscal Year Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) 

1. Memo 11/20/17 — Treasurer/Comptroller 
a. Municipal Court Audit 

i. Letter 11/30/17 — Plante Moran 
ii. Municipal Court, Financial Report 

06/30/17 
b. City Audit 

F. 	Monthly Financial Report — November 2017 



8. 	BIDS/PROPOSALS/ 	A. Contract: Cross Connection Control Program 
CONTRACTS 	 1. Memo 12/01/17 — Director of Public Services 

2. Proposal 11/30/17 — HydroCorp 

B. Purchase: Mobile Data Computers — Public Safety 
1. 	Memo 12/12/17 — Director of Public Safety 

C. Purchase: Fire Gear — Public Safety 
1. Memo 12/12/17 — Director of Public Safety 

D. Vehicle Replacement 
1. Memo 12/18/17 — City 

Administrator/Treasurer/Comptroller 
2. Email 12/12/17 — Director of Public Services 

9. RESOLUTION A. Wayne County Annual Peiniits (3) 
1. Memo 11/30/17 — Director of Public Services 
2. Letter 11/29/17 — City Attorney 

a. Permit to Construct, Operate, Use and/or 
maintain — Maintenance 

i. Letter 11/14/17 — Wayne County 
Department of Public Services —
Permit Office 

ii. Permit 
iii. Conditions & Limitations of 

Permits 
iv. Scope of Work and Conditions 
v. Indemnity and Insurance 

vi. Resolution Authorizing Execution 
of Annual Maintenance Permits 

b. Permit to Construct, Operate, Use and/or 
maintain — Pavement Restoration 

i. Letter 11/10/17 — Wayne County 
Department of Public Services —
Permit Office 

ii. Permit 
iii. Conditions & Limitations of 

Permits 
iv. Indemnity and Insurance 
v. Resolution Authorizing Execution 

of Wayne County Permits 
c. Permit to Construct, Operate, Use and/or 

maintain — Special Events 
i. Letter 11/09/17 — Wayne County 

Department of Public Services —
Permit Office 

ii. Permit 
iii. Conditions & Limitations of 

Permits 



iv. Annual Special Events for 
Municipalities Road 
Closure/Detour Guidelines 

v. Banner Attachment for 
Municipalities Guidelines 

vi. Resolution Authorizing Execution 
of Wayne County Permits 

10. NEW BUSINESS/PUBLIC COMMENT 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
Lisa Kay Hathaway, CMMC/MMC 
City Clerk 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH PUBLIC ACT 267 (OPEN MEETINGS ACT) 
POSTED AND COPIES GIVEN TO NEWSPAPERS  

The City of Grosse Pointe Woods will provide necessary, reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as 
signers for the hearing impaired, or audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to 
individuals with disabilities. All such requests must be made at least five days prior to a meeting. 
Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the City of Grosse Pointe 
Woods by writing or call the City Clerk's office, 20025 Mack Plaza, Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 (313) 
343-2440 or Telecommunications Device for the Deaf (TDD) 313 343-9249. 

NOTE TO PETITIONERS: YOU, OR A REPRESENTATIVE, ARE REQUESTED TO BE IN ATTENDANCE AT THE 
MEETING SHOULD COUNCIL HAVE QUESTIONS REGARDING YOUR REQUEST 



COUNCIL 
12-04-17 - 185 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF THE CITY OF GROSSE POINTE 
WOODS HELD ON MONDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2017, IN THE COUNCIL-COURT ROOM OF 
THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 20025 MACK PLAZA, GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MICHIGAN. 

The meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. by Mayor Novitke. 

Roll Call: 	 Mayor Novitke 
Council Members: Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Shetler 
Absent: 	 Bryant 

Also Present: City Administrator Smith 
City Attorney Chip Berschback 
Treasurer/Comptroller Behrens 
City Clerk Hathaway 
Director of Public Services Schulte 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Shetler, to excuse Council Member Bryant from tonight's 
meeting. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Council, Administration, and the audience Pledged Allegiance to the Flag. 

Motion by Granger, seconded by McMullen, that all items on tonight's agenda be 
received, placed on file, and taken in order of appearance. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

The Mayor made the following re-appointments: 
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COUNCIL 
12-04-17 - 186 

Beautification Commission with terms expiring 12/31/21: 
• Linda Stephens 
• Mary Casinelli 
• Kelly Martin-Rahaim 
• Bonnie Medura 
• Tracy Ragland 

Community Tree Commission with terms expiring 12/31/21: 
• Stephen Chan 
• Jeffrey Profeta 
• Robert Greening 

Historical Commission with terms expiring 12/31/21: 
• Sean Murphy 
• Mary Kaye Ferry 
• Frank Romano 

Planning Commission with terms expiring 12/31/21: 
• James Profeta 
• Thomas Vaughn 
• John Vitale 

Senior Citizens Commission: 
• Ronald Wehrmann — term to expire 12/31/20 
• Heidi Uhlig-Johnstone — term to expire 12/31/18 
• Sharon Beeby — term to expire 12/31/18 

Construction Board of Appeals with a term to expire 12/31/19: 
• Walter Kiehler 

Mayor's Mack Avenue Business Study Committee: 
• Peter Ahee 
• Jennifer Boettcher 
• Dan Curis 
• John Vitale 

Motion by McConaghy, seconded by Koester, that the City Council concur with the 
above Mayoral appointments. 
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COUNCIL 
12-04-17 — 187 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Shetler, seconded by Koester, regarding appointments — Citizens 
Recreation Commission, that the City Council make the following re-appointments 
with terms expiring 12/31/20: 

• Barbara Janutol 
• Gib Heim 
• Michael Soviak 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Shetler, regarding appointments — Building 
Authority Committee, that the City Council make the following reappointment with a 
term to expire 12/31/20: 

• Allen Dickinson 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Shetler, that the following minutes be approved as 
submitted: 

1. City Council Minutes dated October 16, 2017; 
2. City Council Minutes dated November 20, 2017. 
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COUNCIL 
12-04-17 — 188 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Shetler, that the following minutes be approved as 
submitted: 

1. Committee-of-the-Whole minutes dated October 23, 2017; 
2. Committee-of-the-Whole minutes dated November 20, 2017. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Koester, seconded by McConaghy, regarding 2018 Perch Derby, that the 
City Council concur with the Citizen's Recreation Commission at their meeting on 
October 10, 2017, and change the date of the Perch Derby to the morning of the City 
Picnic in August of 2018. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

No action taken on Generator Variance: Gary Marowske, 206512 Montague 
Lane. 

Motion by Koester, seconded by McConaghy, regarding Funds Transfer: Retiree 
Health Care Trust Fund, that the City Council approve a transfer in the amount of 
$50,000.00 from Account No. 101-299-999.736 into the Retiree Health Care Trust Fund 
to pay towards Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB). 
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COUNCIL 
12-04-17 — 189 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Shetler, regarding Budget Amendment: Election 
Equipment, that the City Council approve a budget transfer from the General Fund 
prior year fund balance Account No. 101-000-697.00 into Minor Equipment general fund 
Account No. 101-215-970.000 in the amount of $21,625.00 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Shetler, seconded by Granger, regarding Applications for Permit/ 
License — 2018 Refuse Vendors, that the City Council approve the following 
applicants: 

Maher, Patrick 
1576 Brys, GPW, MI 
Tibaudo, Mark 
1110 S. Renaud, GPW, MI 
Provenzano, Joseph 
761 Lincoln, GPointe, MI 
Hirth, Ronald 
19380 Elkhart, HWoods, MI 
Agosta, Vincent 
19389 Elkhart, HWoods, MI 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 
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COUNCIL 
12-04-17 — 190 

Motion by McMullen , seconded by Shetler, regarding Agreement: Munetrix, that the 
City Council authorize the City Administrator to execute the Subscription Agreement 
with Munetrix LLC. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by McConaghy, seconded by Shetler, regarding Purchase: Floating Docks —
Lake Front Park, that the City Council approve the purchase of all the parts necessary 
for assembling six EZ Port floating docks and a boat launch floating dock from Blue 
Water Docks in a total amount not to exceed $22,944.00, funds to be taken from 
Account No. 594-785-818.000. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Shetler, seconded by McConaghy, regarding Contract: Annual Fuel 
Purchase, that the City Council approve the purchase of fuel from RKA Petroleum 
Companies based upon the MITN cooperative fuel bid for tank wagon deliveries of 
gasoline and diesel fuel from February 1, 2018, through January 31, 2020, in a total 
amount no to exceed $115,000.00 annually, funds to be taken from the Vehicle 
Maintenance Account No. 640-851-939.500. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by McConaghy, seconded by Granger, regarding Deficit Elimination Plan, that 
the City Council authorize the budget amendments, adopt the proposed resolution, and 
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COUNCIL 
12-04-17 — 191 

authorize the City Administrator to forward the certified resolution and proof of the 
revised budget to the State of Michigan — Department of Treasury. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Shetler, regarding Second Reading: An Ordinance 
to Amend Chapter 34 Solid Waste Article II Collection and Disposal to Adopt 
New Standards for Collection and Cart Use and to Amend Certain Sections to 
Coincide with Refuse Collection Contracts, that the City Council adopt this 
proposed ordinance as presented making it effective 20 days after its enactment. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Shetler, seconded by Granger, regarding Second Reading: An Ordinance 
to Amend Chapter 10 Businesses, Article VII Street Sales and Solicitation to 
Add Certain Definitions and to Amend Sec. 10-264 Requirements for Permit, 
to Allow Street Sales or Solicitation by Charitable or Civic Organizations 
Under Certain Conditions, and to Provide for Civil Infraction Violations, that 
the City Council adopt this proposed ordinance as presented making it effective 20 days 
after enactment. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by McConaghy, seconded by Koester, regarding City Attorneys, that the City 
Council approve the following statements: 
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1. City Attorney Don R. Berschback 11/30/17 - $3,272.50; 
2. City Attorney Charles T. Berschback 11/30/17 - $5,752.50. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Hearing no objections, the following item was heard under New Business: 

• The Treasurer/Comptroller provided an update and discussed the success of 
opening the 3-Fund Account resulting in interest earnings from that account 
exceeding Comerica's monthly service charges; service charges for twelve 
months totaled $33,579.00 and interest earnings from 3-Fund earned 
$31,631.00 in three months. 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Koester, to adjourn tonight's meeting at 8:01 
p.m. PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lisa Kay Hathaway 	 Robert E. Novitke 
City Clerk 	 Mayor 
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COUNCIL 
11-20-17 - 174 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	None 

The Mayor appointed the following Council Members to Commissions, Committees, 
Boards, and Organizations: 

Beautification Commission Rep. McConaghy 
Community Tree Commission Rep. Shetler 
Historical Commission Rep. McMullen 
Local Officers Compensation Commission Rep. McMullen 
Planning Commission Rep. Granger 
Senior Citizens Commission Rep. Bryant 
Citizens Recreation Commission Rep. Koester 
Grosse Pointe Woods Foundation Liaison Shetler 
Compensation & Evaluation Committee Chair Bryant/McConaghy/Novitke 
Construction Committee Chair Granger/Koester/Novitke 
Finance Committee Chair McConaghy/Koester/Novitke 
Community Events Committee Chair Novitke/Granger/Shcticr McConaghy 

(Also, Jennifer Boettcher, Chris Fenton, 
Bruce Smith, Al Fincham) 

Mack Avenue Business Study Committee Chair Shetler/Novitke/McMullen 
Public Relations Committee Chair Granger/Koester/Novitke 
Ad Hoc Public Safety Committee Chair Novitke/Shetler 
Grosse Pointe Chamber of Commerce Rep. Novitke/Bryant 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Bryant, that the City Council concur with the above 
Mayoral appointments. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 
No: 

Bryant, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, 
None 

McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 

Proposed Community Events Absent: None 
Committee Member Correction 
12/14/17 LKH 
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COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE 
12-04-17 - 87 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE OF THE CITY OF 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS HELD ON MONDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2017, IN THE CONFERENCE 
ROOM OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 20025 MACK AVENUE, GROSSE POINTE WOODS, 
MICHIGAN. 

PRESENT: 	 Mayor Novitke 
Council Members, Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Shetler 

ABSENT: 	 Bryant (arrived at 8:28 p.m.) 

ALSO PRESENT: 	City Administrator Smith 
City Clerk Hathaway 
Treasurer/Comptroller Behrens 
Deputy/Treasurer Comptroller Murphy 

Also in attendance Bill Brickey and Kari Shea, Plante Moran. 

Mayor Novitke called the meeting to order at 8:08 p.m. 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Shetler, to excuse Council Member Bryant from tonight's 
meeting. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Koester, that all items on tonight's agenda be received, 
placed on file, taken in order of appearance. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Granger, Koester, McConaghy, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	Bryant 

Discussion ensued regarding Plante Moran — Audit Report. The draft Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017, was reviewed along with 
the auditor's letter to the City Council and Management as well as the letter to Judge 
Theodore A. Metry and the Municipal Court Financial Report June 30, 2017. 

The Treasurer/Comptroller was asked to verify "Inflation" on Page 48. Mr. Brickey stated 
that $53 million will be recorded on the OPEB liability next year. 

Ms. Shea provided an overview of the audit and Mr. Brickey provided an overview of the 
opinion letter to City Council and Management on the City and to the Judge regarding 
Municipal Court. He stated this will be the 48th year receiving the Excellence in Financial 
Reporting Award from the Government Finance Officers 
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COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE 
12-04-17 - 87 

Association. The Treasurer/Comptroller was asked to check on charging a portion of the 
audit to the Pension Fund. 

Mr. Brickey recommended creating a fund balance policy to say this is why we have it and 
maybe include some commitments. He also encouraged a 5-10 year detailed capital plan 
for the water/sewer fund, and the Treasurer/Comptroller was asked to consider a possible 
decrease. 

New Business: 
• The Mayor asked for Council appointment recommendations to Commissions; 
• When asked about timing on bids being received for Capital Improvements, the 

City Administrator stated the roof's mechanical was just received and sent back. 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Shetler, that the meeting of the Committee-of-the-Whole 
be adjourned at 9:54 p.m. PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Lisa Kay Hathaway 	 Robert E. Novitke 
City Clerk 	 Mayor 
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COMM111EE-OF-THE-WHOLE EXCERPT 
12-11-17 

The next item discussed was regarding Camera Systems. The Director of Public Services 
provided an overview of the current system and its limitations. The Director of Public Services 
recommended the City replace the existing 8 channel DVR with a 16 channel DVR, add one camera 
in each of the two activity center recreation rooms, and add a total of 4 microphones in the gym, 
main lobby, and both recreation rooms. He believes that the addition of the extra cameras will 
help to prevent problems at Lake Front Park and assist in the resolution of any problems by 
providing video evidence. Discussion was held regarding the need to post notices that the areas 
are under surveillance, including in the City Hall lobby. Administration was directed to asses if 
there was a need to install additional surveillance around City Hall. Discussion was held regarding 
the need to create a written policy regarding the retention of the videos, to be consistent with 
the Public Safety dashcam retention schedule. 

Motion by Granger, seconded by Shetler, regarding camera systems, that the Committee-of-the-
Whole recommend that City Council approve an amount not to exceed $7,285.92 to purchase a 
new camera system for Lake Front Park from Abel Electronics, and authorize a budget transfer 
from the General Fund Fund Balance Account No. 101-000-699.000 into Account No. 101-774-
977.00 in the amount of $7,285.92. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Granger, Koester, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	McConaghy 

Motion by Bryant, seconded by Shetler, to remove the item regarding Camera Systems from the 
Committee-of-the-Whole agenda. 

Motion carried by the following vote: 
Yes: 	Bryant, Granger, Koester, McMullen, Novitke, Shetler 
No: 	None 
Absent: 	McConaghy 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
09-26-17 - 19 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION OF THE CITY 
OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS HELD ON TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2017, IN THE 
COUNCIL-COURT ROOM OF THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 20025 MACK AVENUE, GROSSE 
POINTE WOODS, MICHIGAN. 

The meeting was called to order at 7:32 p.m. by Chair Fuller. 

Roll Call: 
	

Chair Fuller 
Planning Commissioners: Hamborsky, Profeta, Stapleton, Vaughn, 
Vitale 

Absent: 	 Gilezan, Reiter, Rozycki, 

Also Present: 
	

Building Official Tutag 
City Attorney Chip Berschback 
Director of Public Safety Kosanke 
Deputy City Clerk Gerhart 

The Planning Commission, Administration and the audience Pledged Allegiance to the 
Flag. 

Motion by Vaughn, seconded by Stapleton, that Commission Members Gilezan, Reiter, 
and Rozycki be excused from tonight's meeting. 

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 
YES: 	Fuller, Hamborsky, Profeta, Stapleton, Vaughn, Vitale 
NO: 	None 
ABSENT: 	Gilezan, Reiter, Rozycki 

Motion by Vitale, seconded by Vaughn, that all items on tonight's agenda be received, 
placed on file, taken in order of appearance. 

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 
YES: 	Fuller, Hamborsky, Profeta, Stapleton, Vaughn, Vitale 
NO: 	None 
ABSENT: 	Gilezan, Reiter, Rozycki 

The Chair recognized Council Member Bryant who was in attendance at tonight's meeting. 

Motion by Profeta, seconded by Vitale, regarding Approval of Minutes, that the Planning 
Commission minutes dated July 25, 2017 and August 22, 2017, be approved as submitted. 
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PLANNING COMMISSION 
09-26-17 - 20 

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 
YES: 	Fuller, Hamborsky, Profeta, Stapleton, Vaughn, Vitale 
NO: 	None 
ABSENT: 	Gilezan, Reiter, Rozycki 

The next item on the agenda was regarding the Public Hearing in accordance with 
Public Act 110 of 2006, MCL 125.3101 as amended, and Grosse Pointe Woods 
City Code, Section 50-88, regarding site plan approval for special land use in a 
Community Facilities zoning district for University Liggett School, to build a 
campus center (field house), 1045 Cook Road. 

THE MEETING WAS THEREUPON OPENED AT 7:35 P.M. FOR A PUBLIC HEARING 
UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF MICHIGAN COMPILED LAWS, SECTION 
1253101 AS AMENDED, AND IN ACCORDANCE THE 2007 GROSSE POINTE 
WOODS CITY ORDINANCE SECTION 50-88, TO CONSIDER THE APPLICATION 
OF UNIVERSITY LIGGETT SCHOOL REQUESTING SPECIAL LAND USE AND 
SITE PLAN REVIEW TO CONSTRUCT A CAMPUS CENTER BUILDING AT 
GROSSE POINTE UNIVERSITY LIGGETT SCHOOL LOCATED AT 1045 COOK 
ROAD, GROSSE POINTE WOODS. 

Motion by Vaughn, seconded by Stapleton, that for purposes of the public hearing the 
following items be received and placed on file: 

A. PC Excerpt - 07/25/17 
B. PC Excerpt - 08/22/17 
C. Aerial view - 300' radius - 08/22/17 
D. Affidavit of Property Owners Notified (5 pgs) - 09/06/17 
E. Notice of Public Hearing - GP News - 09/07/17 
F. Memo - Director of Public Safety - 08/07/17 (J. Kosanke) 
G. Memo - Director of Public Works - 08/08/17 (F. Schulte) 
H. Memo - Building Official - 09/14/17 (G. Tutag) 
I. Letter of Request - 07/20/17 - CBRE, Scott D. Cave 
J. Letter w/Resolutions (2) - 09/21/17 (C. Berschback) 
K. Site Plan Review Checklist - ULS Fieldhouse 

(1) Cover Page - John A. & Marlene L. Boll Campus Center -
08/04/17 
(2) Site and Context Sheet - 08/04/17 
(3) Partial Campus Plan - 08/04/17 
(4) Architectural Site Plan - 08/04/17 
(5) Civil Engineering Site Plan - 08/04/17 
(6) Landscape Plan - 08/04/17 
(7) Plan of Crosswalk - 08/04/17 
(8) Ground Floor Plan - 08/04/17 
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PLANNING COMMISSION 
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(9) View from Cook Road — 08/04/17 
(10) Building Elevations and Exterior Views — North Elevation —
08/04/17 
(11) Building Elevations and Exterior Views — South Elevation —
08/04/17 
(12) View of Lobby — 08/04/17 
(13) View of Gymnasium — 08/04/17 
(14) Photometric Site Plan — Sheet #E0-01P — 06/22/17 
(15) Photometric Site Plan Details — Sheet #E0.02P — 06/22/17 

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 
YES: 	Fuller, Hamborsky, Profeta, Stapleton, Vaughn, Vitale 
NO: 	None 
ABSENT: 	Gilezan, Reiter, Rozycki 

Scott Cave, of CBRE and Raymond Cekauskas, of Landry/Cekauskas Architecture, on 
behalf of University Liggett Schools, were present for questions and discussion. 

The Chair stated for the record that no one in the audience wished to speak either in 
favor of, nor in opposition to, the proposed special land use and site plan. 

The following individual was heard regarding general comments: 
• Joseph Mathews, 919 Cook Road 

Motion by Vaughn, seconded by Vitale, that the public hearing be closed at 8:33 p.m. 
Passed unanimously. 

Motion by Stapleton, seconded by Vitale, regarding the Public Hearing in accordance 
with Public Act 110 of 2006, MCL 1253101 as amended, and Grosse Pointe 
Woods City Code, Section 50-88, regarding site plan approval for special land 
use in a Community Facilities zoning district for University Liggett School, to 
build a campus center (field house), 1045 Cook Road, that the Planning 
Commission adopt the following resolution recommending that City Council approve the 
special land use request from University Liggett School: 
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THE CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
PLANNING COMMISSION RESOLUTION 

RECOMMENDING APPROVAL OF 
THE SPECIAL LAND USE AND SITE PLAN REQUEST FROM 

UNIVERSITY LIGGE'TT SCHOOL 

WHEREAS, Petitioner has submitted a Special Land Use and Site Plan 
request for property located at 1045 Cook Road for an athletic field known as The 
John A. and Marlene L. Boll Campus Center; and, 

WHEREAS, the Grosse Pointe Woods Planning Commission conducted a 
public hearing, 

NOW THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

The factual findings and reasons for these recommendations are based on the 
record and supporting documentation submitted as of this date including the 
agenda items received and placed on file, as well as the comments and 
representations made at the public hearing before this body on September 26, 
2017. 

Therefore the Planning Commission recommends that the City Council 
APPROVE the Special Land and Site Plan use based on the following conditions: 

1. Prior to submitting a building permit application, the applicant shall schedule a 
pre-construction meeting with the City; 

2. Prior to submitting a building a building permit application, the applicant shall 
submit a storm water drainage plan that complies with Chapter #26 of the 
City Code; 

3. An easement agreement shall be prepared by the applicant, acceptable to the 
City Attorney, and approval of the City Council for construction between the 
Campus Center building and McCann Ice Arena over the City's easement and 
sewer; 

4. The City to require hardscape alternative to the proposed landscaping in the 
area between the sidewalk and curb in the event the proposed landscape 
plantings fail to develop; 

5. Construction to commence within 60 days of City Council approval and be 
completed within 2 years; and 

6. Submit a corrected Sheet C1 showing proper parking counts in the new lot 
and building height; and 

7. Appropriate bond be filed for construction 
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PLANNING COMMISSION 
09-26-17 — 23 

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 
YES: 	Fuller, Hamborsky, Profeta, Stapleton, Vaughn, Vitale 
NO: 	None 
ABSENT: 	Gilezan, Reiter, Rozycki 

Motion by Vaughn, seconded by Vitale, that the Planning Commission immediately 
certify the previous motion. 

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 
YES: 	Fuller, Hamborsky, Profeta, Stapleton, Vaughn, Vitale 
NO: 	None 
ABSENT: 	Gilezan, Reiter, Rozycki 

The next item on the agenda was Review of Three New Sign Applications: Med 
Post Urgent Care, 20599 Mack Ave. Building Official Tutag provided an overview of 
the application, noting that the ordinance limits the message units on a property to 10 
units, only allows two signs per building, and also limits the size to 12 square feet; 
therefore, the request was denied. Mary Ellen Madary from Northern Sign Company, on 
behalf of Med Post Urgent Care, was present to answer questions. 

Motion by Hamborsky, seconded by Profeta, regarding Sign Applications: Med Post 
Urgent Care, 20599 Mack Avenue, that the Planning Commission recommend to the City 
Council that the requested sign variance be approved with the following conditions: 

1. Any holes or shadows from removal of the existing sign should be repaired; 
2. The signs are completed within 6 months of City Council approval. 

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 
YES: 	Fuller, Hamborsky, Profeta, Stapleton, Vaughn, Vitale 
NO: 	None 
ABSENT: 	Gilezan, Reiter, Rozycki 

Motion by Hamborsky, seconded by Stapleton, that the Planning Commission immediately 
certify the previous motion. 

MOTION CARRIED by the following vote: 
YES: 	Fuller, Hamborsky, Profeta, Stapleton, Vaughn, Vitale 
NO: 	None 
ABSENT: 	Gilezan, Reiter, Rozycki 

5 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
09-26-17 — 24 

The next item on the agenda was the Building Official's Monthly Report — July & 
August 2017. Mr. Tutag reported the following: 

• The Building Department has been extremely busy over the past couple months; 
• The Building Department has begun to use the Wayne County Circuit Court for 

homes that progress has not been made on through tickets issued at the 
Municipal Court level; 

• The Hunt Club has been sold and he has had a meeting with the owners 
regarding cleaning up the property. The new owners plan to remove the tennis 
courts and swimming pool; 

• Legacy Oaks is making quick progress. 

Regarding the Council Reports: 
• City Attorney Berschback reported that the easement for Lake Front Park was 

granted in August. 

Commission Member Stapleton will attend the Council Meetings in October. 

Under New Business, the following Subcommittee Report was provided: 

2020 Plan — Chair Fuller and members Hamborsky and Vitale asked Council Member 
Bryant when the Council would provide feedback to the Commission. 

Branding — Commission Members Hamborsky, Profeta, and Stapleton had nothing to 
report. 

Crosswalk/Pocket Park — Chair Fuller and Members Vaughn and Vitale had nothing 
to report. 

Streetscape — Commission Member Hamborsky had nothing to report. 

Motion by Vaughn, seconded by Vitale, that the Planning Commission Meeting adjourn 
at 9:14 p.m. PASSED UNANIMOUSLY. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Steve Gerhart 
Deputy City Clerk 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods Historical Commission Minutes 

20025 Mack Plaza Drive, Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

Conference Room at City Hall 

October 12, 2017 

RECF 
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1. Call to Order  

The regular meeting of the Grosse Pointe Woods Historical Commission was called to order at 7:41 

p.m. by Chairperson Lynne Millies. 

2. Roll Call  

Present: Mary Kaye Ferry, Shirley Hartert, Suzanne Kent, Lynne Millies, John Parthum, Becky 

Veitengruber, Giles Wilborn 

Excused: Del Harkenrider, Sean Murphy, Frank Romano 

Unexcused: Phil Whitman 

Also Present: Council Representative Mike Koester 

3. Approval of Agenda  

Motion by Ferry, seconded by Kent, to amend the agenda to add Item 5. B. 3. Repairs. Ayes: 

all. Motion carried. 

Motion by Wilborn, seconded by Kent, to approve the agenda for October 12, 2017. Ayes: all. 

Motion carried. 

4. Approval of Minutes  

Motion by Wilborn, seconded by Kent, to approve the September 14th, 2017 minutes as presented. 

Ayes: all. Motion carried. 

5. Items 

A. Report of Treasurer: 

1. Parthum reported that the current commission balance is $2,362.00. The Cook Schoolhouse 

balance is $5,300.11. 

2. City Council approved recommendation to purchase a file cabinet, at their October 	2nd  

meeting. 

B. Cook Schoolhouse Project: 

1. Open Houses: 

a. Hartert, Kent, and Millies will work October 14th  open house, from 12:00p.m.2:00p.m. 

b. September's Open House: over 74 visitors went through and $36.00 in donations 

were received. 



2. Policies: Tabled until November meeting. 

3. Repairs: Motion by Ferry, seconded by Veitengruber, to recommend to City Council, the 

approval of repairs to the Cook Schoolhouse by Rely-On Construction, not to exceed $550.00. 

This is a non-budgeted item in the FY 2017-2018 Cook Schoolhouse Balance Sheet. Account # 

205-870-820-210. Ayes: 6, abstain: 1, absent: 1. Motion carried. Motion by Kent, seconded 

by Ferry, to do an immediate certification of the above motion. Ayes: all. Motion carried. 

6. Old Business:  

A. Calendar for 2018: 

• Memorial Day Observance will be Monday, May 28th  from 10:00 a.m.-11:30 a.m. Cook 

Schoolhouse Open House: 

• Saturday June 9th from 12:00 p.m.-2:00 p.m. 

• Saturday July 21st  from 12:00 p.m.-2:00 p.m. 

• Sunday September 15' from 5:00 p.m.-7:00 p.m. 

• Saturday October 13th  from 12:00 p.m.-2:00 p.m. B. Membership: Discussion of possible new 

member. 

7. New Business  

Chronology Update: Kent and Millies discussed the idea of creating a digital chronology. 

8. Public and Commissioner Comments  

Parthum reported about a request for research and photos. He will update the commission once he 

receives more information. 

9. Adjournment  

The meeting adjourned at 8:20 p.m. by chairperson Millies. 

Respectfully submitted: 

Becky Veitengruber, Secretary 

The next meeting of the Grosse Pointe Woods Historical Commission will take place on 
November 9th, 2017 at 7:30 p.m. in the Conference Room at City Hall, 20025 Mack Plaza 

Drive, Grosse Pointe Woods, Ml 48236 
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MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY TREE COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS HELD ON I ()-0  
WEDNESDAY, 01 NOVEMBER 2017, AT THE GROSSE POINTE WOODS CONFERENCE, 20025 MACK 

PLAZA,GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MICHIGAN. 

MEMBERS PRESENT: CHAIR STEVE CHAN, JOE BACKER, TIM BUTLER, ED GAFFNEY, LAURA GASKIN, 

ROBERT GREENING, PETER GROSCHNER, MARY ELLEN MEYERING, JEFFREY PROFETA, RANDY RENNPAGE. 

MEMBERS ABSENT: CHRIS DICICCO 

ALSO PRESENT: VICKI GRANGER COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE, GEORGE MCMULLEN (GUEST) 

THE CHAIR CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 7:30 PM. 

MOTION BY MEYERING, SECONDED BY BUTLER, THAT ALL ITEMS ON TONIGHT'S AGENDA BE RECEIVED, 

PLACED ON FILE, AND TAKEN IN ORDER OF APPEARANCE. MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

YES: BACKER, CHAN, GAFFNEY, GASKIN, GREENING,GROSCHNER ,PROFETA, RENNPAGE. 

NO: NONE 

ABSENT: ONE 

MOTION BY BACKER, SECONDED BY GROSCHNER, TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE 4 OCTOBER 2017 

MINUTES AS SUBMITTED. MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

YES: CHAN, GAFFNEY, GASKIN, GREENING, MEYERING, PROFETA, RENNPAGE. 

NO: NONE 

ABSENT: ONE 

MOTION BY GAFFNEY, SECONDED BY GROSCHNER, THAT THE TREE COMMISSION APPROVE THE BOARD 

OFFICERS FOR THE UPCOMING 2018 YEAR. CHAIRMAN STEVE CHAN, VICE CHAIR JEFFREY PROFETA, 

SECRETARY LAURA GASKIN, TREASURER TIM BUTLER. MOTION CARRIED BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE: 

YES: BACKER, BUTLER, CHAN, GASKIN, GREENING, MEYERING, PROFETA, RENNPAGE. 

NO: NONE 

ABSENT: ONE 

TREASURES'S REPORT: REPORT BY TIM BUTLER, NO ACTIVITY FOR THE MONTH OF OCT 2017. BUDGET 

BALANCE IS 1,835.00 DOLLARS UNTIL 30 JUNE 2018. 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS TREE COMMISSION MEETING 1 NOVEMBER, 2017 



OLD BUSINESS: DISCUSSION WAS MADE IN REGARDS TO THE APPLICATION OF A NEW CANDIDATE FOR 

THE TREE COMMISSION. THE CANDIDATE WILL BE INVITED TO THE NEXT MEETING WHICH WILL BE 6 

DECEMBER 2017. BOB GREENING WILL FACILITATE THIS. 

NEW BUSINESS: EVERYONE WHO HAS A TERM ON THE TREE COMMISSION HAS AGREED TO CONTINUE 

WITH THE COMISSION AFTER THEIR TERM EXPIRES. EACH MEMBER WILL ENSURE THEIR OWN 

PAPERWORK, IS SUBMITTED, AND APPROVED BY MAYOR AND COUNCIL. 

COUNCIL REP VICKI GRANGER GAVE AN UPDATE TO THE COMMISSION ON THE ONGOING WORK AT 

CITY COUNCIL. 

MOTION BY GASKIN, SECONDED BY PROFETA, TO ADJOURN MEETING AT 8:42 PM PASSED 

UNANUMOUSLY. 

RESPECTFULY SUBMITTED BY: LAURA GASKIN SECRETARY 313 808 0948 



APE/rove  
Public Safety: 	

„ 
 

City Clerk: 
Council Action: 

Plate No.: 	  
Date Issued: 	 
By: 	  

RECEIVED 
CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

20025 MACK AVENUE 	 DEC 0 4 2017 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236 

, 	(313) 343-2440 	 'crry OF GROSSE PTE. WOODS 
/ 

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT'/LICENSE — VENDOR/SOLICITOR/PEDDLER, ET AL 
Chapter 10 Businesses. Section 10-220 

Permit Fees: Annual $75; Month $20; Day $10  

Applicant: .__.5)0 k  k I 
_,....„ 

Home address: _1,6C/q 	/1()() i°  PI 	)  

Telephone -3 L'r .0 q qe, 
Business Name:  (  ° 	Sk•   5) -..    Tel hog: _ 1 	7 7 / -70) 
Business Address:  1.'.97)3Dli 	I, 	7— 	 li 	4r Z  

Description of B siness: 	 -t 	,17.1-6 
i.

/" ter  

Assistants: 	//OS  

Name 
	

Address 
	

Date of Birth 

Other cities served: 	

DB 32)51)  If vehicle used, describe: 3---°°0 	 Takee  
Year 	 ake ozfox  M 

Years previously licensed in Grosse Pointe Woods: 

VENDOR: Valid for use from 9 a.m. to dusk or 7 p.m., local time, whichever occurs first, Sec. 10.224(e). 
REFUSE VENDOR: Shall not collect, remove or cart away any materials between the hours of 10 p.m. and 6 a.m. the following 
morning, Sec. 10.221(a). 
SOLICITOR: Shall not walk on residential or commercial lawns; must use sidewalk. 
NO PERSON: Shall deliver or deposit residential handbills at any residential home or apartment where a sign or notice has 
been posted in a conspicuous location, which sign or notice states "no handbills" or "no vendors or solicitors." Sec. 10.295 
LICENSE: The lic se ism shall expire on December 31 of the year issued. The license fee is to be paid at the time of 
issuance. 

Signed:  	Date:/ 

1 Pc 

Birth Date: 2'00)83  

Driver's License No. _ 

/ !VP 	 1_39116 Lyon, 1;vom'c 	 VY' 

	

7,4  Name 	 Address 	 Date of Birth 
CaN214671/1- 	2_ 1 7 3  c) C t=gre.,12)1.0,-7, 04•1 Ci Li FOLILI 	i 0 /Z 5 / 2 3 

	

Name 	 Address 	 Date of Birth 

State of Michigan ) 
County of Wayne ) ss. 

Subscribed and sworn to by 	  
before me on the 	day of 	, 20 

Signature of Notary Public 
My Commission expires: 	  

eLnisreP413111070:4/AL  

H:\LICENSES  - PERMITS\VENDOR\Applications\VENDOR LICENSE-revised 2015.doc 



CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: 	December 18, 2017 
	

DEC -• j 2017  

From: 	Cathrene Behrens, Treasurer/Comptroller 
	 RE wars  

To: 	Mayor and City Council 

Re: 	Education & Training Budget Amendment 

Pursuant to action taken at the Council meeting held on October 16, 2017 regarding 
non-union tuition reimbursement for full-time and part-time employees, I am requesting 
a budget amendment in the amount of $1,500 to budget line a budget line 101-172-
960.000, Education & Training. The finance department has received a request for 
reimbursement from a non-union full-time employee in the City Administrator's office 
and they anticipate utilizing the full allotment of $1,500 in the current fiscal year 2017-
2018. 

Thank you. 

Fund Certification: 

A budget transfer is required from Account No. 101-000-699.000, Trf F/Prior Yr Res into 
Account No. 101-172-960.000, Education & Training, in the amount of $1,500 and that 
the account number has been verified. 

Treasurer/Comptroller Signature 

20025 Mack Plaza Drive, Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 48236-2397 
Phone: (313) 343-2604 • Fax: (313) 343-2785 • Email: cbehrens@gpwmi.us  
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CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

Office of the Treasurer/Comptroller 

Memorandum 

-7C 

RECENE 

DEC m 
7 201? 

DATE: 
	

December 18, 2017 
	 1(VP 

WOODS 

TO: 
	

Mayor Novitke and City Council 

FROM: 
	

Cathrene Behrens, Treasurer/Comptrollerl ( 

SUBJECT: 
	

SAW Grant Budget Transfer 

On November 30, 2016, the City Council authorized expenditures in the amount of $483,000 to 
be paid to Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. for engineering services as they related to the 
SAW grant. We have incorporated a budget line specifically for SAW Grant engineering fees of 
592-537-975.004, Saw Grant Engineering in order to keep a better record of expenditures and how 
they are allocated for the grant. 

On November 21, 2017 the City Council authorized a budget amendment in the amount of $48,999 
for engineering related to the contract the City entered into with Doetsch Environmental Services 
for sewer cleaning and CCTV Investigation of sewer lines. This $48,999 is included in the original 
allocation of $483,000. 

During the FY 2017-18 budget process $1,103,400 was allocated to budget line 592-537-975.005, 
Saw Grant Construction whereas the remaining balance of the original allocation of $483,000 
should have budget to expense line Saw Grant Engineering. 

I am requesting approval to make a budget transfer of $434,001 from account #592-537-975.005, 
Saw Grant Construction into account #592-537-975.004, Saw Grant Engineering. The remaining 
balance in the construction account will be $669,399 which will cover continued SAW Grant 
construction costs. 

Thank you. 

Fund Certification: 

A budget transfer is required from Account No. 592-537-975.005, Saw Grant Construction, into Account 
No. 592-537-975.004, Saw Grant Engineering Events, in the amount of $434,101, and that the account 
number has been verified. 

/, 
rr 

 

Treasurer/Comptroller Signature 



CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 6, 2017 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

FROM: Bruce J. Smith, City Administrato 	 

SUBJECT: Michigan Municipal Executives Winter Institute 

DEC 	
7 2017 

CiTY 
OFGROSSEPY WOODS 

I'm requesting to attend Michigan Municipal Executives Winter Institute, which is being 
held January 30 through February 2, 2018 in Ann Arbor, Michigan. The registration 
forms are attached for your review. 

This is not a budgeted item and a budget transfer is required from Account #101-000-
699.000 Trf F/Prior Yr Res into Account #101-172-958.001 in the amount of $1,200. 

Attachments 

Fund Certification: 
A budget transfer is required from Account No. 101-000-669.000, Trf F/Prior Yr. Res into Account #101- 
172-958.001 in the amount of $1,200. 

Treasurer/Comptroller Signature 



MMEWI18 

  

tvh, 
ME 

One registrant 

per form 

Registration Form 
MME Winter Institute 

January 30-February 2, 2018 

Sheraton Hotel 

Ann Arbor, Michigan 
(MMEWI18) 

 

A State Affiliate of KM. 

Name 

 

Title 

 

    

Municipality 	  Phone 	  

Address 	  Zip 	  

First Name or Nickname for Badge 	  

Name of Guest (if attending) 	  

Email Address for Registration Confirmation 	  

The Michigan Municipal Executives provides educational and networking opportunities for its professional, affiliate, consultant, retired and student members as defined 
in MME membership application. As such, registration and attendance at professional development events are limited only to those who fall within the guidelines of 
membership and pay annual dues to MME. It is the policy of MME that no member or guest may market to MME's membership while attending the Institute unless 
registered as a participant at the Vendors Reception or acknowledged as an official sponsor at the Institute. 

** Wednesday lunch, Thursday lunch, and Friday breakfast are included with the cost of registration.** 

Please Check One Membership Category 

(See next page for membership categories) 	 Amount  

El Professional & Affiliate Member @ $280 	  

El Consultant Member @ $380 	  

ID Retired Member @ $75 	  

o First-Time Winter Institute Attendee (for MME members only) @ $75 	  

El Emerging Leader (fee waived) 	 $ 	-0- 

1p Manager in Transition (fee waived) 	 $ 	-0- 

Additional Winter Institute Activities 

Tuesday, Jam 30 
❑ Pre-Conference Workshop, 1:00-3:00 pm @ $25 	  

Cybersecurity as a risk management issue; Speaker: Kristin Judge, Cybercrime Support Network 

Wednesday, Jan. 31 
❑ NextGen Dinner, 6:00-800 pm @ $10 	  

This event is not open to vendors or consultants 

Executive Coaching (pre-registration requested). 

El Wednesday, Jan. 31 	 $ 	-0- 

0 Thursday, Feb. 1 	 -0- 

TOTAL 	  

1p I require special meal arrangements. Please describe: 	  
ED I would like to participate on the planning committee for future Winter Institutes. 

Payment Options 

Register Online with credit card at www.mme.org. In order to reduce the amount of printed paper and increase member privacy, MME will no 

longer accept credit card payments on printable registration forms. All credit card payments can be made via online registration. 

Check payable to Michigan Municipal Executives. (Fax completed registration form to 734-669-4223, then send form with payment to: 

Michigan Municipal Executives, P.O. Box 7409, Ann Arbor, MI 48107-7409) 

Cancellation Policy: 
	

Refunds will be made ONLY if MME is notified of cancellation in writing by 1/22/2018 either by fax, 
734-669-4223 or email, registration@mme.org. Registration questions? Please call 800-653-2483 or email 

registration@ m me. org  



Membership Categories & Dues Structure 

Michigan Municipal Executives 

Professional Member: 
	

Managers, administrators, or assistants of a city, village, township, county or 

council of government. Membership entitlements include voting privileges and 

access to electronic listserv. Member rates for all MME events. 

Affiliate Member: 	 Local government professionals with division or department head responsibilities. 

Not eligible for access to the listserv. 

Consultant Member: 

Retired Member: 

Manager in Transition: 

Emerging Leader: 

Members of consulting firms specializing in local government. Eligible for 

discounted rate (from the nonmember rate) to the Winter Institute and the 

Summer Workshop. Not eligible for access to the listserv. 

Professional members who are no longer employed on a full-time basis. 
Membership entitlements include voting privileges and access to listserv. Eligible 

for discounted rate to the Winter Institute and the Summer Workshop. 

Professional members who are currently in between jobs and actively seeking a 

manager position with a municipality. Membership entitlements include voting 

privileges and access to the listserv. Complimentary registration for the Winter 
Institute and the Summer Workshop. 

Enrolled college student and/or current municipal intern. Complimentary 

registration for the Winter Institute and the Summer Workshop. Access to the 
listsery through a municipal email only. 

Michigan Municipal Executives provides educational and networking opportunities for its professional, affiliate, consultant, retired, 
and student members as defined in MME membership application. As such, registration and attendance at professional development 
events are limited only to those who fall within the guidelines of membership and pay annual dues to MME. 

If you are not a member but would like to become one, cost details are available at 

www.mme.org. 



CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

Office of the Treasurer/Comptroller 

Memorandum 

DATE: 	 November 20, 2017 

TO: 	 Mayor Novitke and City Council 

FROM: 	 Cathrene Behrens, Treasurer/Comptro 

SUBJECT: 	2016-17 Fiscal Year CAFR 

Pursuant to discussion taking place at the Committee-of-the-Whole meeting on December 4, 2017, 
I am respectfully requesting that the Council accept the 2016-17 Fiscal Year CAFR, as presented, 
by Plante Moran, PLLC. Additionally with the implementation of our annual Municipal Court 
audit, I am respectively requesting that the Council accept the 2016-17 Fiscal Year Municipal 
Court audit report. 

The City has received an unqualified opinion from Plante Moran, PLLC for both audits, the highest 
opinion issued by an independent auditing firm. 

Thank you. 



plate  me 
moran 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 
1093 Woodward Avenue. 
Detroit, Ml 48226-1906 

Tel: 313.496.7200 
Fax: 313.496.7201 

plantemoran.com  

November 30, 2017 

To the Honorable Judge Theodore A. Metry 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

We have audited the financial statement of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court (the 
"Court") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 and have issued our report thereon dated 
November 30, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following 
information related to our audit, which is divided into the following sections: 

Section I - Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit 

Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 

Section III - Other Recommendations and Related Information 

Section I includes any deficiencies we observed in the Court's accounting principles or internal 
control that we believe are significant. Current auditing standards require us to formally 
communicate annually matters we note about the Court's accounting policies and internal control. 

Section II includes information that current auditing standards require independent auditors to 
communicate to those individuals charged with governance. We will report this information 
annually to you. 

Section III presents recommendations related to internal control, procedures, and other matters 
noted during our current year audit. These comments are offered in the interest of helping the 
Court in its efforts toward continuous improvement, not just in the areas of internal control and 
accounting procedures, but also in operational or administrative efficiency and effectiveness. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the Court's staff for the cooperation and courtesy 
extended to us during our audit. Their assistance and professionalism are invaluable. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the Honorable Judge and management of the Court 
and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We welcome any questions you may have regarding the following communications and we would 
be willing to discuss any of these or other questions that you might have at your convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 

William E. Brickey 
Partner 

MERISEI1 •' 
GLOBAL ALLIANCE OF 
INDEPENDENT FIRMS 
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Section I - Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statement of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, 
Municipal Court as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Court's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statement, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Court's 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Court's 
internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as discussed below, we identified certain 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. 

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statement 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

We consider the following deficiencies in the Court's internal controls to be material weaknesses: 

• Segregation of Duties: During our testing, we identified that the Court's internal controls 
lacked a proper segregation of duties. One individual handled cash, prepared cash deposits, 
and performed bank and bond account reconciliations. This lack of segregation of duties lead 
to the misappropriation of cash. The Court has reviewed this issue and has put controls in 
place to mitigate this risk going forward. 

• Account Reconciliations: During our testing, we identified that for several months there were 
no cash or bond account reconciliations performed. In addition, when they were performed, 
there were various errors in the reconciliations that caused the cash balances to not reconcile 
with the outstanding bond listings. Not preparing or reviewing these reconciliations led to the 
misappropriation of cash. We recommend the Court put procedures in place to ensure cash 
and bond account reconciliations are prepared and reviewed timely. The Court has reviewed 
this issue and has put controls in place to mitigate this risk going forward. 

2 



Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards 

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 18, 2017, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statement prepared 
by management with your oversight is fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity with 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statement does not 
relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statement is free of 
material misstatement. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the Court. Such considerations were 
solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 
concerning such internal control. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting 
process. However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

See Section I of this letter for information about material weaknesses identified during the audit. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit  

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to 
you in our meeting about planning matters on August 28, 2017. 

Significant Audit Findings  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies 
used by the Court are described in Note 1 to the financial statement. No new accounting policies 
were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2017. 

We noted no transactions entered into by the Court during the year for which there is a lack of 
authoritative guidance or consensus. 

There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the financial statement in a 
different period than when the transaction occurred. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statement prepared by management 
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statement and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. There were no significant balances, 
amounts, or disclosures in the financial statement based on sensitive management estimates. 
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Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 
(Continued) 

The disclosures in the financial statement are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as 
a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statement or the auditor's report. We are pleased to report 
that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management. We did not detect any misstatements as a result of audit procedures. 

Significant Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, business conditions affecting the Court, and business plans and strategies 
that may affect the risks of material misstatement with management each year prior to our 
retention as the Court's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of 
our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition of our retention. 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated November 30, 2017. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the Court's financial statement or a 
determination of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on that statement, our 
professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the 
consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with 
other accountants. 
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Section III - Other Recommendations and Related Information 

During our audit, we noted an area where we believe there are opportunities for the Court to 
further strengthen internal control or to increase operating efficiencies. Our observation on that 
area is presented for your consideration below: 

• General Ledger: We recommend that the Court utilize an electronic general ledger to track 
receipts and payments. Currently the Court uses a manual handwritten ledger. 

5 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Board of Directors 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statement of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, 
Municipal Court, a component unit of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan, as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statement. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statement 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of this financial statement in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of a financial statement that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this financial statement based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statement is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statement in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statement. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the basic financial statement referred to above presents fairly, in all material respects, the 
financial position of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court as of June 30, 2017 in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Praxity : 
MEMBER •' 
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To the Board of Directors 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Other Matter 

Required Supplemental Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis, as identified in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statement. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statement, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statement in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplemental information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted 
of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statement, 
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statement. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide 
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

t heettAtir.,/  /DLL C 

November 30, 2017 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court's (the "Court") 
financial performance provides an overview of the Court's financial activities for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2017. Please read it in conjunction with the Court's financial statement. 

Using this Financial Report 

This financial report represents the activities of the funds of the Court during the year. The 

funds of the Court are agency funds. Therefore, the activities are limited to collection of 
amounts that are subsequently returned or paid to third parties. The funds are custodial in 
nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement of results of operations. 

The Court as a Whole  

The following table shows, in a condensed format, the assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2017: 

Assets - Cash and cash equivalents $ 21,358 

Liabilities 

Returnable bonds $ 	14,358 
Escrow deposits 7,000 

Total liabilities $ 21,358 

The Court had $21,358 of cash to refund outstanding bonds and deposit. 

Contacting the Court's Management 

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens and customers with a general overview 
of the Court's activities and to show the Court's accountability for the money it receives. If you 
have questions about this report or need additional information, we welcome you to contact the 
Court directly. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 
Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2017 

Bond Account 

Assets - Cash and cash equivalents $ 	21,358 

Liabilities - Accrued liabilities and other 
Returnable bonds $ 	14,358 

Trusts deposits 7,000 

Total liabilities $ 	21,358 

The Notes to Financial Statement are an 
Integral Part of this Statement. 	 4 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Notes to Financial Statement 
June 30, 2017 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used by the City of 
Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court (the "Court"): 

Reporting Entity 

The City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court is governed by an elected judge. 

The Court is a component unit of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan and is 
included in the basic financial statements of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
at June 30, 2017. 

The operations of the Court are included as a separate activity in the General Fund of 
the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan. 

The funds of the Court are agency funds. The financial activities of the funds are limited 
to collections of amounts that are subsequently returned or paid to third parties. The 

funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the 
measurement of results of operations. The Court is responsible for traffic and moving 
violations, certain civil matters, and misdemeanors. 

Accounting and Reporting Principles 

The Court follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. Accounting and financial reporting 
pronouncements are promulgated by the Government Accounting Standards Board. 

Basis of Accounting 

Transactions of the Court are recorded using an agency fund. The agency fund is used to 
account for assets that the Court holds for others in an agency capacity. The agency 
fund is custodial in nature and does not involve the measurement of results of 
operations. 

Report Presentation  

The accounts of the Court are organized into one fiduciary fund as described below: 

Fiduciary Fund - The bond account of the Court is an agency fund. The financial 
activities of the fund is limited to collections of amounts that are subsequently returned 
or paid to third parties. The fund is custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and does 

not involve the measurement of results of operations. 

Specific Balances and Transactions 

Cash and Bank Deposits - Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Notes to Financial Statement 
June 30, 2017 

Note 2 - Deposits and Investments 

Michigan Compiled Laws section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes 

local governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured 
banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The 
law also allows investments outside the State of Michigan when fully insured. The local 
unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other direct obligations of the United 
States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase agreements; 
bankers' acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two 
highest classifications, which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; 
obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions, which are rated as 
investment grade; and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles that are legal for 
direct investment by local units of government in Michigan. 

The Court has designated one bank for the deposit of its funds. The investment policy 
adopted by the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan in accordance with Public Act 
196 of 1997 has authorized investment in bonds and securities of the United States 
government and bank accounts and CDs, but not the remainder of state statutory 
authority as listed above. The Court's deposits and investment policies are in accordance 
with statutory authority. 

The Court's cash and investments are subject to one type of risk, which is examined in 
more detail below: 

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the 
event of a bank failure, the Court's deposits may not be returned to it. The Court does 
not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, the Court had no bank 
deposits that were uninsured and uncollateralized. 

Note 3 - Court Operations 

All of the costs related to the operations of the Court are budgeted items of the City of 

Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan's General Fund and, accordingly, such costs are paid by 
the City's General Fund. The Court's personnel are considered to be employees of the 
City, and as such, they participate in the City's pension and healthcare plans. The wage 

and fringe benefit costs for the Court's personnel are budgeted line items of the City. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Municipal Court 

Notes to Financial Statement 
June 30, 2017 

Note 4 - Risk Management 
The Court is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and 

omissions, and employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical benefits 
provided to employees. The Court, through the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, 
Michigan, has purchased commercial general liability insurance for claims relating to 
property loss claims, torts, and errors and omissions. The City of Grosse Pointe Woods, 
Michigan is self-insured for medical claims with other communities. Under the workers' 
compensation program and medical program, the City is held liable for the first 
$400,000 and $25,000, respectively, of any occurrence. Settled claims relating to the 
commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any of 
the past three fiscal years. 

7 
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December 7, 2017 

To the City Council and Management 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

We have audited the financial statements of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan (the 
"City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 and have issued our report thereon dated 
December 7, 2017. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following 
information related to our audit, which is divided into the following sections: 

Section I - Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit 

Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 

Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 

Section I includes any deficiencies we observed in the City's accounting principles or internal 
control that we believe are significant. Current auditing standards require us to formally 
communicate annually matters we note about the City's accounting policies and internal control. 

Section II includes information that current auditing standards require independent auditors to 
communicate to those individuals charged with governance. We will report this information 
annually to the City Council and management of the City. 

Section III presents informational legislative items offered in the interest of helping the City toward 
continuous improvements and to remain informed of the changing legislative landscape. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank the City Council's staff for the cooperation and 
courtesy extended to us during our audit. Their assistance and professionalism are invaluable. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the City Council and management of the City and is 
not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

We welcome any questions you may have regarding the following communications and we would 
be willing to discuss any of these or other questions that you might have at your convenience. 

Very truly yours, 

Plante & Moran, PLLC 

William Brickey 

Kari Shea 

Praxity: 
RSEMBFR 

GLOBAL ALLIANCE OF 
INDEPENDENT FIRMS 
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Section I - Internal Control Related Matters Identified in an Audit 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the City as of and for the year 
ended June 30, 2017, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting (internal 
control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for 
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. 

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that 
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements 
will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 

We consider the following deficiencies in the City's internal control to be material weaknesses: 

During the audit, we identified various journal entries that were needed to adjust the year-end 
balances to be in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. These journal entries 
were related to net pension liability, net OPEB liability, deferred inflows, debt, capital assets, 
revenue, and expenses. Failure to properly identify and record year-end journal entries could lead 
to materially inaccurate financial reporting. 

During the audit, we identified that for a portion of the year during staff transitions in the treasurer 
and comptroller's office, the control for wire transfers did not require separate individuals to initiate 
and approve the wires. This lack of proper segregation of duties could result in improper payments 
being made. 
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Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 

Our Responsibility Under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards  

As stated in our engagement letter dated May 18, 2017, our responsibility, as described by 
professional standards, is to express an opinion about whether the financial statements prepared 
by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity 
with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of the financial statements does not 
relieve you or management of your responsibilities. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. 

As part of our audit, we considered the internal control of the City. Such considerations were 
solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance 
concerning such internal control. 

We are responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our 
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting 
process. However, we are not required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters. 

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit 

We performed the audit according to the planned scope and timing previously communicated to 
you in our letter about planning matters on August 25, 2017. 

Significant Audit Findings  

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices 

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. In 
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we will advise management about the 
appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies 
used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. 

No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed 
during 2017 except for the adoption of GASB No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions, and GASB No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures. GASB No. 
74 required additional footnote and RSI disclosures and GASB No. 77 did not impact the City. 

We noted no transactions entered into during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative 
guidance or consensus. There are no significant transactions that have been recognized in the 
financial statements in a different period than when the transaction occurred. 

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management 
and are based on management's knowledge and experience about past and current events and 
assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because 
of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events 
affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. 

The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements include the liability and expense 
associated with pension benefits, the asset associated with other postemployment benefits 
(OPEB) funding, the liability associated with estimated property tax refunds, unbilled water and 
sewer charges, estimated true-up for water purchased from the Great Lakes Water Authority, and 
incurred but not reported liabilities related to self insurance. 
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Section II - Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 
(Continued) 

Management's estimates of the pension liability and expense and the OPEB liability are based on 
discount rates, rate of return, and other assumptions, which are used by an actuary to calculate 
the total net pension liability and net OPEB liability. While the actuary uses assumptions to 
calculate the total pension and OPEB liabilities, it is management's responsibility to assess 
whether the assumptions made are reasonable. We evaluated the key assumptions used to 
calculate the total pension liability in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial 
statements taken as a whole. 

Management's estimate of property tax refunds is calculated by the known contested taxable 
values and the City's assessor and lawyer's estimates which are based on historical data. 

At year end, due to the timing of the billing cycles for water and sewer, it is necessary to record 
an estimate for the amount unbilled to customers. The amount is recorded as a receivable in the 
Water and Sewer Fund. 

At year end, the City determined that the Great Lakes Water Authority had underbilled them for 
water used during the year and recorded an estimated liability in the Water and Sewer Fund. The 
City estimated the amount using their internal billing registers. 

The estimates of the incurred but not reported amounts related to the City's self-insured workers' 
compensation and health insurance obligations are disclosed in Note 11 to the financial 
statements. Management's estimate of the various incurred but not reported amounts is based 
on historical information regarding claims. 

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimates in determining that 
they are reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit 

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and 
completing our audit. 

Disagreements with Management 

For the purpose of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as 
a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, 
that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor's report. We are pleased to 
report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit. 

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements 

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified 
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level 
of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. 

Significant Findings or Issues 

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and 
auditing standards, business conditions affecting the City, and business plans and strategies that 
may affect the risks of material misstatement with management each year prior to our retention 
as the City's auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our 
professional relationship and our responses were not a condition of our retention. 
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Section II • Required Communications with Those Charged with Governance 
(Continued) 

Management Representations 

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the 
management representation letter dated December 7, 2017. 

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants 

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and 
accounting matters, similar to obtaining a "second opinion" on certain situations. If a consultation 
involves application of an accounting principle to the City's financial statements or a determination 
of the type of auditor's opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional 
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has 
all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants. 

Other Information in Documents Containing Audited Financial Statements  

Our responsibility for other information in documents containing the entity's financial statements 
and report does not extend beyond the financial statements. We do not have an obligation to 
determine whether or not such other information is properly stated. However, we read the 
introductory section and statistical section and nothing came to our attention that caused us to 
believe that such information, or its manner of presentation, is materially inconsistent with the 
information or manner of its presentation appearing in the financial statements. 
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Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 

Legacy Costs  

Legacy costs and the challenge of funding them continues to be a topic of discussion. GASB 
pronouncements of late have placed even more focus on the net long-term liability arising from 
these benefit promises. The pension systems are approximately 62 percent funded as of June 
30, 2017. To the extent that you have been able to make some gains in terms of your funded 
status, some changes to assumptions may result in the funding level decreasing, which may result 
in higher contributions going forward. For example, many plans recently updated their mortality 
tables that now show that people are living longer. Some plans have decreased the expected rate 
of return in light of market conditions. 

New Other Postemplovment Benefits Standards (Retiree Healthcare Obligations)  

In June 2015, the GASB issued new standards addressing accounting and financial reporting by 
state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB, which 
refers to retiree health care). GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, addresses accounting and reporting by 
employer governments that provide OPEB benefits to their employees. 

Along with the currently required statement of fiduciary net position and statement of changes in 
fiduciary net position, OPEB plans will now be required to include in the financial statements more 
extensive footnote disclosures and required supplementary information related to the 
measurement of the OPEB liabilities for which assets have been accumulated. In addition, the 
City will, after adoption of GASB No. 75, recognize on the face of the financial statements its net 
OPEB liability. The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial 
statements when adopted. GASB No. 75 is effective for the City's fiscal year ending June 30, 
2018. 

Revenue Sharing  

The FY 2018 budget recommendation includes $1.27 billion for revenue sharing broken down as 
follows: 

Description 
Final 2017 

Budget 
Final 2018 

Budget 
Constitutionally required 
payments $757.9 M $798.1 M 
CVTRS 243.0 M 243.0 M 
CVTRS - One-time payments 5.8 M 5.8 M 
County revenue sharing 174.2 M 176.9 M 
County incentive program 43.0 M 43.2 M 
Fiscally distressed community 
grants 5.0 M 5.0 M 
Supplemental CVTRS 0 M 6.2 M 
Total $1,228.9 M $1,278.2 M 
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Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

After a decline in the constitutionally required payments from 2016 to 2017 as a result of sales 
tax declines, local units will experience an increase in 2018 as the constitutional payment budget 
has been increased by $40.3 million. The new budget for 2018 anticipates an increase of 5.3 
percent. The FY 2018 budget also includes the "City, Village, and Township Revenue Sharing" 
(CVTRS) appropriation which was established in FY 2015 and that number remains flat at $243 
million. Each community's overall increase will vary as each has a different mix of constitutional 
and CVTRS. 

In order to receive the CVTRS payments in FY 2018, qualified local units will once again need to 
comply with the same best practices as they did last year: 

• A citizen's guide to local finances with disclosure of unfunded liabilities 
• Performance dashboard 
• Debt service report 
• Two-year budget projection 

The State has budgeted $6.2 million for "supplemental CVTRS" payments in FY 2018. Any city, 
village, or township receiving CVTRS payments will receive an additional payment equal to its 
population multiplied by $.081198 (rounded to the nearest dollar). 

The "one-time" additional CVTRS payments that were reinstated in the 2017 budget are also part 
of the 2018 budget. 

Updated Uniform Chart of Accounts  

In April 2017, the State released an updated Uniform Chart of Accounts and requires local units 
of government to comply with the changes beginning with June 30, 2018 year ends. Local units 
should begin evaluating this new chart of accounts to determine what changes will be necessary 
and set up a plan to achieve compliance. Some accounting software vendors have already been 
working with some local units on an automated remapping solution to the extent needed; this 
could be a possible solution for some. The changes in the chart of accounts are not voluminous, 
but will require some review. The new chart of accounts can be found at the following link: 
http://www.michigan.qov/documents/uniformchart  24524 7.pdf 

New Legislation  

Trunkline Cost Sharing (Public Act 459 of 2016) - This legislation was signed into law on 
January 4, 2017. The effective date is April 5, 2017. The act amends PA 51 of 1951. The main 
provision is the elimination or reduction of local cost sharing with MDOT for cities and villages of 
various sizes. The following sets forth the sharing provisions: 

Population Local Share MDOT Share 

50,000+ 12.50% 87.50% 
40,000 - 49,999 11.25% 88.75% 
25,000 - 39,999 8.75% 91.25% 
Less than 25,000 None 100% 

The act further states that the state transportation commission and the county road commission 
boards may enter into agreements with townships or private persons for the improvement or 
widening of trunklines or county roads. The state transportation commission and road commission 
boards may require full or partial participation in the cost of the improvement by the requesting 
party, as considered appropriate. 
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Section III - Legislative and Informational Items 
(Continued) 

Public Act 530 of 2016 - Additional Legacy Cost Reporting 

On December 31, 2016, the governor signed Public Act 530 of 2016 which amends Public Act 
314 of 1965, also known as Public Employee Retirement System Investment Act (PERSIA). This 
act is effective March 29, 2017. 

Under the existing act, communities were required to publish a summary annual report setting 
forth key information related to pension and retiree healthcare plans. The amendment requires 
that this summary annual report also be submitted to the Michigan Department of Treasury within 
30 days of publication. 

In addition, for any system (either pension or retiree healthcare) that is not funded at a level of at 
least 60 percent, the community must now post a report to its website indicating steps that are 
being undertaken to address the liability. In addition, this report must be submitted to the 
Department of Treasury within a reasonable timeframe. 

The legislation calls for the Department of Treasury to accumulate all of the reports and publish 
a summary of funding levels throughout the state. 

Act 51 Performance Audits No Longer Required 

On October 26, 2017, the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) re-evaluated its 
decision regarding performance audits. MDOT is no longer requesting these audits be completed 
and submitted. Any costs incurred related to these performance audits can be submitted to MDOT 
for reimbursement. Invoices for fees paid for the performance audit and supporting documentation 
should be submitted to the attention of Patrick McCarthy by email at mccarthvp(a_michiclan.ciov 
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CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
20025 Mack Plaza Drive 

Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 48236-2397 

To the Honorable Mayor 
and City Council 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, 

Michigan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017 is submitted herewith, in accordance with 
provisions of Section 8.7 (Charter) of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods and the rules and 
regulations as put forward by the State of Michigan Department of Treasury. This report was 
prepared by and is the responsibility of the City's Finance Department. This document represents 
the official report of the City's financial operations to its residents, elected officials, employees, 
investment firms, banks and rating and regulatory agencies, and other interested parties. The data 
as presented in the report is accurate in all material respects, is shown in a manner designed to 
clearly and fairly set forth the financial activity of all the various funds established and utilized by 
the City and that all disclosures have been included to enable the reader to gain the maximum 
understanding of the City's financial operations. The independent auditing firm of Plante & Moran, 
PLLC performed the annual audit of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods' financial statements as 

required by the Michigan Department of Treasury and has issued its unqualified opinion here 
within. 

Format 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in three sections: introductory, financial, 
and statistical. This narrative details the Financial Staff's letter of transmittal and introduces the 
reader to the City's financial background, the legal requirements expected, and details of 
financial/economic events that occurred during the year, and the impact that they had on the 

financial statements. It is important to note that this letter complements the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), which is found in the financial section. The introductory section 
also includes the municipality's organizational chart and a list of principal officials. The financial 
section includes the MD&A of the basic financial statements and the combining and individual fund 

statements, schedules, and accompanying footnotes to the financial statements, and most 
importantly the auditor's opinion on the financial statements and supporting documentation. The 
statistical section, which is unaudited, includes selected financial and demographic information, 
where practical, presented on a multiyear basis. Also included in the statistical section is selected 
information required by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission depicting 

necessary disclosures in regard to the refunding of the 2013 Water and Sewer Revenue Bonds and 
the 2015 Road Construction Bonds. 



To the Honorable Mayor 
	

December 7, 2017 
and City Council 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

This document consists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City of 

Grosse Pointe Woods. Consequently, Administration assumes full responsibility for the 
completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable 
basis for making these presentations, City Administration has established a comprehensive internal 

control framework that is designed both to protect the government's assets from loss, theft, or 
misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City's financial 
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Because the cost of 
internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City's comprehensive framework of 
internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the 
financial statements will be free from material misstatement. To ensure that the City's system of 

internal controls is providing the security needed, the City's auditors are routinely consulted 
before any changes are made to the system and are requested to advise management of any 
improvements that would benefit operations. As Administration, we assert that, to the best of our 
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects. 

Reporting Entity 

This report includes all funds for which the City's elected officials have operational and financial 
authority. This authority implies that the elected and administrative officials are legally responsible 
for establishing and implementing the fiscal policies and overseeing the financial management of 
the City. Where required, actual results of individual government funds are shown with its 
original/amended budgetary appropriations. This required disclosure allows the reader to 
compare the effectiveness of the administration to stay within the spending guidelines (budget) 
established by the City Council during the budget process and to disclose other variations that 
may occur during the course of the fiscal year. 

Legal Requirement 

This report has been prepared pursuant to and in compliance with Michigan Department of 
Treasury regulations, which, in part, require that an annual independent audit of the City's financial 
records of accounts and transactions be performed. The opinion by the City's independent 
auditor, Plante & Moran, PLLC, dated December 7, 2017, on the basic financial statements and 

individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial section of this report. There is 
not a separately issued Single Audit Report for the Federal Grant Fund under the 2 CFR 200 
regulations because the total federal grant expenditures were less than the threshold of $750,000, 
which is the minimum expenditure limit needed to be subject to the regulations of the Single Audit 
Act. Through the Wayne County Block Grant Program, the City is designated as a sub-grantee 

and coordinates its program. 
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To the Honorable Mayor 
	

December 7, 2017 
and City Council 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Consistent with previous years, the intent and responsibility of Administration is to effectively 
adhere to the fiscal policies and initiatives established by the City Council while remaining cost-

efficient and responsive to the needs of the residents. Many of the financial policies and procedures 
established by the City Council are detailed in the City's annual budget. In accordance with the 

City Charter, the City Administrator and the Treasurer/Comptroller will have presented their 
budgetary estimates of revenues and expenditures of all the City's funds (excluding Trust & Agency 
Funds and selected Special Revenue Funds) to the Mayor and City Council no later than the first 
meeting in April. These estimates are then forwarded to the City's Finance Committee, which 
performs a thorough review of the operational, financial, and capital components of the budget. 
Upon completing this budget review along with recommendations, the budget is presented back 

to the Mayor and City Council for additional review and comments. The proposed budget 
document is formally approved by the Mayor and City Council no later than the third Monday in 
May. Throughout the course of the fiscal year, the Finance Committee may review any significant 
changes to the original budget document as recommended by the City Administrator and/or the 
Treasurer/Comptroller. Per the City Charter, the Mayor and City Council must formally approve 
any proposed adjustments to the budget. This process allows the City to remain flexible to changes 

in the revenue and expenditure patterns that occur throughout the year as well as keeping the 
elected officials updated on the financial condition of the City. Following the passage of the budget, 

a summary of the completed document is made available to all residents, published in the local 
newspaper and annual City calendar. 

Fiscal Policies/Major Initiatives 

One of the most elemental functions of our City is to establish practices to guide us through good 
times and challenging times. Clearly, these last several years have been challenging. 

In order to finance debt, we need to have a strong cash reserve. Currently, we have an unassigned 
fund balance of 52 percent of actual expenses. Although our cash reserves are acceptable based 
upon the GFOA recommendation of a 10-15 percent fund balance, we will use more than 30 
percent of reserves to balance the budget over the next five years. We are ever cognizant of our 
operating expenses and continue to look for efficiencies and alternative sources of revenue. 

The City's long-term financial stability is the result of a strong and continuous commitment to 
fundamental principles of fiscal integrity. The City's current administration has taken many steps 
over the last several years toward improved budgeting, cost containment, and improved efficiency, 
which has helped in dealing with the current economic conditions. The City has developed a 
proactive strategy that consists of the following changes: 

a. 	In November 2014, residents approved a $10 million capital improvement bond for major 
road repair and reconstruction. Construction began in May 2015 when the first series of 
bonds were issued. In fiscal year 2016-2017, the remaining issue of $2.875 million was 
sold and we anticipate construction to be completed in fiscal year 2017-2018. 
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To the Honorable Mayor 
	

December 7, 2017 
and City Council 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

b. Through the Department of Justice, the City was awarded a grant to be used toward the 
replacement of firefighting equipment and we additionally received a grant to assist with 
the purchase of new vests for our Public Safety Officers. The City has been awarded the 

vest replacement grant for a number of years. 

c. The City of Grosse Pointe Woods and the Village of Grosse Pointe Shores were awarded 
a grant in the amount of $0.5 million to combine public safety dispatch and police lockup 

services. This grant will provide for equipment and retrofitting of the Grosse Pointe Woods 
dispatch center to house the operations of both cities. This project is currently in the 
planning stages with construction planned to begin in fiscal year 2017-2018. 

d. The City will continue with cost containment initiatives through continued efficiencies in 
services and is actively researching alternative revenue sources going forward. 

Additionally, maintaining a strong cash reserve is paramount in order to continue with our 
Water/Sewer bond rating of AA allowing for the City to make the costs of borrowing lower and 
allow us to better invest in our city. Just as importantly, we need to build our savings so that we 
can pay our bills in the event of a fiscal emergency or natural disaster. Lastly, increasing our 
reserves would demonstrate to businesses, governmental organizations, and ratings agencies that 
we have prudent, disciplined fiscal practices and that we are good stewards of our taxpayers' 
money. This stability is good for business and good for the people of Grosse Pointe Woods. 

With regard to water and sewer infrastructure improvements, the City completed repairs to the 
City's water and sewer lines. The City was awarded the Storm Water Management and 
Wastewater (SAW) Grant. This grant will allow the City to investigate the condition of storm 
sewer and truck lines that were not included in previous grants. 

Economic Conditions 

The City's most pressing financial concern is the low inflation rate multiplier used to calculate 
taxable value. The low inflation rate has had a significant impact on property tax revenue. Re-
development within the City will continue to add value in 2018. 

In accordance with the City Charter, the City may levy up to 20 mills. The Headlee Act, which 
amended the State Constitution in regard to property tax relief, has forced the City to roll back 

its 20 mills to 13.8158 mills. 

The General Fund fund balance has an unassigned balance of $6.25 million and $541,000 assigned 
to the Cable Fund. 

Administrative Summary 

The City's strengths continue to be strong financial management, sound finances, and low debt 
levels. Because of this, the City's Water and Sewer Fund enjoys an outstanding bond rating of 
"AA" and the City's overall rating is "AA+ " from Standard & Poor's. This outstanding bond rating 
allows the City to borrow at the lowest possible interest rate, saving taxpayers thousands of dollars 

in future costs. 
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To the Honorable Mayor 
	

December 7, 2017 
and City Council 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada awarded 
the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City for its 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. This is 
the 48th  consecutive year that the City of Grosse Pointe Woods received this prestigious award. 
In fact, our City is the longest-standing recipient in GFOA's history. 

In 2016, GFOA awarded the City with a Popular Annual Financial Reporting Award (PAFR). This 

award is presented to local governments that successfully extract information from their 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and produce a high-quality report specifically 
designed to be readily accessible and easily understandable to the general public and others who 
do not have a background in public finance. 

The City continues to retain its status as well respected and one of the most desired areas to live 
in southeast Michigan. The challenge to the City is to continue to provide a multitude of public 

services, while complying with increased state regulations for accountability and transparency. 
Administration also remains confident that City Council and the employees possess the capability, 
foresight, and resolve necessary to successfully meet these challenges. 

Sincerely, 

Bruce J. Smith 
	

Cathrene A. Behrens 
City Administrator 
	

Treasurer/Comptroller 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
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Year Ended June 30, 2017 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Fund Organizational Chart 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Fund Name 	 Fund Number 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  

General Fund 	 101 

Special Revenue Funds 

Major Streets Fund 	 202 
Local Streets Fund 	 203 
Parkway Beautification Fund 	 205 
Cable Franchise Fund 	 206 
Act 302 Training Fund 	 211 
Solid Waste Disposal 	 226 
Grants Fund 	 245 
9 I I Emergency Service 	 261 
Drug Enforcement 	 265 

Debt Service Funds 

2015 Road Bond Debt Service Fund 	 304 
Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund 	 365 

Capital Projects Funds 

Municipal Improvement Fund 	 40I 
20 I 5 Road Bond Construction 	 406 

PROPRIETARY FUNDS  

Enterprise Funds 

Parking Utility Fund 	 585 
Water and Sewer Utility Fund 	 592 
Boat Dock Rental Fund 	 594 
Commodity Sales Fund 	 598 

Internal Service Funds 

Workers' Compensation Fund 	 632 
Motor Vehicle Fund 	 640 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

Trust and Agency Funds 

Cash Bond Escrow Fund 	 702 
Wayne County Tax Fund 	 703 
Pension Fund 	 73 I 
Supplementary Annuity Fund 	 732 
Other Postemployment Benefit Trust Fund 	 736 

ix 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Grosse Pointe 
Woods, Michigan (the "City") as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017 and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan's basic 
financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective net position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and 
the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan as of June 30, 
2017 and the respective changes in its net position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Praxity 
GLOBAL ALLIANCE OF 
INDEPENDENT HAMS 



To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Matters 

Required Supplemental Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and the required supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, 
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the 
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers 
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplemental information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information 
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic 
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. 
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan's basic financial statements. The other 
supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, the introductory section, and the 
statistical section are presented for the purpose of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. 

The other supplemental information, as identified in the table of contents, is the responsibility of 
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the other supplemental information, as identified in the table of 
contents, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

The introductory section and the statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or 
provide any assurance on them. 

40ttc., 	 PLLC 

December 7, 2017 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan's (the "City") financial 
performance provides an overview of the City's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2017. Please read it in conjunction with the City's financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

The following represents the most significant financial highlights for the year ended June 30, 2017: 

• Property taxes continue to be the City's largest source of revenue; however, like most 
communities in Michigan, the taxable value of property is slow to rebound. After the 2007 
decline, the City has had small but steady increases with a CPI of 1.009 percent for fiscal year 

2016-2017. Although the millage rate is essentially at the Headlee cap, the general operating 
property tax revenue remained consistent with 2015-2016. 

• Revenue sharing from the State of Michigan remains our second largest revenue source. You 
may note a decrease in the amount received during fiscal year 2016-2017, which is $1,586,536 

as compared to fiscal year 2015-2016, which was $1,659,623. This $73,087 decrease is the 
result of the City receiving less funding from the State related to personal property taxes. The 

City continues to meet all requirements of accountability and transparency with the State and 
received 100 percent of our state-shared revenue allocation in 2016-2017. 

• On May 31, 2017, the City closed on the 2017 Unlimited Tax General Obligation Bond in the 
amount of $2,875,000 for the second issue of the $10.0 million bond for major road repair 
and reconstruction. Road construction commenced at the end of April 2017 with Anita, N. 
Oxford, Wedgewood, Oxford, Huntington, Maple, and Stanhope all slated for reconstruction 

and S. Renaud for resurfacing. We anticipate the majority of the construction will end in fall 
2017. 

• Through the Department of Justice, the City was awarded a federal grant in the amount of 
$122,596. This grant was awarded through the Federal Emergency Management Association 
(FEMA) to use for the purchase of firefighting equipment. The City purchased 15 self-
contained breathing apparatus (SCBA). In addition, the City received $2,235 through the U.S. 

Department of Justice to reimburse 50 percent of the cost of body armor for our public safety 
officers. The City has received this grant for many years and it enables us to keep up a steady 
schedule of replacement for these important life-safety tools. 

The City has realized a large growth in our General Fund balance, exclusive of the Cable 
Franchise and Local Streets Funds, in fiscal year 2016-2017. Actual revenue exceeded actual 

expenditures by approximately $1.3 million. 

• The City of Grosse Pointe Woods and the Village of Grosse Pointe Shores were awarded a 

$500,000 grant to combine public safety dispatch and police lockup services. This grant will 
provide for equipment and retrofitting of the Grosse Pointe Woods dispatch center to house 
the operations of both cities. This project is scheduled to begin sometime in the fall of fiscal 

year 2017-2018. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

• The City remains vigilant with property maintenance enforcement to ensure properties are 

maintained. Maintaining property values and minimizing the decline through an effective 
property maintenance and rental inspection program is an important component to our overall 
financial plan and maintaining the quality of life within our community. 

Using this Annual Report 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and 
the statement of activities provide information about the activities of the City as a whole and 
present a longer-term view of the City's finances. This longer-term view uses the accrual basis of 
accounting so that it can measure the cost of providing services during the current year and 

whether the taxpayers have funded the full cost of providing government services. 

The fund financial statements present a short-term view; they tell the reader how the taxpayers' 
resources were spent during the year, as well as how much is available for future spending. Fund 
financial statements also report the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide 

financial statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds. The fiduciary 
fund statements provide financial information about activities for which the City acts solely as a 
trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the government. 

The City as a Whole  

The following table shows, in a condensed format, the net position as of the current date as 
compared to the prior year (in millions of dollars): 

Summary of Condensed Statement of Net Position (presented in millions of dollars) 

Assets 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Current assets $ 	16.9 $ 	17.9 $ 	10.9 $ 	13.3 $ 	27.8 $ 	31.2 
Noncurrent assets: 

Restricted assets 0.3 0.2 0.3 0.2 
Capital assets 32.3 34.2 28.0 27.6 60.3 61.8 

Total assets 49.2 52.1 39.2 41.1 88.4 93.2 

Deterred Outflows of Resources - Deferred outflows 
related to pensions 13.4 7.9 1.0 0.6 14.4 8.5 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 4.2 3.2 1.4 1.5 5.6 4.7 
Long-term liabilities 56.1 53.3 13.3 12.0 69.4 65.3 

Total liabilities 60.3 56.5 14.7 13.5 75.0 70.0 

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Deferred inflows 
related to pensions 0.7 4.7 0.1 0.4 0.8 5.1 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 25.0 26.9 18.1 18.5 43.1 45.4 
Restricted 3.0 3.5 0.3 0.2 3.3 3.7 
Unrestricted (26.4) (31.6) 7.0 9.1 (19.4) (22.5) 

Total net position $ 	1.6 $ 	(1.2) $ 	25.4 $ 	27.8 $ 	27.0 $ 	26.6 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

Current assets in the governmental activities increased approximately $1.0 million over the prior 
year and capital assets increased by $1.9 million primarily due to the City's continued investment 
in our road improvement projects and other infrastructure assets. 

Increases in long-term liabilities, deferred outflows, and deferred inflows related to increases in 
the City's net unfunded pension liability. The City continues to make the required contributions 
to the pension plans, but market conditions and changes in the Governmental Accounting 

Standards have changed the manner in how these liabilities are reported on the City's balance 
sheet. 

Business-type net position increased approximately $2.4 million over the prior year. The increase 
was primarily due to an increase in water and sewer revenue in the current year. 

The following table shows the City's major revenue and expenses as a whole for both the 
governmental and business-type activities (in millions of dollars). The bottom of the table shows 
the changes in net position during the current year in comparison to the prior year. 

Summary Condensed Statement of Changes in Net Position (presented in millions of 
dollars) 

Revenue 

Program revenue: 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total 

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 

Charges for services $ 	0.9 $ 	1.0 $ 	7.9 $ 	8.4 $ 	8.8 $ 	9.4 
Operating grants and contributions 1.0 1.3 - - 1.0 1.3 

General revenue: 

Property taxes 13.5 14.2 13.5 14.2 
State-shared revenue 1.6 1.6 1.6 1.6 
Cable franchise fees 0.4 0.4 - 0.4 0.4 
Other miscellaneous revenue 0.7 0.7 0.1 0.7 0.8 

Total revenue 18.1 19.2 7.9 8.5 26.0 27.7 

Program Expenses 

General government 3.6 3.5 3.6 3.5 
Public safety 9.3 8.3 9.3 8.3 
Public works 6.4 6.7 6.4 6.7 
Solid waste 1.1 1.1 1.1 1.1 
Recreation and culture 1.8 1.9 1.8 1.9 
Municipal improvements 0.6 0.3 0.6 0.3 
Interest on long-term debt 0.2 0.2 - 0.2 0.2 
Water and sewer - 6.1 5.9 6.1 5.9 
Parking 0.3 0.1 0.3 0.1 
Boat dock 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 

Total program expenses 23.0 22.0 6.5 6.1 29.5 28.1 

Change in Net Position (4.9) (2.8) 1.4 2.4 (3.5) (0.4) 

Net Position - Beginning of year 6.5 1.6 24.0 25.4 30.5 27.0 

Net Position - End of year $ 	1.6 $ 	(1.2) $ 	25.4 $ 	27.8 $ 	27.0 $ 	26.6 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

Governmental Activities 

The City's governmental revenue totaled approximately $19.2 million, with the greatest revenue 
source being property taxes. Total revenue for governmental activities increased $1.1 million as 

compared to fiscal year 2015-2016. A majority of this increase related to a $0.7 million increase 
in property tax revenue. 

Property taxes make up approximately 74 percent of total governmental revenue. That 
percentage remained stable as compared to total governmental revenue in fiscal year 2015-2016. 
The City experienced a slight increase of 0.09 percent in taxable value for 2016-2017. We have 

recently received confirmation from the State of Michigan that the 2018 inflation rate multiplier is 
2.1 percent, which is a significant increase above what we have experienced in recent years. 

Total governmental expenses for the City were approximately $22 million. This is down $1 million 
as compared to fiscal year 2015-2016. Overall expenses decreased this year due to reductions in 

personnel costs, decreases in retiree healthcare expenses, and the reduction in capital 
expenditures related to the City's road repair program. 

Business-type Activities 

The City's business-type activities consist of the funds for water and sewer, parking utility, 
commodity sales, and boat dock. 

Water and sewer utility system revenue is primarily from fees paid by customers, based on use. 
Water and Sewer rates were increased in the current year to cover increased costs to purchase 
water and to fund required infrastructure improvements. 

The remaining business-type funds continue to be funded exclusivity by user fees and there were 
no significant changes in revenue or expenses in the current year. 

In the business-type activities, revenue increased by approximately $0.6 million primarily due to 
an increase in water and sewer revenue in the current year. There were no significant expense 

variances. 

The City's Funds  

An analysis of the City's major funds begins on page 14, following the government-wide financial 
statements. The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant 

funds, not the City as a whole. The City Council created funds to help manage money for specific 
purposes as well as to show accountability for certain activities, such as special property tax 
millages. The City's major governmental funds for fiscal year 2016-2017 include the General Fund, 

the Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund, and the 2015 Road Construction Fund. Since the Local Streets 
Fund and the Cable Fund receive the majority of their revenue from unrestricted sources, they 
can no longer be classified as special revenue funds. Therefore, they are included in the General 
Fund. The City's major business-type fund is the Water and Sewer Fund. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

General Fund  

The General Fund pays for most of the City's governmental services. The two largest services 
funded by the General Fund are public safety (combined police and fire services) and public works 
which account for $7.9 million in expenses. Our Parks and Recreation Department accounted for 

$1.4 million in expenses, with this department of the City being primarily funded through tax 
revenue and user fees. 

Other major activities in the General Fund include recreation and culture, solid waste, and all 
general government administrative and services operations. Some of these activities rely on fees 

for services to help offset costs and some do not generate any significant service-related revenue. 
Many of these activities rely heavily on property taxes and revenue sharing to subsidize their 
operations. 

In fiscal year 2016-2017, the General Fund's fund balance increased by approximately $1. I million. 

The increase was due to a modest increase in revenue and various cost containment efforts of the 
City Council, appointed officials, and department directors. The largest budget-to-actual 

fluctuations were in the assessing department due to the subcontracting of assessing services and 
in Public Safety and Parks and Recreation due to decreases in personnel costs. 

The City's General Fund year-end fund balance is approximately $7.6 million; $1.2 million is 
committed, assigned, and nonspendable, leaving $6.25 million unassigned. The unassigned amount 

represents approximately 52 percent of fiscal year 2016-2017 actual expenditures. This level of 
fund balance is above the recommended level of between 10 percent and 15 percent of annual 
expenditures; however, the City strives to maintain a cash surplus sufficient to maintain superior 
city services and retain a favorable bond rating. 

Road Bond Construction Fund  

In November 2014, voters authorized $10 million in capital improvement bonds for the purpose 

of road construction. This special revenue fund records the construction expense and use of bond 
proceeds. In May 2017, the City sold $2.875 million in bonds in a second, and final, issue to 
complete all phases of construction. During fiscal year 2016-2017, there was $2.6 million in 
construction activity with project completion during fiscal year 2017-2018. The $10 million in 
bonds did not cover all of the roads originally proposed for resurface or reconstruction due to 

increases in raw material charges. The City continues to research funding mechanisms in order to 
address this important need within the community. 

Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund  

The Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund is used to accumulate resources for payment of operations and 
maintenance costs as well as the Grosse-Gratiot Drain improvements financed by issuance of debt. 
In 2017, the Milk River Inter-County Drain Drainage Board issued debt in the amount of $36 

million for system updates and improvements, with the City's first principal payment due in 2020. 
The City continues to make estimated interest payments each year, which are being funded 
through use of the Grosse-Gratiot Drain fund balance. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

In fiscal year 2016-2017, the fund derived revenue from property taxes of approximately $2.6 
million and expenditures of approximately $1.6 million related to drain operations and 

maintenance provided by Wayne County. 

This Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund's fund balance increased $984,705; fund balance at year end is 
$2,442,048 and will be used to cover future principal and interest payments on the debt issuance. 

Water and Sewer Fund  

The Water and Sewer Fund continues to maintain a small amount of working capital and the 
required reserves to meet bond covenants. Because revenue is derived from user fees and fees are 
adjusted periodically to cover expenses, the fund is relatively secure. Unlike the governmental 

activities of the City, the Water and Sewer Fund does not rely on tax dollars and state aid for its 
financial well-being. 

Water and sewer rates have increased over the past three fiscal years to adjust the fees charged 
to system users based upon their demand to the system. These increases have been done in a 
step process so as not to impose large bi-monthly increases all in one fiscal year. These fees cover 
the cost of fees imposed by the Great Lakes Water Authority, City billing staff, City operations 
and maintenance staff, and for infrastructure improvements financed by issuance of debt. 

The City Council and administration review revenue and expenditures annually to ensure revenue 
remains at an adequate level to support the required expenditures of the systems. An annual rate 
increase will be necessary to support infrastructure improvements to the water system and sewer 

systems, which have been funded by low-interest loans from the State of Michigan Drinking Water 
Revolving Fund and Sewer Revolving Fund. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights  

The City's General Fund ended fiscal year 2016-2017 with continued concessions from all of the 
four labor unions and nonunion employees. Facing a slow rebound in taxable value and an aging 
fleet of vehicles, the City chose to continue leasing public safety and public works vehicles rather 

than paying cash. 

Local Streets Activity 

The Local Streets Fund accounts for the maintenance and replacement of all local streets within 
the City. The City has approximately 42 miles of local streets within our municipal boundaries. 

The primary source of financing this fund is provided by distribution of gas tax proceeds from the 
State under Public Act 51 with the City receiving just over $320,000 in fiscal year 2016-2017. The 
other primary income source is through a transfer from the General Fund. Expenditures exceeded 
revenue in local roads by $322,610 and this shortfall was covered through a transfer in from the 

General Fund in the amount of $115,000 and $207,610 being expensed from the Local Streets 
Fund balance. The department additionally receives a small amount of its revenue from fees, other 
state funding, special assessment, and interest on investments. Expenditures for fiscal year 2016-

2017 decreased by $25,000 as a result of modest decreases throughout all expenditures classes in 

the fund. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

The Local Streets Fund's fund balance decreased by $207,610 with a year-end balance of 
$541,642. For reporting purposes, this fund balance has been classified as "committed" and rolled 

into the General Fund. This increase is a combination of an increase in state revenue and transfer 
from General Fund. 

Cable Franchise Activity 

The Cable Franchise Fund was established to invest the proceeds from the sale of the City's 
interest in a cable company's earnings used for capital improvements. 

The Cable Franchise Fund's fund balance is $541,126 and is reported in the General Fund as 
"assigned." 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration  

The City did not issue any new general obligation debt, with the exception of the Road Bond 
second issue, during fiscal year 2016-2017. The City continues to make installment payments for 
the vehicles purchases made over the last two fiscal years with $539,586 remaining. Overall, the 
City's debt remains low. Detailed information on the City's debt can be found in the statistical 
section of this report in the debt capacity and direct and overlapping debt schedules. For more 
information regarding the activity of capital assets and debt, please refer to Note 4 and Note 6, 
respectively. 

The City has begun the process to finance approximately $2.2 million in Capital Improvement 
Bonds in the near future. During the past decade, City staff and elected officials have worked hard 

at cost containment and cost cutting through various methods. Capital improvement needs 
throughout the City were placed on hold as one method of cost cutting. These cost containment 

measures have allowed the City to build the fund balance and look toward the issuance of capital 
improvement debt to address various needs throughout City campuses. Improvements will 
include roof repairs, parking lot repair and resealing, the replacement of our bathhouse boiler at 
Lake Front Park, and the purchase of two municipal tractors. The annual payments for this bond 
issuance would initially be made from the General Fund balance and discussion continues to 
identify other revenue stream options. 

Economic Factors 

Property tax values increased slightly in fiscal year 2016-2017, resulting in an increase in property 
tax revenue. The City remains hopeful that the rebound from the 2007 decline in taxable values 

continues and has learned that a 2.1 percent inflation rate factor is in place for 2018, an increase 
of 1.2 percent. Prudent fiscal management continues to be a top priority, as the City continues to 
implement cost savings measures. Reducing discretionary spending, evaluating and prioritizing 
capital projects, and the elimination of vacant positions continue with the City's hard-working staff 
providing the same excellent service with less manpower. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Continued) 

In looking to the future, the City continues to work with neighboring communities for 
consolidation partnerships, which will reduce costs and increase efficiencies. One example of 
planned consolidation and sharing of services is the receipt of a grant to combine public safety 
dispatch and police lockup services for the City of Grosse Pointe Woods and the Village of Grosse 

Pointe Shores. This grant will provide for equipment and retrofitting of the Grosse Pointe Woods 
dispatch center to house the operations of both cities. This partnership is currently in the planning 
stages with actual construction scheduled to begin during fiscal year 2017-2018. 

The City was awarded the Storm Water Asset Management and Wastewater (SAW) Grant. This 
grant will fund the investigation of the City's sewer lines, manholes, and catch basins; an asset 

management system to properly inventory and rate the condition of each sewer asset and develop 
a long-term capital improvement plan. City staff is working closely with our engineers on this 
project and great strides are being made to accomplish these important goals. 

Contacting the City's Management 

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors with 
a general overview of the City's finances and demonstrate the City's accountability for the money 
it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, please contact 
the city administrator's office at (313) 343-2450. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Statement of Net Position (Deficit) 
June 30, 2017 

Assets 

Primary Government 

Governmental 

Activities 

Business-type 

Activities Total 

Cash and investments (Note 3) $ 	16,644,296 $ , 	11,493,759 $ 	28,138,055 
Receivables: 

Taxes 794,484 - 794,484 
Customers 1,656,459 1456,459 
Accrued interest 17,864 22,775 40,639 
Other 6,479 6,479 
Due from other governmental units 697,713 41,290 739,003 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (434,119) (434,119) 

Internal balances (44,973) 44,973 
Prepaid expenses 161,631 8,494 170,125 
Restricted assets - 223,500 223,500 
Investment in Grosse Pointes-Clinton Refuse Disposal Authority 

(Note 13) 41,755 41,755 
Capital assets (Note 4): 

Nondepreciable capital assets 2,777,491 375,055 3,152,546 
Depreciable capital assets - Net 31,447,279 27,201,258 58,648,537 

Total assets 52,109,900 41,067,563 93,177,463 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Deferred outflows related to 
pensions 7,946,065 598,170 8,544,235 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 839,348 380,273 1,219,621 
Accrued liabilities and other: 

Accrued salaries and wages 216,136 14,553 230,689 
Payroll taxes and withholdings 36,341 3,665 40,006 
Accrued interest payable 59,813 51,932 111,745 
Accrued other 93,129 171,530 264,659 

Noncurrent liabilities (Note 6): 
Due within one year: 

Compensated absences 670,675 60,224 730,899 
Provision for claims 312,886 5,458 318,344 
Current portion of long-term debt 985,660 760,000 1,745,660 

Due in more than one year: 
Compensated absences 174,235 13,757 187,992 
Net OPEB obligation 21,729,004 2,169,288 23,898,292 
Net pension liability - Greater than one year 22,723,267 1,558,000 24,281,267 
Long-term debt 8,698,501 8,308,487 17,006,988 

Total liabilities 56,538,995 13,497,167 70,036,162 

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Deferred inflows related to pensions 4,700,186 401,229 5,101,415 

Net Position (Deficit) 
Net investment in capital assets 26,874,942 18,507,826 45,382,768 
Restricted for: 

Roads 494,528 - 494,528 
Debt service 2,469,827 223,500 2,693,327 
Community events 69,968 - 69,968 
Public safety 180,229 180,229 
Solid waste 304,046 304,046 
Community development 951 - 951 

Unrestricted (31,577,707) 9,036,011 (22,541,696) 

Total net position (deficit) $ 	(1,183,216) $ 	27,767,337  $ 	26,584,121  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
Integral Part of This Statement. 	 I I 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Functions/Programs 

Primary government: 

Governmental activities: 

Expenses 

Program Revenue 

Charges for 

Services 

Operating 

Grants and 

Contributions 

Capital Grants 

and 

Contributions 

General government $ 	3,508,241 $ 	489,299 $ 	27,175 $ 	- 
Public safety 8,318,311 364,232 - 122,596 
Public works 6,720,230 1,131,689 25,227 
Solid waste 1,108,370 
Municipal improvements 260,432 
Recreation and culture 1,905,019 146,619 
Interest on long-term debt 158,803 

Total governmental 
activities 21,979,406 1,000, 150 I ,I58,864 147,823 

Business-type activities: 
Water/Sewer 5,897,189 7,818,095 
Parking 136,057 446,643 
Boat dock 89,176 142,843 
Commodity sales 35,713 27,679 

Total business-type 
activities 6,158,135 8,435,260 

Total primary government 	  $ 	28,137,541  $ 	9,435,410  $ 	1,158,864  $ 	147,823  

General revenue: 
Property taxes 
State-shared revenue (unrestricted) 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Franchise fees 
Other miscellaneous income 

Total general revenue 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position - Beginning of year 

Net Position (Deficit) - End of year 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 

Integral Part of This Statement. 	 12 



Statement of Activities 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Net (Expense) Revenue and 

Changes in Net Position 

Primary Government 

Governmental 	Business-type 

Activities 	Activities 
	

Total 

$ (2,991,767) $ 	 $ (2,991,767) 

	

(7,831,483) 	 (7,831,483) 

	

(5,563,314) 	 (5,563,314) 

	

(1,108,370) 	 (1,108,370) 

	

(260,432) 	 (260,432) 

	

(1,758,400) 	 (1,758,400) 

	

(158,803) 	 (158,803) 

(19,672,569) 	 (19,672,569) 

	

1,920,906 	1,920,906 

	

310,586 	310,586 

	

53,667 	53,667 

	

(8,034) 	(8,034) 

2,277,125 	2,277,125 

	

(19,672,569) 	2,277,125 	(17,395,444) 

	

14,229,532 	 14,229,532 

	

1,564,983 	 1,564,983 

	

38,764 	74,006 	112,770 

	

379,362 	 379,362 

	

665,038 	 665,038 

16,877,679 	74,006 	16,951,685 

	

(2,794,890) 	2,351,131 	(443,759) 

	

1,611,674 	25,416,206 	27,027,880 

$ (1,183,216) $ 27,767,337 $ 26,584,121  

    

   

13 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Governmental Funds 

Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2017 

Special Revenue Debt Service 
Funds 	Fund  

2015 Road 

Bond 	Grosse - Gratiot 	Nonmajor 

General Fund 	Construction 	Drain Fund 	Funds 
	

Total 

Assets 

Cash and investments (Note 3) 
Receivables: 

Property taxes receivable 
Accrued interest receivable 
Accrued interest 
Due from other governmental units 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 

Due from other funds (Note 5) 
Prepaids 

Total assets 

$ 	7,681,500 

532,902 

14,162 

474,852 
(251,763) 

64,339 
94,419 

$ 	2,772,973 

30,829 

(30,829) 

$ 	2,394,456 

163,746 
- 

(84,548) 

$ 	1,210,732 

67,007 
1,295 
6,479 

222,861 
(66,979) 

2,374 
11,153 

$ 	14,059,661 

794,484 
15,457 
6,479 

697,713 
(434,119) 

66,713 
105,572 

$ 	8,610,411 $ 	2,772,973 $ 	2,473,654 $ 	1,454,922 $ 	15,311,960 

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and 
Fund Balances 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 	336,503 $ 	438,640 $ $ 	47,248 $ 	822,391 
Due to other funds (Note 5) 6,302 105,384 111,686 
Accrued liabilities and other: 

Accrued salaries and wages 202,810 10,021 212,831 
Payroll taxes and withholdings 32,844 2,568 35,412 
Accrued other liabilities 79,939 3,827 7,423 91,189 

Provision for claims 53,591 10,066 63,657 

Total liabilities 711,989 438,640 3,827 182,710 1,337,166 

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Unavailable 
revenue 258,886 27,779 286,665 

Fund Balances 
Nonspendable - Prepaids 94,419 11,153 105,572 
Restricted: 

Roads 2,334,333 487,624 2,821,957 
Debt service 2,442,048 2,442,048 
Solid waste 301,910 301,910 
Public safety 180,229 180,229 
Community development 951 951 
Community events 68,968 68,968 

Committed: 
Local streets 541,642 541,642 
Repairs and equipment 23,158 23,158 

Assigned: 
Subsequent year's budget 157,338 157,338 
Public safety 50,000 60,452 110,452 
Capital projects 76,461 76,461 
Parkway beautification 94,519 94,519 
Cable 541,126 541,126 

Unassigned 6,255,011 (33,213) 6,221,798 

Total fund balances 7,639,536 2,334,333 2,442,048 1,272,212 13,688,129 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources, and fund 
balances $ 	8,610,411 $ 	2,772,973 $ 	2,473,654 $ 	1,454,922 $ 	15,311,960 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
Integral Part of This Statement. 	 14 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of 

Net Position 
June 30, 2017 

$ 13,688,129 Fund Balance Reported in Governmental Funds 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of net position are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and 
are not reported in the funds 

Investments in joint ventures are not financial resources and are not reported 
in the funds 

Net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period and is not 
reported in the funds 

Certain pension contributions and changes in pension plan net position are 
reported as deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net 
position, but are reported as expenses in the governmental funds 

Certain pension contributions and changes in pension plan net position are 
reported as deferred inflows of resources in the statement of net position, 
but are reported as revenue in the governmental funds 

Deferred inflows for unavailable revenue are reported in the funds, but not in 
the governmental activities 

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and are 
not reported in the funds 

Unamortized bond premium is not due and payable in the current period and 
is not reported in the funds 

Net OPEB obligation does not present a claim on current financial resources; 
therefore, it is not reported as a fund liability 

Accrued interest is not due and payable in the current period and is not 
reported in the funds 

Employee compensated absences are payable over a long period of years and 
do not represent a claim on current financial resources; therefore, they 
are not reported as fund liabilities 

Internal service funds are included as part of governmental activities 

Net Position Deficit of Governmental Activities 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
Integral Part of This Statement. 	 15 

33,035,621 

41,755 

(21,918,845) 

7,634,414 

(4,493,771) 

286,665 

(8,725,000) 

(419,575) 

(21,073,217) 

(59,813) 

(819,413) 

1,639,834 

$ (1,183,216) 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Governmental Funds 
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Special Revenue Debt Service 
Funds 	Fund  

2015 Road 

Bond 	Grosse-Gratiot 	Nonmajor 

General Fund 	Construction 	Drain Fund 	Funds 	 Total 
Revenue 

Property taxes $ 	9,152,538 $ $ 	2,595,690 $ 	2,194,639 $ 	13,942,867 
Franchise fees 379,362 379,362 
Licenses and permits 481,578 481,578 
Federal sources - - 25,227 25,227 
State and local sources 1,915,553 808,294 2,723,847 
Charges for services 259,340 259,340 
Fines and forfeitures 364,232 364,232 
Investment income 20,935 3,088 3,263 27,286 
Other revenue 547,514 240,120 787,634 

Total revenue 13,121,052 3,088 2,595,690 3,271,543 18,991,373 

Expenditures - Current 
General government 2,587,860 57,729 2,645,589 
Public safety 5,377,622 - - 89,724 5,467,346 
Public works 2,536,139 2,549,863 1,610,985 2,143,974 8,840,961 
Municipal improvement 91,086 - - 80,851 171,937 
Parks and recreation 1,419,541 44,087 1,463,628 
Debt service - Principal 750,000 750,000 
Interest on long-term debt 211,250 211,250 

Total expenditures 12,012,248 2,549,863 1,610,985 3,377,615 19,550,711 

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 1,108,804 (2,546,775) 984,705 (106,072) (559,338) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Face value of debt issue - 2,875,000 - 2,875,000 
Transfers in 8,000 8,900 16,900 
Transfers out (8,900) (8,000) (16,900) 

Total other financing (uses) 
sources (900) 2,875,000 900 2,875,000 

Net Change in Fund Balances 1,107,904 328,225 984,705 (105,172) 2,315,662 

Fund Balances - Beginning of year 6,531,632 2,006,108 1,457,343 1,377,384 11,372,467 

Fund Balances - End of year $ 	7,639,536 $ 	2,334,333 $ 	2,442,048 $ 	1,272,212 $ 	13,688,129 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
Integral Part of This Statement. 	 16 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Governmental Funds 
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, 

and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds 	 $ 	2,315,662 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement 
of activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the 
statement of activities, these costs are allocated over their estimated 
useful lives as depreciation: 

Capital outlay 

Depreciation expense 

Revenue is recorded in the statement of activities when earned; it is not 
reported in the funds until collected or collectible within 60 days of year 
end 

Change in accumulated employee sick and vacation pay is recorded when 
earned in the statement of activities 

Other postemployment benefit obligation expense is recognized in the 
statement of activities, but not in the governmental funds 

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, 
but not in the statement of activities (where it reduces long-term debt) 

Issuance of debt is a revenue in the governmental funds but not in the 
statement of activities. 

Change in investment in a joint Grosse Pointes-Clinton Refuse Disposal 
Authority is not recorded in the funds 

Change in net pension liability, deferred outflows, and deferred inflows 
related to pensions reported in the statement of activities does not 
require the use of current resources and therefore is not reported in the 
fund statements until it comes due for payment 

Unamortized bond premium 

Interest expense is recorded when incurred in the statement of activities 

Internal service funds are included as part of the governmental activities 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
Integral Part of This Statement. 	 17 

3,271,967 

(1,258,667) 

262,800 

(79,082) 

(1,625,198) 

750,000 

(2,875,000) 

(13,874) 

(3,001,487) 

52,447 

(1,428) 

(593,030) 

$ (2,794,890) 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Proprietary Funds 

Statement of Net Position 
June 30, 2017 

Assets 

Current assets: 

Enterprise Funds 

Governmental 

Activities 

Major Enterprise 

Fund - Water and 

Sewer Fund 

Nonmajor 

Enterprise Funds 

Total Enterprise 

Funds 

Internal Service 

Funds 

Cash arid investments $ 	9,384,753 $ 	2,109,006 $ 	11,493,759 $ 	2,584,635 
Receivables: 

Customers 1,656,459 1,656,459 
Accrued interest receivable 20,112 2,663 22,775 2,407 
Due from other governmental units 41,290 41,290 

Due from other funds 6,090 50,000 56,090 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 6,792 1,702 8,494 56,059 

Total current assets 11,115,496 2,163,371 13,278,867 2,643,101 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets 223,500 223,500 
Capital assets: 

Assets not subject to depreciation 375,055 375,055 
Assets subject to depreciation 26,859,753 341,505 27,201,258 1,189,149 

Total noncurrent assets 27,458,308 341,505 27,799,813 1,189,149 

Total assets 38,573,804 2,504,876 41,078,680 3,832,250 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Deferred outflows 
related to pensions 548,645 49,525 598,170 311,651 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 379,009 1,264 380,273 16,957 
Due to other funds - I 1,117 11,117 - 
Accrued liabilities and other 235,556 6,124 241,680 6,174 
Compensated absences - Less than one year 49,463 10,761 60,224 25,497 
Provision for claims - Less than one year 5,458 - 5,458 249,229 
Current portion of long-term debt 760,000 760,000 235,660 

Total current liabilities 1,429,486 29,266 1,458,752 533,517 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences - Greater than one year 10,431 3,326 13,757 - 
Pension liability 1,436,264 121,736 1,558,000 804,422 
Other postemployment benefit obligation 1,734,912 434,376 2,169,288 655,787 
Long-term debt 8,308,487 - 8,308,487 303,926 

Total noncurrent liabilities 11,490,094 559,438 12,049,532 1,764,135 

Total liabilities 12,919,580 588,704 13,508,284 2,297,652 

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Deferred inflows related 
to pensions 370,444 30,785 401,229 206,415 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 18,166,321 341,505 18,507,826 649,563 
Restricted-debt service 223,500 - 223,500 - 
Unrestricted 7,442,604 1,593,407 9,036,011 990,271 

Total net position $ 	25,832,425  $ 	1,934,912  $ 	27,767,337  $ 	1,639,834  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Governmental 

Enterprise Funds 
	

Activities 

Major Enterprise 

Fund - Water and 	Nonmajor 	Total Enterprise 	Internal Service 

Sewer Fund 	Enterprise Funds 	Funds 	 Funds 

Operating Revenue 
Water sales and charges for services $ 	7,525,541 $ 	 - $ 	7,525,541 $ 
Penalties 126,806 - 126,806 
Fees and violations 442,865 442,865 
Docking and launching fees 142,843 142,843 
Commodity sales 27,679 27,679 
Other revenue 137,477 3,778 141,255 2,000 
Charges to other funds 733,547 

Total operating revenue 7,789,824 617,165 8,406,989 735,547 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of water and disposal 3,712,356 3,712,356 
Cost of insurance claims 281,701 
Operation and maintenance 210,786 105,482 316,268 424,717 
General and administrative 853,628 94,629 948,257 399,156 
Charges from internal service funds 50,000 - 50,000 - 
Depreciation 804,415 60,835 865,250 215,895 

Total operating expenses 5,631,185 260,946 5,892,131 1,321,469 

Operating Income (Loss) 2,158,639 356,219 2,514,858 (585,922) 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses) 
Interest income 67,064 6,942 74,006 12,911 
Loss from joint venture (21,277) - (21,277) 
Interest expense (244,727) (244,727) (16,967) 
Loss on sale of assets - (3,052) 
Amortization of debt premium 28,271 28,271 

Total nonoperating (expenses) revenue (170,669) 6,942 (163,727) (7,108) 

Change in Net Position 1,987,970 363,161 2,351,131 (593,030) 

Net Position - Beginning of year 23,844,455 1,571,751 25,416,206 2,232,864 

Net Position - End of year $ 	25,832,425 $ 	1,934,912  $ 	27,767,337  $ 	1,639,834 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Proprietary Funds 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Major Enterprise 	Nonmajor 

Fund - Water and 	Enterprise 	Total Enterprise Internal Service 

Sewer Fund 	Funds 	 Funds 	 Funds 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Receipts from customers $ 	7,841,732 $ 	617,165 $ 	8,458,897 $ 	2,000 

Receipts for interfund services and reimbursements 733,729 

Payments to suppliers (3,835,586) (70,402) (3,905,988) (294,372) 

Payments to employees (960,734) (168,955) (1,129,689) (508,867) 

Internal activity - Payments to other funds - (26,183) (26,183) - 

Claims paid - (176,238) 

Other receipts 291,087 291,087 129,169 

Net cash provided by (used by) operating 
activities 3,336,499 351,625 3,688,124 (114,579) 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities - Transfers 
to other funds (50,000) (50,000) 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Debt proceeds 21,552 21,552 123,610 

Proceeds from sales of capital assets - 30,876 

Purchase of capital assets (471,819) (471,819) (148,119) 

Principal and interest paid on capital debt (1,018,246) (1,018,246) (249,804) 

Debt service charge 6,994 6,994 

Net cash used in capital and related financing 
activities (1,461,519) (1,461,519) (243,437) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities - Interest received on 
investments 62,461 6,873 69,334 12,884 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,937,441 308,498 2,245,939 (345,132) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 7,670,812 1,800,508 9,471,320 2,929,767 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 	9,608,253 $ 	2,109,006 $ 	11,717,259 $ 	2,584,635 

Balance Sheet Classification of Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and investments $ 	9,384,753 $ 	2,109,006 $ 	11,493,759 $ 	2,584,635 

Restricted cash 223,500 - 223,500 - 

Total cash and cash equivalents $ 	9,608,253 $ 	2,109,006 $ 	11,717,259 $ 	2,584,635 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash from 
Operating Activities 

Operating income (loss) $ 	2,158,639 $ 	356,219 $ 	2,514,858 $ 	(585,922) 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 

from operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 804,415 60,835 865,250 215,895 

Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Receivables 33,183 33,183 - 

Due from others (5,160) (5,160) 182 

Prepaids (560) (114) (674) (258) 

Accounts payable (88,25 I) (6,830) (95,081) (14,769) 

Due to other funds (1,183) (1,183) 

Estimated claims liability 5,298 5,298 103,413 

Accrued and other liabilities 113,963 (57,302) 56,661 166,880 

Other assets 314,972 - 314,972 - 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 

activities $ 	3,336,499 $ 	351,625 $ 	3,688,124 $ 	(114,579) 

Noncash Transactions - Loss on joint venture $ 	21,277 $ 	 - $ 	21,277 $ 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position 

June 30, 2017 

Assets 

Pension and 

Other 

Employee 

Benefits Agency Funds 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	1,383,206 $ 	62,506 
Investments: 

Stocks 20,820,474 
Corporate bonds 7,245,739 
Pooled investments 10,357,863 

Receivables - Accrued interest receivable 310 

Total assets 39,807,592 $ 	62,506 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 10 $ 
Due to other governmental units 41,148 
Court bonds payable 21,358 

Total liabilities 10 $ 	62,506 

Net Position Held in Trust for Pension and Other Employee 
Benefits $ 39,807,582 

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Fiduciary Funds 
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

  

Pension and 

Other Employee 

Benefits 

Additions 
Investment income: 

Interest and dividends 
Net increase in fair market value 

Contributions: 
Employer 

Employee 

Total contributions 

 

$ 	524,312 
3,646,608 

2,838,765 
307,153 

 

3,145,918 

Total additions - Net 

Deductions 
Benefit payments 

Administrative expenses 

Total deductions 

Net Increase in Net Position Held in Trust 

Net Position Held in Trust for Pension and 
Beginning of year 

Net Position Held in Trust for Pension and 
End of year 

 

7,316,838 

4,897,816 
38,720 

 

4,936,536 

Other Employee Benefits - 

Other Employee Benefits - 

2,380,302 

37,427,280 

$ 39,807,582 

  

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies used by the City of 
Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan (the "City"): 

Reporting Entity 

The City was incorporated as a home rule village on January 4, 1927 and as a home rule 
city on December II, 1950. The City has a population of 16,135 per the 2010 census 

and encompasses 3.2 square miles. The City is located approximately 10 miles north of 
downtown Detroit and is over 97 percent residential. There are no major industries or 
corporations located within the city limits. 

The City is governed by an elected mayor and six-member council. The City's 

administration operates under the overall direction of the elected mayor. In accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, there are 
no component units to be included in the City's reporting entity. 

Accounting and Reporting Principles  

The City follows accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. Accounting and financial reporting 
pronouncements are promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. 

Report Presentation  

Governmental accounting principles require that financial reports include two different 
perspectives - the government-wide perspective and the fund-based perspective. The 
government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the 
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the 
primary government and its component units. The government-wide financial 
statements are presented on the economic resources measurement focus and the full 
accrual basis of accounting. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for 
which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all 
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. The statements also 
present a schedule reconciling these amounts to the modified accrual-based 
presentation found in the fund-based statements. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a 
given function or segment are offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those 

that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenue 
includes: (I) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or privileges 
provided; (2) operating grants and contributions; and (3) capital grants and 

contributions, including special assessments. Taxes and other items not properly 
included among program revenue are reported instead as general revenue. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these 
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's water and 
sewer function and various other functions of the City. Eliminations of these charges 
would distort the direct costs and program revenue reported for the various functions 
concerned. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, 
and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide 
financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise 
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

Basis of Accounting 

The governmental funds use the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is intended to better 
demonstrate accountability for how the government has spent its resources. 

Expenditures are reported when the goods are received or the services are rendered. 
Capital outlays are reported as expenditures (rather than as capital assets) because they 
reduce the ability to spend resources in the future; conversely, employee benefit costs 
that will be funded in the future (such as pension and retiree healthcare-related costs or 
sick and vacation pay) are not counted until they come due for payment. In addition, 
debt service expenditures, claims, and judgments are recorded only when payment is 
due. 

Revenue is not recognized until it is collected, or collected soon enough after the end of 
the year that it is available to pay for obligations outstanding at the end of the year. For 
this purpose, the City considers amounts collected within 60 days of year end to be 
available for recognition. The following major revenue sources meet the availability 
criterion: state-shared revenue, state gas and weight tax revenue, district court fines, 
and interest associated with the current fiscal period. 

Proprietary funds and fiduciary funds use the economic resources measurement focus 
and the full accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses 
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. 

24 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Fund Accounting 

The City accounts for its various activities in several different funds in order to 
demonstrate accountability for how we have spent certain resources - separate funds 
allow us to show the particular expenditures for which specific revenue was used. The 
various funds are aggregated into three broad fund types: 

Governmental funds include all activities that provide general governmental services 
that are not business-type activities. This includes the General Fund, special revenue 
funds, debt service funds, capital project funds, and permanent funds. The City reports 
the following funds as "major" governmental funds: 

• The General Fund is the primary operating fund because it accounts for all financial 

resources used to provide general government services, other than those 

specifically assigned to another fund. 

• The 2015 Road Bond Construction Fund is used to account for the proceeds and 

expenditures related to road repairs. Financing is provided through bonds issued by 
the City. 

• The Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund accounts for revenue received and is used to pay 

principal and interest on the Grosse-Gratiot Drain long-term debt. Funding is 

provided by a specific property tax millage. 

Proprietary funds include enterprise funds, which provide goods or services to users 
in exchange for charges or fees, and internal service funds, which provide goods or 

services to other funds of the City. The City reports the following fund as a "major" 
enterprise fund: 

• The Water and Sewer Fund accounts for the activity of the water distribution 

system and sewage collection system. Funding is provided primarily through user 

charges. 

The City's internal service funds are used to allocate insurance costs and machinery and 
equipment purchases and maintenance to the various funds on a full accrual basis, so 
that the full costs are recognized and allocated to the various funds in the year that the 
costs are incurred. The City has two internal service funds: 

• The Motor Vehicle Fund has been established to account for costs associated with 

vehicles purchased by the City and used by all departments within the City. 

• The Workers' Compensation Fund is used to fund workers' compensation claims 

and purchase insurance that provides coverage for employees. The fund is financed 

primarily by charges to various departments of the City. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Fiduciary funds include amounts held in a fiduciary capacity for others. These amounts 
will not be used to operate our government's programs. Activities that are reported as 
fiduciary include: 

• The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds account for the activities of 

employee benefit plans that accumulate resources for pension and other 

postemployment benefit payments to qualified employees and are reported as 

fiduciary funds. 

• The Other Postemployment Benefit Trust Fund accounts for mandatory employee 

and voluntary employer contributions to a retiree healthcare trust account. 

• The agency funds record primarily tax collections received and remitted to other 

units of government (the county, community college, school district, etc.), as well as 

building bonds and deposits, held for temporary periods. The agency funds are 

custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not involve the measurement or 

results of operations. 

Interfund Activity: During the course of operations, the government has activity 
between funds for various purposes. Any residual balances outstanding at year end are 
reported as due from/to other funds and advances to/from other funds. While these 
balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain eliminations are made in the 
preparation of the government-wide financial statements. Balances between the funds 

included in governmental activities (i.e., the governmental and internal service funds) are 
eliminated so that only the net amount is included as internal balances in the 
governmental activities column. Similarly, balances between the funds included in 

business-type activities (i.e., the enterprise funds) are eliminated so that only the net 
amount is included as internal balances in the business-type activities column. 

Furthermore, certain activity occurs during the year involving transfers of resources 
between funds. In fund financial statements, these amounts are reported at gross 

amounts as transfers in/out. While reported in fund financial statements, certain 
eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements. 
Transfers between the funds included in governmental activities are eliminated so that 

only the net amount is included as transfers in the governmental activities column. 
Similarly, balances between the funds included in business-type activities are eliminated 
so that only the net amount is included as transfers in the business-type activities 
column. 

Specific Balances and Transactions  

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents include cash 
on hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with a maturity of three months 
or less when acquired. Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market 

prices. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Prepaid Items - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future fiscal 
years and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial 
statements. 

Restricted Assets - The revenue bonds of the Water and Sewer Fund require amounts 
to be set aside for debt service. The balance of the restricted asset account for revenue 
bond restrictions for debt payments is $223,500 at June 30, 2017. When both restricted 
and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to use restricted 
resources first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, intangible 

assets, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are 
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the 
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets 

with an initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess 
of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if 
purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at 
the date of donation. 

Buildings, equipment, and vehicles are depreciated using the straight-line method over 
the following useful lives: 

Capital Asset Class 	Lives 

Infrastructure 	 I0-50 years 
Buildings 	 25 years 
Vehicles 	 3-7 years 
Equipment 	 5 years 
Land improvement 	 10-40 years 

Long-term Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements and the 
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, 
business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net position. Bond 
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
effective interest method; bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond 
premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed at the time they are incurred. 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund-types recognize bond issuances as 
an "other financing source," as well as bond premiums and discounts. The General Fund, 

Water and Sewer Fund, and debt service funds are generally used to liquidate long-term 
obligations. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes 
report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial 

statement element represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future 
period and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) 

until then. The City has deferred outflows related to premiums on long-term debt and 
pensions. 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will 
sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate 
financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a 
future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that 
time. The government has two items that qualify for reporting in this category. The 
deferred inflows of resources are related to property taxes that were not received 
within 60 days of year end as well as pension-related items. 

Net Position Flow Assumption 

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted (e.g., 
restricted bond or grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the 
amounts to report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the 
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be 
made about the order in which the resources are considered to be applied. It is the 
government's policy to consider restricted net position to have been depleted before 
unrestricted net position is applied. 

Fund Balance Flow Assumption 

Sometimes the City will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and 
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned, and unassigned fund balance). 
In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned, and 

unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements, a flow 
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be 

applied. It is the government's policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been 
depleted before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. 
Furthermore, when the components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the 
same purpose, committed fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund 
balance. Unassigned fund balance is applied last. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Fund Balance Policies 

Fund balance of governmental funds is reported in various categories based on the 
nature of any limitations requiring the use of resources for specific purposes. The 
government itself can establish limitations on the use of resources through either a 
commitment (committed fund balance) or an assignment (assigned fund balance). 

The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for 
the specific purposes determined by a formal action of the government's highest level of 
decision-making authority. The City Council is the highest level of decision-making 
authority for the government that can, by resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, 
commit fund balance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in 
place until a similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or 
revise the limitation. 

Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the 
government for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as 
committed. The City Council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the 
government that can, by resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, assign fund 
balance. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily. In other 
words, an additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an 
assignment. Conversely, as discussed above, an additional action is essential to either 
remove or revise a commitment. 

Property Tax Revenue  

Properties are assessed as of December 31. The related property taxes are billed and 
become a lien on July I of the following year. Taxes are considered delinquent on 
February 28 of the following year, at which time they are added to the county tax rolls. 

The City's 2016 tax is levied and collectible on July I , 2016 and is recognized as revenue 
in the year ended June 30, 2017 when the proceeds of the levy are budgeted and 
available for the financing of operations. 

The 2016 taxable valuation of the City totaled $651 million, on which ad valorem taxes 
levied consisted of 13.8158 mills for operating purposes, 0.0767 mills for public 
relations, 2.0251 mills for solid waste disposal, 1.5000 mills for road bond debt, and 
4.1509 mills for the Grosse-Gratiot Drain. This resulted in $8.75 million for operating, 

$.05 million for public relations, $1.30 million for solid waste disposal, $0.93 million for 
road bond debt, and $2.62 million for the Grosse-Gratiot Drain. These amounts are 
recognized in the respective General Fund, special revenue fund, and debt service fund 
financial statements as tax revenue. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Note I - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 
Pension - The City offers a defined benefit pension plan to its employees. The City 

records a net pension liability for the difference between the total pension liability 
calculated by the actuary and the pension plan's fiduciary net position. For the purpose 
of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the 
fiduciary net position of the pension plan and additions to/deductions from the pension 
plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are 
reported by the pension plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the 
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Other Postemployment Benefit Costs - The City offers retiree healthcare benefits 
to retirees. The City receives an actuarial valuation to compute the annual required 
contribution (ARC) necessary to fund the obligation over the remaining amortization 
period. In the governmental funds, OPEB costs are recognized as contributions are 
made. For the government-wide statements and proprietary funds, the City reports the 
full accrual cost equal to the current year required contribution, adjusted for interest 
and "adjustment to the ARC" on the beginning of year underpaid amount, if any. The 
General Fund is generally used to liquidate OPEB liabilities. 

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave) - It is the City's policy that 
employees earn vacation pay benefits on their anniversary date and sick benefits 
monthly. The government-wide and proprietary fund statements accrue all vacation and 
sick pay as it is used or vested (whichever is earlier). A liability for these amounts is 
reported in governmental funds as it comes due for payment (when the time is taken off 
or employees terminate). The General Fund, Water and Sewer Fund, and each 
nonmajor proprietary fund are generally used to liquidate compensated absences. 

Proprietary Funds Operating Classification - Proprietary funds distinguish operating 
revenue and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenue and expenses 
generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal 

operating revenue of the Water and Sewer Fund and internal service funds is charges to 
customers for sales and services. The Water and Sewer Fund also recognizes as 
operating revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting 

new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal 
service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are 
reported as nonoperating revenue and expenses. 
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June 30, 2017 

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Change in Accounting - During the current year, the City adopted GASB Statement 
No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. 
This statement resulted in more extensive footnote disclosures and required 
supplemental information related to the measurement of the OPEB liabilities for which 
assets have been accumulated. 

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability 

State Construction Code Act - The City oversees building construction in 
accordance with the State's Construction Code Act, including inspection of building 
construction and renovation, to ensure compliance with the building codes. The City 
charges fees for these services. The law requires that collection of these fees be used 
only for construction code costs, including an allocation of estimated overhead costs. A 
summary of the current year activity and the cumulative surplus or shortfall generated 
since January 1, 2000 is as follows: 

Cumulative shortfall at July 1, 2016 $ 	(654,498) 

Current year building permit revenue 474,830 

Related expense - Direct costs 432,934 

Current year revenue 41,896 

Cumulative excess at June 30, 2017 (612,602) 

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments 

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended) authorizes 
local governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of federally insured 
banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations that have offices in Michigan. The 
law also allows investments outside the state of Michigan when fully insured. The local 

unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other direct obligations of the United 
States or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; repurchase agreements; 
bankers' acceptances of United States banks; commercial paper rated within the two 
highest classifications, which matures not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; 
obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions, which are rated as 
investment grade; and mutual funds composed of investment vehicles that are legal for 

direct investment by local units of government in Michigan. 
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Note 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

The City's pension and other employee benefit trust funds are also authorized by 
Michigan Public Act 314 of 1965, as amended, to invest in certain reverse repurchase 
agreements, stocks, diversified investment companies, annuity investment contracts, 
real estate leased to public entities, mortgages, debt or equity of certain small 
businesses, certain state and local government obligations, and certain other specified 
investment vehicles. 

The City has designated seven banks for the deposit of its funds. The investment policy 
adopted by the City Council (for nonpension assets) in accordance with Public Act 196 
of 1997 has authorized investment in all of the state statutory authorities as listed above 

except for obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions. Also, the City's 
investment policy allows the City to invest not more than 50 percent of any one fund in 

commercial paper rated at the time of purchase within the three highest classifications 
established by not less than two standard rating services. The City's deposits and 
investment policies are in accordance with statutory authority. 

The City's cash and investments are subject to several types of risk, which are examined 
in more detail below: 

Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the 
event of a bank failure, the City's deposits may not be returned to it. The City does not 
have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At year end, the City had $18,901,462 of 
bank deposits (certificates of deposit and checking and savings accounts). Of that 
amount, $1,238,913 was covered by federal depository insurance and the remainder 
was uninsured and uncollateralized. The City believes that due to the dollar amounts of 
cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to insure all deposits. As 
a result, the City evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits funds and 
assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an acceptable 
estimated risk level are used as depositories. 
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Note 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued) 
Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will 
decrease as a result of a rise in interest rates. The City's investment policy restricts 
investment maturities to securities maturing three years or less from the date of 
purchase, unless matched to a specific cash flow requirement. However, repurchase 

agreements may be collateralized using longer-dated investments not to exceed 30 
years to maturity. Additionally, no more than 40 percent of the City's total investment 
portfolio, as of June 30 of the preceding year, shall be placed in securities maturing in 
more than three years. At year end, the average maturities of investments are as 
follows: 

Primary Government Fair Value 

0-5 

Years 

5-15 	15 Years and 

Years 	More 

U.S. government agencies and 
securities: 

U.S. Treasury notes $ 	1,992,310 $ 	1,992,310 $ - 	$ 
Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,981,163 1,981,163 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage 

Corporation 1,444,412 1,444,412 
Federal National Mortgage 

Association 2,056,617 2,056,617 
Federal Home Loan Bank 1,596,313 1,596,313 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 1,331,794 1,331,794 

Total $ 	10,402,609 $ 	10,402,609 $ - 	$ 

0-5 
	

5-15 	15 Years and 

Fiduciary Funds 
	

Fair Value 
	

Years 
	

Years 	More 

Loomis Sayles Bond Fund $ 7,245,739 $ 7,245,739 $ 
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Note 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

Credit Risk - State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings 
issued by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The City has no 
investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. As of year end, the 
credit quality ratings of debt securities (other than the U.S. government) are as follows: 

Investment Type Fair Value Rating 

Rating 

Organization 

Primary government: 
Negotiable CDs $ 	1,981,163 Not rated N/A 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 1,444,412 AAA Moody's 
Federal National Mortgage Association 2,056,617 AAA Moody's 
Federal Home Loan Bank 1,496,731 AAA Moody's 
Federal Home Loan Bank 99,582 AA+ S&P 
Federal Farm Credit Bank 1,331,794 AAA Moody's 
U.S. Treasury notes 1,992,310 AA Moody's 
Bank investment pools 197,765 Not rated N/A 
Other 49,182 Al/PI/F1 S&P 

Fiduciary funds - Loomis Sayles Bond Fund 7,245,739 Not rated N/A 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City's investment policy places limits on the 
amount that the City may invest in any one issuer or security type, including that no 
more than 50 percent of the total investment portfolio is to be invested in a single 
security type or 25 percent with a single financial institution. The City has more than 5 
percent of its investments in the following: 

Primary government: 
Federal National Mortgage Association 
Federal Home Loan Bank 
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 
Federal Farm Credit Bank 

19.31 
14.99 
13.56 
12.51 

% 

Fiduciary funds: 
iShares 20.91 % 
DFA Emerging Markets 12.85 
American Fund Europacific 10.65 
Boston Partners Long 10.43 
John Hancock Global Absolute 9.51 
Templeton Institutional Foreign 5.71 
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Note 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy 
established by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the 

valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of the asset. Level I inputs are quoted 
prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other 
observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investments that 
are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a 
practical expedient are not classified in the fair value hierarchy below. 

In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the 
above fair value hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized 
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the valuation. The City's assessment 
of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires 
judgment and considers factors specific to each asset or liability. 

The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2017: 

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis 

Fair Value Measurement Using 

Balance at 
June 30, 2017 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Debt securities - Bond funds $ 	7,245,739 $ 	7,245,739 $ 

Equity securities: 
Money market funds 413,550 413,550 
Equity funds 31,285,359 31,285,359 

Total equity securities 31,698,909 31,698,909 

Governmental securities: 
U.S. Treasury securities 1,992,310 1,992,310 
U.S. governmental bonds 6,429,136 6,429,136 

Municipal bonds 543,872 543,872 

Total governmental securities 8,965,318 8,965,318 

Certificates of deposit 1,981,163 1,981,163 

Total investments by fair 
value level $ 	49,891,129 $ 	38,944,648 $ 	10,946,481 $ 

Debt and equity securities classified in Level I are valued using prices quoted in active 
markets for those securities. 
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Note 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued) 

The fair value of governmental securities and certificates of deposit at June 30, 2017 was 

determined primarily based on Level 2 inputs. The City estimates the fair value of these 
investments using other inputs such as interest rates and yield curves that are 
observable at commonly quoted intervals. 

There are no limitations or restrictions on participant withdrawals for the investment 
pools that are recorded at amortized cost. 

Note 4 - Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity of the primary government's governmental and business-type 
activities was as follows: 

Balance Disposals and Balance 

Governmental Activities July 1, 2016 Reclassifications Additions Adjustments June 30, 2017 

Capital assets not being depreciated: 
Land $ 	1,547,967 $ - $ , 	- $ , 	- $ 	1,547,967 
Construction in progress 5,262,956 (5,262,956) 1,229,524 1,229,524 

Subtotal 6,810,923 (5,262,956) 1,229,524 2,777,491 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Infrastructure 29,266,357 5,262,956 1,622,958 36,152,271 
Buildings 9,214,360 - 12,781 9,227,141 
Equipment and vehicles 7,896,293 544,931 (335,341) 8,105,883 
Land improvements 498,237 9,890 508,127 

Subtotal 46,875,247 5,262,956 2,190,560 (335,341) 53,993,422 

Accumulated depreciation: 
Infrastructure 8,868,799 742,607 9,611,406 
Buildings 5,016,556 300,481 5,317,037 
Equipment and vehicles 7,268,515 404,309 (301,413) 7,371,411 
Land improvements 219,124 27,165 246,289 

Subtotal 21,372,994 1,474,562 (301,413) 22,546,143 

Net capital assets being depreciated 25,502,253 5,262,956 715,998 (33,928) 31,447,279 

Net governmental funds capital 
assets $ 	32,313,176 $ $ 	1,945,522 $ 	(33,928) $ 	34,224,770 
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Note 4 - Capital Assets (Continued) 

Balance Disposals and Balance 

Business-type Activities July I, 2016 Reclassifications Additions Adjustments June 30, 2017 

Capital assets not being depreciated -
Construction in progress - $ $ 	375,055 $ 	- $ 	375,055 

Capital assets being depreciated: 

Water and sewer lines 41,036,403 96,764 41,133,167 

Land improvements 1,914,692 1,914,692 

Subtotal 42,951,095 96,764 43,047,859 

Accumulated depreciation: 

Water and sewer lines 13,468,999 804,415 14,273,414 

Land improvements 1,512,352 60,835 1,573,187 

Subtotal 14,981,351 865,250 15,846,601 

Net capital assets being depreciated 27,969,744 (768,486) 27,201,258 

Net business-type capital assets $ 	27,969,744  $  $ 	(393,431)  $  $ 	27,576,313  

Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 	81,894 

Public safety 58,280 

Public works 818,815 

Recreation and culture 299,678 

Internal service funds 215,895 

Total governmental activities $ 	1,474,562 

Business-type activities: 
Water and sewer $ 	804,415 

Parking utility 28,784 

Boat dock 32,051 

Total business-type activities $ 	865,250  

Construction Commitments - The City has active construction projects at year end. 
At year end, the City has spent $1,219,201 in connection with active road construction 
projects and the City's commitment with contractors was $2,297,033. 
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Note S - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers 

The composition of interfund balances in the fund statements is as follows: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount 

Due to/from Other Funds 
General Fund Nonmajor governmental funds 	$ 	53,222 

Nonmajor enterprise funds 	 11,117 

   

Nonmajor governmental funds 
Nonmajor governmental funds 
Water and Sewer Fund 
Nonmajor enterprise funds 

Total General Fund 

General Fund 
Nonmajor governmental funds 
General Fund 

Nonmajor governmental funds 

Total 

64,339 

212 
2,162 
6,090 

50,000 

 

 

$ 	122,803  

    

These balances result from the time lag between the dates that goods and services are 
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the 
accounting system, and payments between funds are made. 

Interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statements are comprised of the 
following: 

Fund Transferred From 	 Fund Transferred To 	 Amount 

General Fund 	 Nonmajor governmental funds 	 8,900 
Nonmajor governmental funds General Fund 	 8,000 

The transfers between funds represent transfers of unrestricted resources to finance 
operations of the various departments in accordance with budgetary authorizations. 
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Note 6 - Long-term Debt 

The City issues bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major capital 
facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and 
credit of the City. Other long-term obligations include compensated absences and risk 
liabilities for which the activity can be summarized as follows: 

Governmental Activities 

Interest 
Rate 

Ranges 

Principal 
Maturity 
Ranges 

Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance 

Due Within 
One Year 

$62,096- 
Installment loan - Comerica Vehicle Loans /60% $241,831 $ 	648,813 $ 	123,610 $ 	(232,837) $ 	539,586 $ 	235,660 
General obligation bonds - 2015 Road 

Construction bonds: 
Amount of issue - $6,600,000 2.00% - $500,000- 
Maturing through 2025 4.00% $1,000,000 6,600,000 (750,000) 5,850,000 750,000 

General obligation bonds - 2017 Road 
Construction bonds: 

Amount of issue - $2,875,000 $295,000- 
Maturing through 2028 2.36% $345,000 2,875,000 2,875,000 

Reoffering premium 472,022 (52,447) 419,575 

Total debt 7,720,835 2,998,610 (1,035,284) 9,684,161 985,660 

Long-term obligations: 
Employee compensated absences 777,079 673,802 (605,971) 844,910 670,675 
Estimated liability for workers' 

compensation and health claims 
(Note 12) 147,683 1,501.619 (1,336,416) 312,886 312,886 

Total governmental activities $ 	8,6.45,597 $ 5,174,031 $(2,977,671) $ 	10,841,957 $ 1,969,221 

Interest Principal 
Rate Maturity Beginning Due Within 

Ranges Ranges Balance Additions Reductions Ending Balance One Year 
Business-type Activities 

Revenue bonds: 
2013 Revenue Refunding Bond: 

Amount of refunding - $3,190,000 2.00% - $325,000 - 
Maturing through 2023 4.00% $415,000 $ 	2,560,000 $ 	- $ 	(325,000) $ 	2,235,000 $ 	335,000 

2010 Drinking Water Revolving Fund 
Bond-7301-01: 

Amount of issue - $1,915,991 $95,000 - 
Maturing through 2030 2.50% $135,000 1,555,606 (95,000) 1,460,606 100,000 

2010 Drinking Water Revolving Fund -
7332-01: 

Amount of issue - $60,497 $175,000 - 
Maturing through 2029 2.50% $250,000 2,881,192 (175,000) 2,706,192 175,000 

2012 State Revolving Fund Bond -
5365-01: 

Amount of issue - $3,525,000 $145,000 - 
Maturing through 2033 2.50% $220,000 2,620,513 21,552 (145,000) 2,497,065 150,000 

Bond premium 197,896 - (28,272) 169,624 

Total revenue bonds 9,815,207 21,552 (768,272) 9,068,487 760,000 

Other long-term obligations: 
Employee compensated absences 64,063 56,857 (48,939) 73,981 60,224 
Estimated liability for workers' 

compensation and health claims 
(Note 12) 160 5,458 (160) 5,458 5,458 

Total business-type activities $ 	9,879,430 $ 	85,867 $ 	(817,371) $ 	9,147,926 $ 	825,682 
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Note 6 - Long-term Debt (Continued) 
For the governmental activities, claims and judgments and compensated absences are 

generally liquidated by the General Fund related to employee salaries and fringes. 
Additionally, for the business-type activities, claims and judgments and compensated 
absences are generally liquidated by the Water and Sewer Fund for employee salaries 
and fringes. Net  pension obligations and net OPEB obligations are typically paid from the 
funds from which the individual employee's salaries and wages are paid. 

The City has pledged substantially all revenue of the Water and Sewer Fund, net of 
operating expenses, to repay the above water and sewer revenue bonds. The bonds are 
payable solely from the net revenue of the water and sewer system. The remaining 
principal and interest to be paid on the bonds total $2,514,400. During the current year, 
net revenue of the system was $2,158,639 compared to the annual debt requirements 
of $403,100. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above bonds and note obligations 
are as follows: 

Years Ending 
June 30 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities 

Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total 

2018 $ 	985,660 $ 	245,571 $ 	1,231,231 $ 	760,000 $ 	264,217 $ 	1,024,217 
2019 991,831 219,431 1,211,262 785,000 246,892 1,031,892 
2020 857,095 184,949 1,042,044 810,000 225,455 1,035,455 
2021 800,000 156,985 956,985 835,000 203,317 1,038,317 
2022 905,000 128,544 1,033,544 870,000 171,880 1,041,880 

2023-2027 4,380,000 223,204 4,603,204 2,955,000 462,687 3,417,687 

2028-2032 345,000 3,673 348,673 1,883,863 78,367 1,962,230 

Total $ 9,264,586 $ 	1,162,357 $10,426,943 $ 8,898,863 $ 	1,652,815 $10,551,678 
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Note 7 - Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds 

The following are condensed financial statements for the individual pension plans and 
postemployment healthcare plans: 

Statement of Net Position 

Pension Trust 

Fund 

Supplementary 

Annuity Fund 

OPEB Trust 

Fund 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	767,760 $ 	32,852 $ 	582,594 
Investments: 

Stocks 19,965,815 854,659 
Corporate bonds 10,357,863 
Bond index funds 6,523,129 722,610 
Real estate investment trust - 

Accrued interest receivable 297 13 
Contributions receivable 

Accounts payable (10) 

Net position held in trust for pension and other 
employee benefits $ 	37,614,854 $ 	1,610,134 $ 	582,594 

Statement of Changes in Net Position 

Additions: 
Investment income: 

Interest and dividends $ 	503,034 $ 	20,088 $ 	1,190 

Net increase in fair market value 3,501,943 141,640 3,025 

Total investment income 4,004,977 161,728 4,215 

Contributions: 
Employer 1,076,052 290,000 1,472,713 

Employee 243,096 - 64,057 

Total contributions 1,319,148 290,000 1,536,770 

Deductions - Pension payments (3,217,569) (257,534) (1,422,713) 

Administrative expenses (35,374) (3,307) (39) 

Net increase in net position held in trust 2,071,182 190,887 118,233 

Net position held in trust for pension and other employee 
benefits: 

Beginning of year 35,543,672 1,419,247 464,361 

End of year $ 	37,614,854  $ 	1,610,134  $ 	582,594  
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Note 8 - Other Postemployment Benefits 
Plan Description - The City provides healthcare benefits to all full-time employees 
hired prior to August 2008 upon retirement or to individuals receiving system disability 
pensions, in accordance with various labor contracts. Currently, 173 individuals are 
eligible. This is a single-employer defined benefit plan administered by the City. The City 

includes pre-Medicare retirees and their dependents in its insured healthcare plan, with 
no contribution required by the participant. The City purchases Medicare supplemental 
insurance for retirees eligible for Medicare. The plan does not issue separate financial 
statements. Net  OPEB obligations are typically paid from the funds from which the 
individual employee's salaries and wages are paid. 

Funding Policy - The obligation to contribute to and maintain the system for these 
employees was established by negotiation with the City's collective bargaining units. The 
City has no obligation to make contributions in advance of when the insurance 
premiums are due for payment (in other words, this may be financed on a "pay-as-you-
go" basis). The costs of administering the plan are borne by the City. Currently, the 
retirees are not required to contribute. 

Funding Progress - For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City has estimated the cost 
of providing retiree healthcare benefits through an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 
2016. The valuation computes an annual required contribution, which represents a level 
of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year 
and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period not to exceed 30 years. 
This valuation's computed contribution and actual funding are summarized as follows: 

Annual required contribution (recommended) $ 	3,230,383 
Interest on the prior year's net OPEB obligation 771,762 

Less adjustment to the annual required contribution (681,515) 

Annual OPEB cost 3,320,630 

Amounts contributed (1,472,713) 

Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,847,917 

Net OPEB obligation - Beginning of year 22,050,375 

Net OPEB obligation - End of year $ 	23,898,292 
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Note 8 - Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

Employer 

Contributions 

Percentage 

	

OPEB Costs 	Net OPEB 

Fiscal Year Ended 	Actuarial Valuation Date 	 Contributed 	Obligation 

6/30/12 6/30/10 $ 	4,377,838 26.2 % $ 12,798,911 
6/30/13 6/30/10 4,244,997 34.3 15,586,284 
6/30/14 6/30/13 3,546,611 37.6 17,800,734 
6/30/15 6/30/13 3,694,987 44.7 19,877,047 
6/30/16 6/30/13 3,848,372 43.5 20,050,375 
6/30/17 6/30/16 3,320,630 44.4 23,898,292 

Annual OPEB 

Costs 

Actuarial 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial 	Actuarial 

Value of 	Accrued 	Unfunded 

Assets 	Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) 

(a) 	 (b) 	 (b-a)  

Funded Ratio 	Covered 

(Percent) 	Payroll 

(a/b) 	 (c) 

UAAL as a 

Percentage of 

Covered 

Payroll 

6/30/10 
6/30/13 
6/30/16  

- 	$ 57,033,150 
- 	52,414,605 

50,000 	53,846,070 

$ 57,033,150 
52,414,605 
53,796,070  

	

- % $ 5,454,568 	1,028.4 % 

	

5,003,250 	1,047.6 
0.1 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve 
estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of 
occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. 

Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The 

schedule of funding progress, presented above, presents multiyear trend information 
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time 
relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan 

(the plan as understood by the employer and the plan members) and include the types 
of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of 
benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial 
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the 
effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of 
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
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Note 8 - Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued) 

In the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation, the entry age actuarial cost method was used. 
The actuarial assumptions included a 3.5 percent investment rate of return (net of 
administrative expenses), which is a blended rate of the expected long-term investment 
returns on plan assets and on the employer's own investments calculated based on the 

funded level of the plan at the valuation date, and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 
8.5 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 4.5 percent after eight 
years. Both rates included a 4.0 percent inflation assumption. The actuarial value of 
assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in 
the market value of investments over a five-year period. The UAAL is being amortized 
as a level percent of active member payroll on an open basis over a period of 30 years. 
The UAAL was determined using the actuarial value of assets and actuarial accrued 
liability calculated as of the valuation date and projected to the beginning of the fiscal 
year at the assumed rate of investment return. 

Note 9 - Deferred Compensation Plan 

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (the "Plan") created in 
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan is available to all full-time 
city employees which permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future years, 
and is administered by ICMA. Payment of the deferred compensation is not available to 
employees until retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. As of June 30, 2017, 

employees who had elected to participate in the Plan had total assets of $5,500,590. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the Plan, all property and rights purchased 
with those amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights 
are solely the property and rights of the individual participants. 

Note 10 - Pension Plan - Pension Trust Fund 

Pension Plan Description 

Plan Description - The Grosse Pointe Woods Employee Retirement System Board 
administers the City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan - a single-employer defined 
benefit pension plan that provides pensions for all permanent full-time general and 
public safety employees of the City. Benefit terms have been established by negotiation 
with the City's competitive bargaining units and the Retirement System Ordinance. 

The financial statements of the plan are included in these financial statements as a 

pension and other employee benefit trust fund (a fiduciary fund). A separate report for 
the pension plan is not issued. 
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Note 10 - Pension Plan - Pension Trust Fund (Continued) 

Management of the plan is vested in the Pension Board, which consists of five members: 

the mayor, one member of the City Council, a resident appointed by the mayor, and 
two employees - one general and one public safety. The city treasurer shall be the 
treasurer of the retirement system and shall be the custodian of the cash and 
investments. The city attorney shall be legal advisor to the Pension Board. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms - At June 30, 2017, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 	 100 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 	 13 

Active plan members 	 73  

Total employees covered by the plan 

Benefits Provided - The pension plan provides retirement, disability, and death 
benefits. Benefit terms are established by negotiation with the City's competitive 
bargaining units and the Retirement System Ordinance. 

Contributions - Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution requires that 
financial benefits arising on account of employee service rendered in each year be 
funded during that year. Accordingly, the Pension Board retains an independent actuary 
to determine the annual contribution. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated 
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the 
year with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Contribution 
requirements of plan members are established and may be amended by the City's 
ordinances and negotiation with the City's collective bargaining units. For the year ended 
June 30, 2017, the average active member contribution rate was 5 percent of annual pay 
for general employees and 6 percent for public safety employees, and the City's 
contribution rate was 24 percent of annual payroll. 
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Note 10 - Pension Plan - Pension Trust Fund (Continued) 

Pension Plan Investments - Policy and Rate of Return 

Investment Policy - The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested 
assets is established and may be amended by the Pension Board by a majority vote of its 
members. It is the policy of the Pension Board to pursue an investment strategy that 
manages risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad 
selection of distinct asset classes. The pension plan's investment policy discourages the 
use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from 
dramatically shifting asset class allocations over short time spans. The following was the 
Pension Board's adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30, 2017: 

Asset Class 
Target 

Allocation 

U.S. Large Cap Equity 15.00 
U.S. Mid Cap Equity 4.00 
U.S. Small Cap Equity 6.00 
International Developed Equity 10.00 
International Developed Small Cap 5.00 
International Emerging Markets 15.00 
Hedged Equity 5.00 
U.S. Core Bonds 10.00 
Public Real Estate (REITS) 3.00 
High Yield Bonds 10.00 
Commodities 3.00 
Energy/MLPs 3.00 
Liquid Diversifying Strategies 10.00 
Cash or cash equivalents 1.00 

Rate of Return - For the year ended June 30, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of 
return on pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 11.58 
percent. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of 
investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 

Net Pension Liability 

Total pension liability $ 	60,316,215 
Plan fiduciary net position (37,614,854) 

City's net pension liability $ 	22,701,361 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 62.4 % 
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Note 10 - Pension Plan - Pension Trust Fund (Continued) 

The City has chosen to use June 30, 2017 as its measurement date for the net pension 
liability. The June 30, 2017 reported net pension liability was determined using a 
measure of the total pension liability and the pension net position as of June 30, 2017. 
The June 30, 2017 total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
performed as of June 30, 2017. 

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows: 

Changes in Net Pension Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 

Total Pension 

Liability 
Plan Net 
Position 

Net Pension 
Liability 

Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 64,896,392 $ 	35,543,672 $ 	29,352,720 

Service cost 812,794 812,794 
Interest 3,713,413 3,713,413 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience (1,943,674) (1,943,674) 
Changes in assumptions (3,946,934) (3,946,934) 
Contributions - Employer 1,076,052 (1,076,052) 
Contributions - Employee 243,096 (243,096) 
Net investment income 3,992,724 (3,992,724) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (3,215,776) (3,215,776) 
Administrative expenses (37,168) 37,168 
Miscellaneous other charges 12,254 (12,254) 

Net changes (4,580,177) 2,071,182 (6,651,359) 

Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 	60,316,215 $ 	37,614,854 $ 	22,701,361 

Assumption Changes - The discount rate was updated to reflect the current and 
expected economic conditions. 
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Note 10 - Pension Plan - Pension Trust Fund (Continued) 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $4,297,788. 

At June 30, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 	Deferred 
Outflows of 	Inflows of 
Resources 	Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes in assumptions 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 

$ 1,624,616 $ (1,730,194) 
3,887,422 	(2,960,201) 

2,673,775 

  

   

Total 	 $ 8,185,813 $ (4,690,395)  

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Years Ending 
June 30 	 Amount 

2018 	 $ 2,669,937 
2019 	 1,491,381 
2020 	 (403,391) 
2021 	 (262,509) 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all 
periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 	 3.5 % 
Salary increases 	 3.5 - 7.3 % Average, including inflation 
Investment rate of return 	 7.8 % Net of pension plan investment 

expense, including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the RP 2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table. An 
experience study was performed for the period from July I , 2009 through June 30, 
2014. The report was dated January 1 , 2015. 
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Note 10 - Pension Plan - Pension Trust Fund (Continued) 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.33 

percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 
employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that city 
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 

determined contribution rates and the employee rate. 

Projected Cash Flows 

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was not projected 
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and 
inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate incorporates a municipal bond rate 

which was 3.13 percent. The source of that bond rate was the Standard & Poor's 
Municipal Bond 20-year high grade index as of June 30, 2017. The resulting single 
discount rate is 6.33 percent. The long-term expected rate of return was applied to 
projected benefit payments from July I, 2017 through July I, 2116. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return 
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return as of June 30, 2016 for each major asset class 
included in the pension plan's target asset allocation, as disclosed in the investment 
footnote, are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Long-term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return 

U.S. Large Cap Equity 5.00 % 

U.S. Mid Cap Equity 5.50 

U.S. Small Cap Equity 5.50 

International Developed Equity 7.00 

International Small Cap 7.00 

International Emerging Markets 9.50 

Hedged Equity 5.00 

U.S. Core Bonds 2.60 

Public Real Estate (REITS) 5.00 

High Yield Bonds 5.00 

Commodities 4.00 

Energy/M LPs 10.00 

Liquid Diversifying Strategies 4.00 

Cash or cash equivalents 1.50 
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Note 10 - Pension Plan - Pension Trust Fund (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The 
following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate 
of 6.33 percent, as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower or I percentage point 
higher than the current rate: 

Current 
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase 

(5.33%) 	(6.33%) 	(7.33%)  

Net pension liability of the City 	$ 31,011,473 $ 22,701,361  $ 15,867,769  

Note 11 - Pension Plan - Supplemental Annuity Fund 
Pension Plan Description 

Plan Description - The Grosse Pointe Woods Employee Retirement System Pension 
Board administers the City of Grosse Pointe Woods Pension Plan - a single-employer 
defined benefit pension plan that provides pensions for all permanent full-time general 
and public safety employees of the City. Benefit terms have been established by 

negotiation with the City's competitive bargaining units and the Retirement System 
Ordinance. 

The financial statements of the plan are included in these financial statements as a 
pension and other employee benefit trust fund (a fiduciary fund). A separate report for 
the pension plan is not issued. 

Management of the plan is vested in the Pension Board, which consists of five members 
- the mayor, one member of the City Council, a resident appointed by the mayor, and 
two employees - one general and one public safety. The city treasurer shall be the 
treasurer of the retirement system and shall be the custodian of the cash and 
investments. The city attorney shall be legal advisor to the Pension Board. 

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms - At June 30, 2017, the following employees 
were covered by the benefit terms: 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 	 57 

Active plan members 	 45  

Total employees covered by the plan 

Benefits Provided - The pension plan provides retirement, disability, and death 
benefits. Benefit terms are established as a negotiable item within various union 

contracts. Retirement benefits for plan members range from $3,000 annually for 10 
years of service to a maximum of $4,800 annually for 25 years of service. 
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Note I I - Pension Plan - Supplemental Annuity Fund (Continued) 

Contributions - Article 9, Section 24 of the State of Michigan constitution requires that 
financial benefits arising on account of employee service rendered in each year be 
funded during that year. Accordingly, the Pension Board retains an independent actuary 

to determine the annual contribution. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated 
amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned by plan members during the 
year with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City pays 
100 percent of the contribution made to the plan. The plan does not issue separate 
financial statements. 

Pension Plan Investments - Policy and Rate of Return 

Investment Policy - The pension plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested 
assets is established and may be amended by the Pension Board by a majority vote of its 
members. It is the policy of the Pension Board to pursue an investment strategy that 

manages risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad 
selection of distinct asset classes. The pension plan's investment policy discourages the 
use of cash equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from 
dramatically shifting asset class allocations over short time spans. The following was the 
Pension Board's adopted asset allocation policy as of June 30, 2017: 

Asset Class 
Target 

Allocation 

U.S. Large Cap Equity 15.00 % 
U.S. Mid Cap Equity 4.00 
U.S. Small Cap Equity 6.00 
International Developed Equity 10.00 
International Developed Small Cap 5.00 
International Emerging Markets 15.00 
Hedged Equity 5.00 
U.S. Core Bonds 10.00 
Public Real Estate (REITS) 3.00 
High Yield Bonds 10.00 
Commodities 3.00 
Energy/MLPs 3.00 
Liquid Diversifying Strategies 10.00 
Cash or cash equivalents 1.00 

Rate of Return - For the year ended June 30, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of 
return on pension plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 11.58 
percent. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of 
investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
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Note I I - Pension Plan - Supplemental Annuity Fund (Continued) 

Net Pension Liability 

The components of the net pension liability of the City at June 30, 2017 were as follows: 

Total pension liability $ 	3,190,039 
Plan fiduciary net position (1,610,133) 

City's net pension liability $ 	1,579,906 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 50.5 % 

The City has chosen to use June 30, 2017 as its measurement date for the net pension 
liability. The June 30, 2017 reported net pension liability was determined using a 
measure of the total pension liability and the pension net position as of June 30, 2017. 
The June 30, 2017 total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
performed as of June 30, 2017. 

Changes in the net pension liability during the measurement year were as follows: 

Changes in Net Pension Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 

Total Pension 
Liability 

Plan Net 
Position 

Net Pension 
Liability 

Balance at June 30, 2016 $ 	3,382,193 $ 1,419,247 $ 	1,962,946 

Service cost 39,299 39,299 
Interest 254,061 254,061 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience (227,980) (227,980) 
Contributions - Employer 290,000 (290,000) 
Net investment income 159,415 (159,415) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (257,534) (257,534) 
Administrative expenses (995) 995 

Net changes (192,154) 190,886 (383,040) 

Balance at June 30, 2017 $ 	3,190,039 $ 	1,610,133 $ 	1,579,906 
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Note I I - Pension Plan - Supplemental Annuity Fund (Continued) 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 

Resources Related to Pensions 

For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City recognized pension expense of $232,490. At 
June 30, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 

resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred 	Deferred 

Outflows of 	Inflows of 

Resources 	Resources 

Difference between expected and actual experience 	$ 	 $ 	(411,020) 

Changes in assumptions 	 284,017 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

on pension plan investments 	 74,405 	 

Total 	 $ 	358,422  $ (411,020)  

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Years Ending 
June 30 	 Amount  

2018 	 $ 	49,347 

2019 	 (32,905) 

2020 	 (53,838) 

2021 	 (15,202) 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total pension liability in the June 30, 2017 actuarial 

valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all 

periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 	 3.5 % 

Salary increases 	 4 % Average, including inflation 

Investment rate of return 	 7.8 % Net of pension plan investment 
expense, including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the RP 2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table. 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.71 
percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 

employee contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that city 
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially 
determined contribution rates and the employee rate. 
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Note I I - Pension Plan - Supplemental Annuity Fund (Continued) 

Projected Cash Flows 

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was not projected 

to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and 
inactive employees. Therefore, the discount rate incorporates a municipal bond rate 
which was 2.68 percent. The source of that bond rate was the Standard & Poor's 
Municipal Bond 20-year high grade index as of June 30, 2016. The resulting single 
discount rate is 7.71 percent. The long-term expected rate of return was applied to 
projected benefit payments from July I , 2016 through July 1, 2116. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined 
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real 
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) 
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the 
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return 
by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best 
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return as of June 30, 2016 for each major asset class 

included in the pension plan's target asset allocation, as disclosed in the investment 
footnote, are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Long-term 
Expected Real 

Rate of Return 

U.S. Large Cap Equity 5.00 % 

U.S. Mid Cap Equity 5.50 

U.S. Small Cap Equity 5.50 

International Developed Equity 7.00 

International Small Cap 7.00 

International Emerging Markets 9.50 

Hedged Equity 5.00 

U.S. Core Bonds 2.60 

Public Real Estate (REITS) 5.00 

High Yield Bonds 5.00 

Commodities 4.00 

Energy/M LPs 10.00 

Liquid Diversifying Strategies 4.00 

Cash or cash equivalents 1.50 
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Note 11 - Pension Plan - Supplemental Annuity Fund (Continued) 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The 
following presents the net pension liability of the City, calculated using the discount rate 
of 7.71 percent, as well as what the City's net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is I percentage point lower or I percentage point 
higher than the current rate: 

I% Decrease 
(6.71%) 

Current 
Discount Rate 

(7.71%)  
1% Increase 

(8.71%)  

Net pension liability of the City 	$ 	1,913,921  $ 	1,579,906 $ 	1,296,782  

Note 12 - Risk Management 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts, errors and 
omissions, and employee injuries (workers' compensation), as well as medical benefits 
provided to employees. The City has purchased commercial general liability insurance 
for claims relating to property loss claims, torts, and errors and omissions. The City is 
self insured for workers' compensation claims and participates in a self-funding program 
for medical claims with other communities. Under the workers' compensation program 
and medical program, the City is held liable for the first $400,000 and $25,000, 
respectively, of any occurrence. Settled claims relating to commercial insurance have 
not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

Medical  

The City is self funding medical benefits up to a retention amount, at which time the 
City's reinsurance coverage begins. The self-funding program is done in conjunction with 
the cities of Grosse Pointe Park, Grosse Pointe Farms, and Grosse Pointe and the 
Village of Grosse Pointe Shores. The City of Grosse Pointe Woods serves as the 
administrative agent for the program; however, each municipality is responsible for its 
individual claims. 

The City estimates the liability for medical benefits claims that have been incurred 
through the end of the fiscal year, including both those claims that have been reported 
as well as those that have not yet been reported. The City's liability is based on 
individual claims and management's evaluation of experience with respect to the 
probable number and nature of claims. 
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Note 12 - Risk Management (Continued) 
The City estimates the liability for workers' compensation and medical benefits that 

have been incurred through the end of the fiscal year, including claims that have been 
reported as well as those that have not yet been reported, which includes estimates of 
both future payments of losses and related claim adjustment expense, both allocated 
and unallocated. The liability is based on individual claims and management's evaluation 
of experience with respect to the probable number and nature of claims. Any 
adjustments resulting from the settlement of losses will be reflected in earnings at the 
time the adjustments are determined. These estimates are recorded in the Workers' 
Compensation Internal Service Fund and within the governmental activities and 
business-type activities columns of the statement of net position for workers' 

compensation and in the modified accrual funds for medical claims. 

Changes in the estimated liability for the past two fiscal years were as follows: 

Estimated liability - 

Workers' Compensation Medical Claims 

2017 2016 2017 2016 

Beginning of year $ 	145,763 $ 	158,479 $ 	2,080 $ 	85,253 

Estimated claims incurred, 
including changes in 

estimates 274,208 101,922 1,232,869 1,222,697 

Claim payments (172,514) (114,638) (1,164,062) (1,305,870) 

Estimated liability - End of 
year $ 	247,457 $ 	145,763 $ 	70,887 $ 	2,080 

Note 13 - Joint Venture 

The City is a member of the Grosse Pointes-Clinton Refuse Disposal Authority joint 
venture (the "Authority"), which provides refuse disposal services to participating 
municipalities in the counties of Wayne and Macomb, Michigan. Other members include 
the cities of Grosse Pointe Farms, Grosse Pointe Park, Grosse Pointe, Harper Woods, 
Mount Clemens, and Grosse Pointe Woods and the Township of Clinton. The City 
Council appoints one member to the Authority's governing board, which then approves 
its budget. The Authority currently contracts with a commercial refuse disposal 

company and bills members for their proportionate share of the costs. 

The City's interest in the net position of the Authority totaled $41,755 at June 30, 2017 
and is reported as part of the governmental activities in the statement of net position. 
The City is unaware of any circumstances, including potential environmental 

remediation, that would cause an additional burden to the participating municipalities in 
the near future. Complete financial statements for the Authority can be obtained from 
its administrative offices at 27941 Harper Avenue, Suite 106, St. Clair Shores, M148081. 
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Note 14 - Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred inflows and 
deferred outflows of resources are as follows: 

Governmental Funds 
Delinquent property taxes not collected within the 

Deferred 

Inflows 

Deferred 

Outflows 

period of availability $ 	286,679 $ 

Governmental Activities 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 4,700,186 

Deferred outflows related to pensions 7,946,065 

Business-type Activities 
Deferred inflows related to pensions 401,229 

Deferred outflows related to pensions 598,170 

Total $ 	5,388,094 $ 	8,544,235 

Note 1 S - OPEB Plan 

Plan Administration - The Grosse Pointe Woods Retiree Health Care Board 
administers the Gross Pointe Woods Retiree Health Plan (the "Plan") a single employer 
defined benefit OPEB plan that is used to provide postemployment benefits other than 
pensions (OPEB) for all eligible general, public safety, and fire plan members and their 

beneficiaries. 

Management of the plan is vested in the Retiree Health Care Board, which consists of 
five members - the mayor, one member of the City Council, a resident appointed by the 
mayor, and two employees - one general and one public safety. The city treasurer shall 
be the treasurer of the Retiree Health Plan and shall be the custodian of the cash and 
investments. The city attorney shall be legal advisor to the Health Care Board. 

Plan Membership - At June 30, 2016, plan membership consisted of the following: 

Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 	 97 
Inactive plan members entitled to but not yet receiving benefits 	 10 

Active plan members 	 66 

Total 173 

  

Benefits Provided - The Plan provides healthcare, dental, prescription, and vision 
benefits for retirees hired prior to August 2008 and their dependents. Benefits are 
provided through a third-party insurer, and the full cost of benefits is covered by the 

plan. 
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Note 1 S - OPEB Plan (Continued) 

Contributions - Contribution requirements of plan members are established and may 
be amended by the pension board in accordance with city ordinance, union, contracts, 
and plan provisions. The board establishes contribution rates based on an actuarially 
determined rate per a funding valuation. For the year ended June 30, 2017, the City's 

contribution was $1,472,713. Certain plan members are required to contribute based 
on the terms of their union contact. Total employee contributions were $64,057. 

OPEB Plan Investments 

Investment Policy - The plan's policy in regard to allocation of invested assets is 
established and may be amended by the board by a majority vote of its members. It is 

the policy of the retiree healthcare board to pursue an investment strategy that reduces 
risk through the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of 
distinct asset classes. The plan's investment policy discourages the use of cash 

equivalents, except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically shifting 
asset class allocations over short time spans. Currently, the City primarily invests in 
exchange traded bond funds. The following was the board's adopted asset allocation 
policy as of June 30, 2017: 

Asset Class 
Target 

Allocation (%) 

U.S. Large Cap Equity 10.00 % 
U.S. Mid Cap Equity 4.00 
U.S Small Cap Equity 6.00 
International Developed Equity 10.00 
International Developed Small Cap 5.00 
International Emerging Markets 15.00 
Hedged Equity 10.00 
U.S. Core Bonds 10.00 
Public Real Estate (REITS) 4.00 
High Yield Bonds 10.00 
Commodities 3.00 
Energy/M LPs 3.00 
Liquid Diversifying Strategies 10.00 

Rate of Return - For the year ended June 30, 2017, the annual money-weighted rate of 
return on plan investments, net of investment expense, was .8 percent. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, 
adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 
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Note I S - OPEB Plan (Continued) 

Net OPEB Liability 

The City reports OPEB expense based on funding requirements, as directed by GASB 
Statement No. 45. Beginning next year, the City will adopt GASB Statement No. 75, 
which will require the measurement of OPEB expense as it is earned, rather than as it is 
funded. The net OPEB liability of the City has been measured as of June 30, 2017 and is 
composed of the following: 

The components of the net OPEB liability at June 30, 2017 were as follows: 

Total OPEB liability 	 $ 62,894,718 

Plan fiduciary net position 	 (582,594) 

Net OPEB liability 	 $ 62,312,124  

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 
	

1% 

Actuarial Assumptions - The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial 

valuation as of June 30, 2016. The valuation used the following actuarial assumptions, 
applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 
Healthcare cost trend rate 

Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

3.50 % 
6.00 % Graded down to 5 percent in 

seven years 
7.30 % Average, including inflation 
3.50 % Net of OPEB plan investment 

expense, including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the RP 2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table. 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined by 
the tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation 

bonds with a high grade. 

Discount Rate - The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.13 
percent. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that 

employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined 

contribution rates. 
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1% Decrease 
(5.0% 

decreasing to 

4.0%)  

$ 51,218,457  

Current 
Healthcare 
Cost Trend 
Rate (6.0% 

decreasing to 
5.0%)  

$ 62,312,124  

1% Increase 
(7.0% 

decreasing to 
6.0%)  

$ 77,050,787  

City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Note 15 - OPEB Plan (Continued) 

Projected Cash Flows 

The discount rate is the same as the municipal bond rate, which was 3.13 percent. The 
source of that bond rate was the tax-exempt municipal bond rate based on an index of a 
20-year general obligation with an average of AA credit rating. No projections of the 
ability of the fund to meet benefit obligations in the future were made since the discount 
rate is equivalent as the municipal bond rate. The discount rate of 3.13 was applied to all 

remaining periods. 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate - The 

following presents the net OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate of 3.13 
percent, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is one percentage point lower (2.13 percent) or one percentage point 
higher (4.13 percent) than the current rate: 

Current 
I % Decrease Discount Rate I % Increase 

(2.13%) 	(3.13%) 	(4.13%)  

Net OPEB liability $ 75,407,340 $ 62,312,124 $ 51,457,694  

      

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend 
Rates - The following presents the net OPEB liability, calculated using the healthcare 
cost trend rate of 6.0 percent, as well as what the net OPEB liability would be if it were 

calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is one percentage point lower (5.0 
percent, decreasing to 4.0 percent) or one percentage point higher (7.0 percent, 
decreasing to 6.0 percent) than the current rate: 

Net OPEB liability 

Note 16 - Change in Accounting 

During the year, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for 

Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans. As a result, the notes to the 

financial statements now include enhanced disclosures about the measurement of the 

OPEB liabilities for which assets have been accumulated. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2017 

Note 17 - Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements 

In June 2015, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement 
No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions, which addresses reporting by governments that provide postemployment 
benefits other than pensions (OPEB) to their employees and for governments that 
finance OPEB for employees of other governments. This OPEB standard will require the 
City to recognize on the face of the financial statements its net OPEB liability related to 
its participation in the City of Grosse Pointe Woods Retiree Health Plan. The statement 
also enhances accountability and transparency through revised note disclosures and 

required supplemental information (RSI). The City is currently evaluating the impact this 
standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this 

statement are effective for the City's financial statements for the year ending June 30, 
2018. 

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, 
which addresses the recognition and measurement of irrevocable split-interest 
agreements where the government is a beneficiary of the agreement. This standard will 
require the City to recognize on the face of the financial statements any assets, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources at the inception of the agreement. The City is 
currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial statements when 
adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective for the City's financial statements 
for the 2017-20 18 fiscal year. 

In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement 
Obligations, which establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of 
recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred outflow of resources for asset 
retirement obligations. The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have 
on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective 
for the City's financial statements for the 2018-2019 fiscal year. 

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, which 
establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of governments and improves 
guidance for accounting and financial reporting related to how these activities should be 
reported. The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the 
financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective for the 
City's financial statements for the 2019-2020 fiscal year. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2017 

Note 17 - Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, which addresses 
practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of 
certain GASB statements. The statement addresses a variety of topics including issues 

related to blending component units, goodwill, fair value measurement and application, 
and postemployment benefits (pension and other postemployment benefits (OPEB)). 
The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have on the financial 
statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective for the City's 
financial statements for the 2017-2018 fiscal year. 

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, 

which improves consistency in accounting and financial reporting for in-substance 
defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in which cash and other 
monetary assets acquired with only existing resources other than the proceeds of 
refunding debt are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing 
debt. This statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid 
insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for debt that is 
defeased in substance. The City is currently evaluating the impact this standard will have 
on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions of this statement are effective 
for the City's financial statements for the 2017-2018 fiscal year. 

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases, which improves accounting 
and financial reporting for leases by governments. This statement requires recognition of 
certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating 
leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the 
payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting 
based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an 

underlying asset. Under this statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability 
and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease 
receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. The City is currently evaluating the 

impact this standard will have on the financial statements when adopted. The provisions 
of this statement are effective for the City's financial statements for the 2020-2021 fiscal 
year. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Revenue 

Original Budget 
Amended 

Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 

Property taxes $ 	9,497,824 $ 8,862,603 $ 	9,152,538 $ 	289,935 
Franchise fees 310,000 310,000 379,362 69,362 
Licenses and permits 358,340 467,115 481,578 14,463 
State-shared revenue and grants 1,434,048 1,519,168 1,586,536 67,368 
Charges for services: 

Charges to other funds 105,000 105,000 105,000 
Charges for services to external 

parties 131,050 129,379 154,340 24,961 
Fines and forfeitures 340,000 337,528 364,232 26,704 
Investment income 25,000 25,000 17,350 (7,650) 

Other revenue - Miscellaneous revenue 317,589 456,135 508,793 52,658 

Total revenue 12,518,851 12,211,928 12,749,729 537,801 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government: 
City Council 62,580 62,580 52,737 9,843 
City Comptroller 395,356 363,517 373,159 (9,642) 
Commission 20,145 20,435 11,492 8,943 
Municipal court 419,441 379,296 365,150 14,146 
City assessor 359,302 96,273 84,816 11,457 
City clerk 360,151 350,877 336,721 14,156 
Buildings inspection 469,369 433,487 437,843 (4,356) 
City attorney 316,119 269,099 271,502 (2,403) 
Administration 225,904 225,904 232,472 (6,568) 
Fringe benefits 316,354 266,382 255,399 10,983 
Other services and charges 187,930 165,230 166,569 (1,339) 

Total general government 3,132,651 2,633,080 2,587,860 45,220 

Public safety: 
Police service 3,224,797 3,044,115 3,081,846 (37,731) 
Fire prevention and inspection 65,791 174,940 161,430 13,510 
Fringe benefits 1,719,513 1,479,186 1,473,156 6,030 
Support services 150,406 150,406 137,697 12,709 
Administration 320,796 294,190 270,554 23,636 
Other services and charges 276,380 268,920 252,939 15,981 

Total public safety 5,757,683 5,411,757 5,377,622 34,135 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Expenditures (Continued) 
Current (Continued): 

Public works: 

Original Budget 
Amended 
Budget Actual 

Variance with 
Amended 

Budget 

Street maintenance $ 	179,051 $ 	169,678 $ 	162,619 7,059 
Management information system 375,034 375,034 344,255 30,779 
Forestry services 147,657 120,103 116,421 3,682 
Other services and charges 871,940 830,560 885,816 (55,256) 
Supervision and engineering 76,719 76,719 66,980 9,739 
Fringe benefits 225,963 221,457 214,363 7,094 
City building and grounds 151,924 151,924 146,423 5,501 

Total public works 2,028,288 1,945,475 1,936,877 8,598 

Recreation and culture: 
Other services and charges 23,880 23,880 23,708 172 
Supervision and engineering 10,961 10,961 9,298 1,663 
Lake Front Park 1,141,347 1,131,601 1,016,364 115,237 
Fringe benefits 176,888 146,343 141,986 4,357 
Community center 266,667 212,475 191,232 21,243 
City parks 44,855 44,855 36,953 7,902 

Total parks and recreation 1,664,598 1,570,115 1,419,541 150,574 

Total expenditures 12,583,220 11,560,427 11,321,900 238,527 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 8,000 8,000 

Transfers out (115,000) (123,900) (123,900) 

Total other financing uses (115,000) (115,900) (I 15,900) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (179,369) 535,601 1,311,929 776,328 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 5,244,839 5,244,839 5,244,839 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	5,065,470  $ 	5,780,440  $ 	6,556,768  $ 	776,328  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Required Supplemental Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Major Special Revenue Funds 
2015 Road Bond Construction 

Year Ended dune 30, 2017 

Original Budget 

Amended 

Budget Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Revenue - Investment income 2,500 $ 	2,500 $ 	3,088 $ 	588 

Expenditures - Current - Street - 
Construction 3,845,000 3,845,000 2,549,863 1,295,137 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (3,842,500) (3,842,500) (2,546,775) 1,295,725 

Other Financing Sources - Face value of 
debt issue 2,875,000 2,875,000 2,875,000 

Net Change in Fund Balance (967,500) (967,500) 328,225 1,295,725 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 2,006,108 2,006,108 2,006,108 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	1,038,608  $ 	1,038,608  $ 	2,334,333  $ 	1,295,725  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Pension Trust Fund 

Schedule of Changes in the City Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 	2009 2008 

Total Pension Liability 
Service cost $ 	812,794 $ 	893,380 $ 	692,961 $ 	675,799 $ 	- $ - $ 	- $ 	$ 	- $ 
Interest 3,713,413 3,802,189 3,521,128 3,499,326 
Changes in benefit terms 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience (1,943,674) (509,341) 501,262 (579,977) 
Changes in assumptions (3,946,934) 7,000,034 5,686,156 
Benefit payments, including refunds (3,215,776) (3,187,512) (3,315,548) (3,092,014) 

Net Change in Total Pension Liability (4,580,177) 7,998,750 7,085,959 503,134 

Total Pension Liability - Beginning of 
year 64,896,392 56,897,642 49,811,683 44,308,549 

Total Pension Liability - End of year $ 60,316,215 $ 64,896,392 $ 56,897,642 $ 44,811,683 $ $ $ $ 	$ $ 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Contributions - Employer $ 	1,076,052 $ 	925,683 $ 	889,829 $ 	888,696 $ $ $ $ 	 $ $ 
Contributions - Member 243,096 252,579 258,967 275,808 
Net investment income 3,992,724 (1,359,930) 15,073 6,669,874 
Administrative expenses (37,168) (51,765) (69,537) (44,753) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (3,215,776) (3, I 87,512) (3,315,548) (3,092,015) 
Other 12,254 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position 2,071,182 (3,420,945) (2,22 1,216) 4,697,610 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 
of year 35,543,672 38,964,617 41,185,833 36,488,223 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of 
year $ 37,614,854 $ 35,543,672 $ 38,964,617 $ 41,185,833 $ 

City's Net Pension Liability - Ending $ 22,701,361 $ 29,352,720 $ 17,933,025 $ 	3,625,850 $ 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of Total Pension 
Liability 62.36 % 55.02 % 68.48 % 82.69 % - 	% - 	% - 	% - 	% 	- 	% - 	% 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 	4,493,845 $ 	4,592,61 I $ 	4,651,563 $ 	4,411,702 $ 	- $ $ 	- $ 	- 	$ 	- $ 

City's Net Pension Liability as a 
Percentage of Covered Employee 
Payroll 505.2 % 632.6 % 385.5 % 195.5 % % - 	% - 	% - 	% 	- 	% - 	% 

GASB Statement No. 67 was implemented for the FYE June 30, 2014 and does not require retroactive implementation. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Pension Trust Fund 

Schedule of Investment Returns 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2017 	2016 	2015 	2014 	2013 	2012 	2011 	2010 	2009 	2008 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net 
of investment expense 
	

11.6% 	(3.5)% 	0.1 % 	8.0% 	- % 	- % 	- % 	- % 	- % 	- 96 

GASB Statement No. 67 was implemented for the FYE June 30, 2014 and does not require retroactive implementation. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of City Contributions - OPEB Trust Fund 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,076,000 $ 	926,000 $ 	890,000 $ 	889,000 $ 	768,000 $ 	743,000 $ 	786,000 $ 	452,000 $ 1,037,000 $ 	1,016,000 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

determined contribution 1,076,000 926,000 890,000 889,000 768,000 743,000 786,000 452,000 1,037,000 1,016,000 

Contribution deficiency $ 	- $ 	- $ - $ $ 	- $ 

Covered employee payroll $ 4,493,845 $ 4,592,000 $ 4,652,000 $ 5,210,000 $ 5,249,000 $ 5,546,000 $ 6,214,000 $ 5,739,000 $ 5,740,000 $ 5,452,000 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 
employee payroll 23.9 % 20.2% 19.1% 17.1 % 14.6 % 13.4 % 7.9 % 7.9 % 18.1 % 18.6 % 

Notes to Schedule of City Contributions 

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions: 

Valuation date 	 Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year 
in which contributions are reported. Covered employee payroll is as of June 30 of the fiscal year two years prior. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Remaining amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Mortality 

Entry age 

Level percentage of payroll, open 

25 years 

Five-year smoothed market 

3.5 percent effective with the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation 

3.5 - 7.3 percent, including inflation 

7.75 percent, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

RP 2014 Mortality Table effective with the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Supplemental Annuity 

Schedule of Changes in the City Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 
Total Pension Liability 

Service cost $ 	39,299 $ 	37,233 $ 	28,387 $ 	33,212 $ 	- $ $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 
Interest 254,061 269,224 234,285 236,533 
Changes in benefit terms - 
Differences between expected and 

actual experience (227,980) (232,788) (399,452) (42,908) 
Changes in assumptions 86,953 831,276 
Benefit payments, including refunds (257,534) (263,715) (247,158) (257,888) 

Net Change in Total Pension Liability (192,154) (103,093) 447,338 (31,051) 

Total Pension Liability - Beginning of 
year 3,382,193 3,485,286 3,037,948 3,068,999 

Total Pension Liability - End of year $ 	3,190,039 $ 	3,382,193 $ 	3,485,286 $ 	3,037,948 $ 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Contributions - Employer $ 	290,000 $ 	297,360 $ 	286,439 $ 	277,776 $ $ $ $ 
Contributions - Member - 
Net investment income 159,415 3,963 (9,093) 230,642 
Administrative expenses (995) (22,140) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (257,534) (263,715) (247,158) (257,888) 
Other 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net 
Position 190,886 37,608 8,048 250,530 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 
of year 1,419,247 1,381,637 1,373,591 1,123,061 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of 
year $ 	1,610,133 $ 	1,419,245 $ 	1,381,639 $ 	1,373,591 $ 

City's Net Pension Liability $ 	1,579,906 $ 	1,962,948 $ 	2,103,647 $ 	1,664,357 $ 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a 
Percentage of Total Pension 
Liability 50.47 % 41.96 % 40.28 % 54.78 % - 	% - 	% - 	% - 	% - 	% - 	% 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 	2,258,831 $ 	2,347,151 $ 	2,358,679 $ 	2,196,932 $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ 	- $ $ 

City's Net Pension Liability as a 
Percentage of Covered Employee 
Payroll 69.94 % 83.63 % 88.25 % 75.70 % - 	% - 	% - % - 	% - 	% - 	% 

GASB Statement No. 67 was implemented for the FYE June 30, 2014 and does not require retroactive implementation. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Schedule of Investment Returns - Supplemental Annuity 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2017 	2016 	2015 	2014 	2013 	2012 	2011 	2010 	2009 	2008 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net 

of investment expense 
	

11.6 % 	(3.5)% 
	

0.1 % 	8.0 % 

GASB Statement No. 67 was implemented for the FYE June 30, 2014 and does not require retroactive implementation. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Supplemental Annuity 

Schedule of City Contributions 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

Actuarially determined contribution $ 	290,000 $ 	297,360 $ 	286,439 $ 	277,776 $ 	245,862 $ 	238,579 $ 	227,345 $ 	213,202 $ 	246,823 $ 	248,038 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially 

determined contribution 290,000 297,360 286,439 277,776 245,862 238,579 227,345 213,202 246,823 248,038 

Contribution deficiency $ $ $ $ $ $ 	- $ 	- $ 

Covered employee payroll $ 2,258,831 $ 2,347,151 $ 2,358,679 $ 2,196,932 $ 2,376,609 $ 2,636,547 $ 2,769,200 $ 3,085,293 $ 3,407,360 $ 3,127,089 

Contributions as a percentage of covered 

employee payroll 12.8% 12.7 % 12.1 % 12.6 % 10.3 % 9.0% 8.2% 6.9 % 7.2 % 7.9 % 

Notes to Schedule of City Contributions 

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions: 

Valuation date 
	

Actuarially determined dollar contributions are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal 
year in which contributions are reported. Covered payroll is as of June 30 of the fiscal year two years prior. Public 
safety members retiring after December 31, 1994 are not covered. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method 	 Entry age 

Amortization method 	 Level dollar 

Remaining amortization period 	 10 years 

Asset valuation method 	 Market value 

Inflation 	 0.0 percent 

Salary increases 	 0.0 percent 

Investment rate of return 	 7.75 percent, effective with the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation net of pension plan investment expense, including 
inflation 

Mortality 	 RP 2014 Mortality Table effective with the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation 

72 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Note to Required Supplemental Information 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Budgetary Information - Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the General Fund, all special 
revenue funds, and debt service funds except for operating transfers which are budgeted as 

revenue and expenditures and not other financing sources and uses. All annual appropriations 
lapse at fiscal year end; encumbrances are not included as expenditures. During the year, the 
budget was amended in a legally permissible manner. 

The City follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: 

I. On or before the first council meeting in April, the city treasurer/comptroller and the city 
administrator prepare a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing July I 
and submit it to the City Council. The budget must be adopted through a passage of a 
budget resolution no later than the third Monday in May. 

2. Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments. 

3. The legislative budget is adopted by fund on a departmental basis. Line item detail is 
provided as a general guideline. Throughout the year, the City Council receives requests to 
amend the activity budget. All amendments must be approved by a vote of the City Council. 
Changes in line items within an activity may be made with the approval of the city 
comptroller. 

As a result of GASB Statement No. 54, the Local Streets Fund and The Cable Franchise Fund are 
now merged with the General Fund for reporting purposes. The General Fund is budgeted for 
as a separate fund. The following table reconciles the balances presented in the operating 
statement with the balances presented in the General Fund's budgetary comparison schedule. 

Total Revenue 

Total 

Expenditures 

Amounts per operating statement $ 	13,121,052 $ 	12,012,248 
Local Streets Fund budgeted separately from the 

General Fund (367,738) (690,348) 
Cable franchise funds budgeted separately from the 

General Fund (3,585) 

Amounts per budget statement $ 	12,749,729  $ 	11,321,900  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Note to Required Supplemental Information (Continued) 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Budgeted Funds - During the year, the 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods had no expenditures which were in excess of the amounts 
budgeted. 

Fund Deficit - At June 30, 2017, the City had a deficit of $33,213 in the 2015 Road Bond Debt 
Service Fund (a nonmajor fund). The deficit will be eliminated with future property tax revenue. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Required Supplemental Information 

Other Postemployment Benefits - Schedule of Funding Progress 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

The schedule of funding progress is as follows: 

Actuarial 	Actuarial 	 UAAL as a 

Value of 	Accrued 	Unfunded 	Funded Ratio 	Covered 	Percentage of 

Actuarial Valuation 	Assets 	Liability (AAL) AAL (UAAL) 	(Percent) 	Payroll 	Covered 

Date 	(a) 	(b) 	(b-a) 	 (a/b) 	 (c) 	Payroll 

6/30/07 	$ 	 $ 60,894,963 $ 60,894,963 	- % $ 	- 	 N/A 
6/30/10 	 57,033,150 	57,033,150 	 5,545,568 	1,028.4 % 
6/30/13 	 52,414,605 	52,414,605 	 5,003,250 	1,047.6 
6/30/16 	 50,000 	53,796,070 	53,746,070 	0.1 	 - 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Required Supplemental Information 

OPEB Plan 
Schedule of Changes in the City Net OPEB Liability 

and Related Ratios 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Schedule is built prospectively upon implementation of GASB 74) 

Total OPEB Liability 

2017 

Service cost $ 	2,170,530 
Interest 1,848,285 
Changes in benefit terms 
Differences between expected and actual experience (2,581,257) 
Changes in assumptions (5,709,893) 
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,422,713) 

Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (5,695,048) 

Total OPEB Liability - Beginning of year 68,589,766 

Total OPEB Liability - End of year $ 62,894,718 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
Contributions - Employer $ 	1,472,713 
Contributions - Employee 64,057 
Net investment income 4,215 
Administrative expenses 
Benefit payments, including refunds (1,422,713) 
Other (39) 

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 118,233 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning of year 464,361 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - End of year $ 	582,594 

Net OPEB Liability - Ending $ 	62,312,124 

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total OPEB Liability 0.93 % 

Covered Employee Payroll $ 	4,493,845 

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 1,386.6 % 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
OPEB Plan 

Schedule of City Contributions - OPEB Trust Fund 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 

Actuarially determined contribution $ 	3,230,383 $ 	3,767,017 $ 	3,622,132 $ 3,482,819 $ 	4,192,613 $ 4,031,359 $ 	5,093,267 $ 4,873,940 $ 4,664,057 $ 

Contributions in relation to the 
actuarially determined contribution 1,472,713 1,675,660 1,618,057 1,332,162 1,457,623 1,148,356 1,781,070 1,958,858 1,415,351 

Contribution deficiency $ 1,757,670 $ 2,091,357 $ 2,004,075 $ 2,150,657 $ 2,734,990 $ 2,883,003 $ 3,312,197 $ 2,915,082 $ 3,248,706 $ 

Covered employee payroll $ 4,493,845 $ 4,592,000 $ 4,652,000 $ 5,210,000 $ 5,249,000 $ 5,546,000 $ 6,214,000 $ 5,739,000 $ 5,740,000 $ 

Contributions as a percentage of 
covered employee payroll 32.8 % 36.5 % 34.8 % 25.6 % 27.8 % 20.7 % 28.7 % 34.1 % 24.7 % DIV/0 % 

Notes to Schedule of City Contributions 

Actuarial valuation information relative to the determination of contributions: 

Valuation date 	 Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, one year prior to the end of the fiscal year in which the 
contributions are reported. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method 	 Entry age 

Amortization method 	 Level percentage of payroll, open 

Remaining amortization period 	 30 years 

Asset valuation method 	 Market 

Inflation 	 3.50 percent 

Healthcare cost trend rates 	 6.00 percent for the year of valuation, graded down to 5.00 percent in 0.15 percent increments 

Salary increases 	 3.70 to 7.30 percent 

Investment rate of return 	 3.50 percent, net of plan investment expense 

Retirement age 	 Various 

Mortality 	 RP 2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table 

Other information 	 N/A 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
OPEB Plan 

Schedule of Investment Returns 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2017 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 	 0.8 % 
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Other Supplemental Information 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Major Governmental Fund - Grosse-Gratiot Drain Fund 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Revenue - Property taxes $ 	2,703,066 $ 	2,703,066 $ 	2,595,690 $ 	(107,376) 

Expenditures 
Current - Public works 1,574,734 1,574,734 1,610,985 (36,251) 

Debt service 1,038,332 1,038,332 1,038,332 

Total expenditures 2,613,066 2,613,066 1,610,985 1,002,081 

Net Change in Fund Balance 90,000 90,000 984,705 894,705 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 1,457,343 1,457,343 1,457,343 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	1,547,343  $ 	1,547,343  $ 	2,442,048  $ 	894,705  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Other Supplemental Information 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Fund Descriptions 

Special Revenue Funds  

These funds are used to account for specific revenue sources, which are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specific functions or activities. Restrictions may be imposed by state statute, the 
state constitution, the city board resolution of action, or the electorate through the approval of 
special dedicated millages. 

Major Streets Fund - This fund accounts for the maintenance and replacement of all major 
streets within the City. Funding is provided by distribution of gas tax proceeds. 

Solid Waste Fund - This fund is used to account for the collection, disposal, and recycling of all 
residential and commercial waste within the City. Financing is provided by a separate tax millage. 

Act 302 Training Fund - This fund accounts for the costs of training courses for the police 
department. Financing is provided by state grants. 

Grants Fund - This fund is used to account for the activity of the Community Development 
Block Grant Program and other federal grants. Financing is provided by the Wayne County 
Economic Development Grant Program. 

911 Emergency Service Fund - This fund accounts for monies expended to maintain and 
operate an emergency response system. Monies are received from the AT&T phone company, 
which levies a surcharge on all phone users within the community. 

Drug Enforcement Fund - This fund is used to account for monies seized in arrests for illegal 

drug activities and from various grants issued to the police department. Functions and activities 
include drug enforcement and education, departmental training, and expenses associated with 

the grants received. 

Parkway Beautification Fund - This fund was created to account for monies provided by 

donors to finance parkway beautification activities. 

Capital Projects Funds  

Capital projects funds are used to account for the acquisition and construction of major capital 
facilities other than those financed by proprietary funds and trust funds. Revenue sources 
include General Fund transfers, grants from other units of government, private contributions, 

and bond proceeds. 

Municipal Improvement Fund - This fund accounts for the acquisition and construction of 

various construction projects in the City. 

Debt Service Fund  

2015 Road Bond Debt Service Fund - This fund accounts for the debt service of the 2015 

Road Bonds. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
Fund Descriptions (Continued) 

Budgetary Funds  

These funds are funds that were merged into the General Fund as a result of GASB Statement 
No. 54 but are budgeted as separate funds by the City Council. 

Local Streets Fund - This fund accounts for the maintenance and replacement of all local 
streets within the City. Funding is provided by distribution of gas tax proceeds. 

Cable Franchise Fund - This fund accounts for the investment of proceeds from the sale of the 
City's interest in a cable company's earnings used for capital improvements. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Special Revenue Funds 

Assets 

Major 

Streets Fund 

Solid Waste 

Fund 

Act 302 

Training 

Fund Grants Fund 

911 

Emergency 

Service Fund 

Drug 

Enforcement 

Fund 

Cash and investments $ 	346,743 $ 	333,416 $ 	50,661 $ 	228 $ 	129,111 $ 	19,686 
Accounts receivable and other assets 161,747 1 ,148 - 22,727 44,866 
Due from other funds 212 2,162 
Prepaid expenses and other assets 6,904 2,136 1,113 

Total assets $ 	515,394 $ 	336,912 $ 	50,661 $ 	22,955 $ 	177,252 $ 	19,686 

Liabilities and Fund Balances (Deficit) 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable $ 	2,958 $ 	25,407 $ 	- $ 	8,782 $ 	315 $ 
Due to other funds 2,162 13,222 
Accrued liabilities and other 10,607 5,616 - - 2,406 
Provision for claims 7,301 1,843 922 

Total liabilities 20,866 32,866 2,162 22,004 3,643 

Fund Balances (Deficit) 
Nonspendable - Prepaids 6,904 2,136 1,113 
Restricted: 

Roads 487,624 
Solid waste 301,910 
Public safety 48,499 112,044 19,686 
Community development 951 
Community events 

Committed - Construction projects 
Assigned: 

Public safety 60,452 
Capital projects 
Parkway beautification 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances (deficit) 494,528 304,046 48,499 951 173,609 19,686 

Total liabilities and fund 
balances (deficit) $ 	515,394 $ 	336,912 $ 	50,661 $ 	22,955 $ 	177,252 19,686 
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Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Balance Sheet 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
dune 30, 2017 

Special 	Capital 

Revenue 	Projects 	Debt Service 

Funds 	Funds 	 Fund 

Total 

Parkway 	Municipal 	2015 Road 	Nonmajor 

Beautification Improvement 	Bond Debt 	Governmental 

Fund 	 Fund 	Service Fund 	Funds 

$ 	163,916 $ 	158,801 $ 	8,170 $ 	1,210,732 
175 230,663 

2,374 
1,000 11,153 

$ 	165,091 $ 	158,801 $ 	8,170 $ 1,454,922 

$ 	604 $ 	9,182 $ 	- $ 	47,248 
50,000 40,000 105,384 

- 1,383 20,012 
10,066 

604 59,182 41,383 182,710 

1,000 11,153 

487,624 
301,910 
180,229 

951 
68,968 68,968 

23,158 23,158 

60,452 
76,461 76,461 

94,519 94,519 
(33,213) (33,213) 

164,487 99,619 (33,213) 1,272,212 

165,091 $ 	158,801 $ 	8,170 $ 1,454,922 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Revenue 

Special Revenue Funds 

Major Streets 

Fund 

Solid Waste 

Fund 

Act 302 

Training Fund Grants Fund 

Property taxes $ 	1,267,092 $ 
Federal financial sources 25,227 
State and local sources 802,672 5,622 
Investment income 2,583 
Other revenue 43,369 771 240 

Total revenue 846,041 1,270,446 5,862 25,227 

Expenditures - Current 
General government 31,504 
Public safety 9,140 
Public works 735,499 1,408,475 
Community and economic development 
Recreation and culture 
Debt service 

Total expenditures 735,499 1,408,475 9,140 31,504 

Excess of Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures 110,542 (138,029) (3,278) (6,277) 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 
Transfers in 6,500 
Transfers out 

Total other financing sources 
(uses) - 6,500 

Net Change in Fund Balances I 10,542 (138,029) (3,278) 223 

Fund Balances - Beginning of year 383,986 442,075 51,777 728 

Fund Balances (Deficit) - End of year $ 	494,528  $ 	304,046  $ 	48,499  $ 	951  
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Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in 

Fund Balances 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 

Year Ended dune 30, 2017 

Special Revenue Funds  

Capital 	Debt Service 

Projects Fund 	Fund 

911 

Emergency 

Service Fund 

 

Drug 

Enforcement 

Fund 

 

Parkway 

Beautification 

Fund 

 

Municipal 	2015 Road 

Improvement Bond Debt 

Fund 	Service Fund 

 

Total 

Nonmajor 

Governmental 

Funds 

           

$ 	- $ 	927,547 $ 	2,194,639 
25,227 

808,294 
680 3,263 

98,249 10,396 59,778 27,317 240,120 

98,249 10,396 60,458 27,317 927,547 3,271,543 

26,225 57,729 
76,083 4,501 89,724 

2,143,974 
80,851 80,851 

44,087 44,087 
961,250 961,250 

102,308 4,501 44,087 80,851 961,250 3,377,615 

(4,059) 5,895 16,371 (53,534) (33,703) (106,072) 

2,400 8,900 
(8,000) (8,000) 

(8,000) 2,400 900 

(4,059) 5,895 8,371 (51,134) (33,703) (105,172) 

177,668 13,791 156,116 150,753 490 1,377,384 

$ 	173,609 $ 	19,686 $ 	164,487 $ 	99,619 $ 	(33,213) $ 1,272,212 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Major Streets Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Revenue 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

$ 	 - $ 	 - $ $ - 
State-shared revenue and grants 795,000 795,000 802,672 7,672 

Other revenue 38,500 38,500 43,369 4,869 

Total 833,500 833,500 846,041 12,541 

Expenditures - Current - Public works 
Street construction 95,828 98,328 70,382 27,946 
Routine maintenance 329,689 327,189 305,443 21,746 
Winter maintenance 20,400 20,400 8,892 11,508 
Traffic services 5,500 5,500 816 4,684 
Administration 149,091 149,091 148,049 1,042 
Fringe benefits 232,992 232,992 201,917 31,075 

Total expenditures 833,500 833,500 735,499 98,001 

Net Change in Fund Balance 110,542 110,542 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 383,986 383,986 383,986 

Fund Balance - End of year 383,986  $ 	383,986  $ 	494,528 $ I 10,542 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Required Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Major Special Revenue Funds 

Solid Waste Fund 
Year Ended dune 30, 2017 

Revenue 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Property taxes $ 	1,318,745 $ 	1,318,745 $ 	1,267,092 $ 	(51,653) 
Investment income 2,000 2,000 2,583 583 
Other revenue - Other miscellaneous 

income 1,000 1,000 771 (229) 

Total revenue 1,321,745 1,321,745 1,270,446 (51,299) 

Expenditures - Current - Public works 
Rubbish disposal 1,451,928 1,451,928 1,287,970 163,958 

Other public works activities #1 143,163 143,163 120,505 22,658 

Total expenditures 1,595,091 1,595,091 1,408,475 186,616 

Net Change in Fund Balance (273,346) (273,346) (138,029) 135,317 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 442,075 442,075 442,075 

Fund Balance - End of year 168,729  $ 	168,729  $ 	304,046 $ 	135,317 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Act 302 Training Fund 
Year Ended dune 30, 2017 

Revenue 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

State-shared revenue and grants 7,500 $ 	7,500 $ 	5,622 $ 	(1,878) 

Other revenue 500 500 240 (260) 

Total revenue 8,000 8,000 5,862 (2,138) 

Expenditures - Current - Public safety 10,300 10,300 9,140 1,160 

Net Change in Fund Balance (2,300) (2,300) (3,278) (978) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 51,777 51,777 51,777 

Fund Balance - End of year 49,477  $ 	49,477  $ 	48,499  $ 	(978)  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Grants Fund 
Year Ended dune 30, 2017 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Revenue - Federal grants 7,000 $ 	48,848 $ 	25,227 $ 	(23,62 I ) 

Expenditures - Current - General 
government 7,000 48,848 31,504 17,344 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (6,277) (6,277) 

Other Financing Sources - Transfers in 6,500 6,500 

Net Change in Fund Balance 223 223 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 728 728 728 

Fund Balance - End of year 728  $ 	728  $ 	951 $ 	223 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

911 Emergency Service Fund 
Year Ended dune 30, 2017 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Revenue - Other revenue 52,500 $ 	52,500 $ 	98,249 45,749 

Expenditures - Current 
General government 33,357 33,357 26,225 7,132 

Public safety 67,500 67,500 76,083 (8,583) 

Total expenditures 100,857 100,857 102,308 (1,451) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (48,357) (48,357) (4,059) 44,298 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 177,668 177,668 177,668 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	129,3 I 1  $ 	129,311  $ 	173,609  $ 	44,298  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 

Drug Enforcement Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Revenue - Other revenue 1,000 1,000 $ 	10,396 9,396 

Expenditures - Current - Public safety 4,500 4,500 4,501 (I) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (3,500) (3,500) 5,895 9,395 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 13,791 13,791 13,791 

Fund Balance - End of year 10,291  $ 	10,29I  $ 	19,686  $ 	9,395  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Other Supplemental Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds 
Parkway Beautification Fund 

Year Ended dune 30, 2017 

Revenue 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Investment income 3,550 3,550 680 $ 	(2,870) 

Other revenue 46,800 46,800 59,778 12,978 

Total revenue 50,350 50,350 60,458 10,108 

Expenditures - Current - Recreation and 
culture 50,350 50,350 44,087 6,263 

Other Financing Uses - Transfers out (8,000) (8,000) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (8,000) 8,371 16,371 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 156,116 156,116 156,116 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	156,116  $ 	148,116  $ 	164,487  $ 	16,371  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Capital Projects Fund 

Municipal Improvement Fund 
Year Ended dune 30, 2017 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Revenue - Other revenue 27,140 $ 	27,140 27,317 177 

Expenditures - Current - Community and 
economic development 82,084 120,984 80,851 40,133 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (54,944) (93,844) (53,534) 40,310 

Other Financing Sources - Transfers in 50,000 52,400 2,400 (50,000) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (4,944) (41,444) (51,134) (9,690) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 150,753 150,753 150,753 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	145,809  $ 	109,309  $ 	99,619  $ 	(9,690)  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Budgetary Funds 

Local Streets Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Revenue 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

State-shared revenue and grants $ 	320,000 $ 	320,000 $ 	329,017 $ 	9,017 
Investment income 100 100 (100) 
Other revenue 67,000 67,000 38,721 (28,279) 

Total revenue 387,100 387,100 367,738 (19,362) 

Expenditures - Current 
Public works: 

Routine maintenance 258,111 258,111 223,802 34,309 
Traffic services 24,000 16,500 3,836 12,664 
Winter maintenance 38,600 38,600 32,390 6,210 
Administration 174,267 174,267 170,467 3,800 

Fringe benefits 211,673 211,673 168,767 42,906 

Total public works 706,651 699,151 599,262 99,889 

Municipal improvement 101,500 109,000 91,086 17,914 

Total expenditures 808,151 808,151 690,348 117,803 

Excess of Expenditures Over Revenue (421,051) (421,051) (322,610) 98,441 

Other Financing Sources - Transfers in 115,000 115,000 115,000 

Net Change in Fund Balance (306,051) (306,051) (207,610) 98,441 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 749,252 749,252 749,252 - 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	443,201  $ 	443,201  $ 	541,642  $ 	98,441  

Note - As a result of GASB Statement No. 54, the Local Streets Fund is now merged with the 
General Fund for reporting purposes but is budgeted as a separate fund. 

95 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Budgetary Funds 

Cable Franchise Fund 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Revenue - Investment income 3,500 $ 	3,500 $ 	3,585 $ 85 

Net Change in Fund Balance 3,500 3,500 3,585 85 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 537,541 537,541 537,541 

Fund Balance - End of year $ 	541,041  $ 	541,041  $ 	541,126  $ 85 

Note - As a result of GASB Statement No. 54, the Cable Franchise Fund is now merged with the 
General Fund for reporting purposes but is budgeted as a separate fund. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Other Supplemental Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nonmajor Debt Service Fund 
2015 Road Bond Debt Service Fund 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Original Budget 

(Unaudited) 

Amended 

Budget 

(Unaudited) Actual 

Variance with 

Amended 

Budget 

Revenue - Property taxes $ 	976,800 $ 	976,800 $ 	927,547 $ 	(49,253) 

Expenditures - Current - Debt service 960,250 960,250 961,250 (1,000) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 16,550 16,550 (33,703) (50,253) 

Fund Balance - Beginning of year 490 490 490 

Fund Balance - End of year 17,040  $ 	17,040  $ 	(33,213)  $ 	(50,253) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Local Streets Fund 

Fund-based Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2017 

Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 	495,376 
Receivables 63,645 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,193 

Total assets 564,214 

Liabilities 
Accounts payable 6,168 

Accrued liabilities and other 10,946 

Provision for claims 5,458 

Total liabilities 22,572 

Fund Balance - Committed $ 	541,642 

Note - As a result of GASB Statement No. 54, the Local Streets Fund is now merged with the General 
Fund for reporting purposes. The Local Streets Fund balance sheet is shown for supplemental purposes. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Other Supplemental Information 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
Fund Descriptions 

Parking Meter Utility Fund - To account for the City's parking meters and costs associated 
with maintaining the meters. Funding is provided by parking meter fees and violation fees. 

Boat Dock Rental Fund - To account for boat dock rental units that are available to the 

citizens of the City of Grosse Pointe Woods on an annual basis. Boat launch ramps and other 

watercraft maintenance services are available. 

Commodity Sales Fund - To record the purchases and sale of rubbish bags and other 

miscellaneous items that the municipality holds for resale. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Net Position 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
dune 30, 2017 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Parking Meter 

Utility Fund 

Boat Dock 

Rental Fund 

Commodity 

Sales Fund Total 

Cash and investments $ 	1,524,858 $ 	496,160 $ 	87,988 $ 	2,109,006 

Accrued interest receivable 2,419 244 2,663 

Due from other funds 50,000 50,000 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,702 1,702 

Total current assets 1,528,979 496,404 137,988 2,163,371 

Noncurrent assets - Depreciable capital 
assets - Capital assets 199,885 141,620 341,505 

Total assets I ,728,864 638,024 137,988 2,504,876 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - 
Deferred outflows related to pensions 49,525 49,525 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 687 577 - 1,264 

Due to other funds - 11,117 11,117 

Accrued liabilities and other 4,639 1,485 6,124 

Compensated absences 10,761 10,761 

Total current liabilities 16,087 13,179 29,266 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 3,326 - 3,326 

Net pension liability 121,736 - 121,736 

Other postemployment benefit 
obligations 434,376 434,376 

Total noncurrent liabilities 559,438 559,438 

Total liabilities 575,525 13,179 588,704 

Deferred Inflows of Resources - 

Deferred inflows related to pensions 30,785 30,785 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 199,885 141,620 - 341,505 

Unrestricted 972,194 483,225 137,988 1,593,407 

Total net position $ 	1,172,079  $ 	624,845  $ 	137,988  $ 	1,934,912  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and 

Changes in Net Position 
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Operating Revenue 

Parking Meter 

Utility Fund 

Boat Dock 

Rental Fund 

Commodity 

Sales Fund Total 

Fees and violations $ 	442,865 $ 	- $ $ 	442,865 
Dockings and launching fees 142,843 142,843 
Commodity sales - 27,679 27,679 
Other revenue 3,778 3,778 

Total operating revenue 446,643 142,843 27,679 617,165 

Operating Expenses 
Operation and maintenance 17,644 52,125 35,713 105,482 
General and administrative 89,629 5,000 - 94,629 
Depreciation 28,784 32,051 60,835 

Total operating expenses 136,057 89,176 35,713 260,946 

Operating Income 310,586 53,667 (8,034) 356,219 

Nonoperating Revenue 6,179 763 6,942 

Change in Net Position 316,765 54,430 (8,034) 363,161 

Net Position - Beginning of year 855,314 570,415 146,022 1,571,751 

Net Position - End of year $ 	1,172,079  $ 	624,845  $ 	137,988 $ 	1,934,912 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Parking Meter 

Utility Fund 

Boat Dock 

Rental Fund 

Commodity 

Sales Fund Total 

Receipts from customers $ 	446,643 $ 	142,843 $ 	27,679 $ 	617,165 
Payments to suppliers (4,979) (29,710) (35,713) (70,402) 
Payments to employees (139,920) (29,035) (168,955) 
Internal activity - Payments to other funds (25,000) (1,183) (26,183) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 276,744 82,915 (8,034) 351,625 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing 
Activities - Transfers from other funds (50,000) (50,000) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities - Interest 
received on investments 6,281 592 6,873 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash 
Equivalents 283,025 83,507 (58,034) 308,498 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 1,241,833 412,653 146,022 1,800,508 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 1,524,858 $ 	496,160 $ 	87,988 $ 2,109,006 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to 
Net Cash from Operating Activities 

Operating income (loss) $ 	310,586 $ 	53,667 $ 	(8,034) $ 	356,219 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 

(loss) to net cash from operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 28,784 32,051 60,835 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Prepaids (114) (114) 
Accounts payable (4,865) (1,965) (6,830) 
Due to others (1,183) (1,183) 
Accrued and other liabilities (57,647) 345 (57,302) 

Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities $ 	276,744 $ 	82,915 $ 	(8,034) $ 	351,625 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Other Supplemental Information 

Internal Service Funds 
Fund Descriptions 

Motor Vehicle Fund - This fund accounts for the costs of acquiring and maintaining City-
operated vehicles used by various city departments. The actual cost of labor and materials is 
reimbursed to this fund by the user departments through fees. 

Workers' Compensation Fund - This fund was created to identify all costs associated with 
operating a self-insured workers' compensation fund. Funds are accumulated via transfers from 
other governmental and proprietary fund types and interest made on surplus earnings. 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Other Supplemental Information 

Combining Statement of Net Position 
Internal Service Funds 

June 30, 2017 

Assets 
Current assets: 

Motor Vehicle 

Fund 

Workers' 

Compensation 

Fund Total 

Cash and investments 2,300,803 $ 	283,832 $ 	2,584,635 
Accrued interest receivable 1,588 819 2,407 

Prepaid expenses and other assets 3,583 52,476 56,059 

Total current assets 2,305,974 337,127 2,643,101 

Noncurrent assets - Depreciable capital assets 1,189,149 1,189,149 

Total assets 3,495,123 337,127 3,832,250 

Deferred Outflows of Resources - Deferred outflows 
related to pensions 311,651 311,651 

Liabilities 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts payable 15,391 1,566 16,957 

Accrued liabilities and other 6,174 6,174 

Compensated absences 25,497 25,497 
Provision for claims 1,772 247,457 249,229 

Current portion of long-term debt 235,660 235,660 

Total current liabilities 284,494 249,023 533,517 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Net pension liability 804,422 804,422 
Other postemployment benefit obligations 655,787 655,787 

Long-term debt 303,926 303,926 

Total noncurrent liabilities 1,764,135 1,764,135 

Total liabilities 2,048,629 249,023 2,297,652 

Deferred Inflows of Resources - Deferred inflows related 
to pensions 206,415 206,415 

Net Position 
Net investment in capital assets 649,563 649,563 

Unrestricted 902,167 88,104 990,271 

Total net position $ 	1,551,730  $ 	88,104  $ 	1,639,834  

104 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in 

Net Position 
Internal Service Funds 

Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Operating Revenue 

Motor Vehicle 

Fund 

Workers' 

Compensation 

Fund Total 

Other revenue 2,000 $ 	- $ 	2,000 

Charges to other funds 614,700 118,847 733,547 

Total operating revenue 616,700 118,847 735,547 

Operating Expenses 
Cost of insurance claims 5,443 276,258 281,701 
Vehicle operation and maintenance 424,717 424,717 
General and administrative 324,786 74,370 399,156 

Depreciation 215,895 ••• 215,895 

Total operating expenses 970,841 350,628 1,321,469 

Operating Loss (354,141) (231,781) (585,922) 

Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 
Investment income 10,718 2,193 12,911 
Interest expense (16,967) (16,967) 

Loss on sale of assets (3,052) (3,052) 

Total nonoperating (expense) 
revenue (9,301) 2,193 (7,108) 

Change in Net Position (363,442) (229,588) (593,030) 

Net Position - Beginning of year 1,915,172 317,692 2,232,864 

Net Position - End of year $ 	1,551,730  $ 	88,104  $ 	1,639,834  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Cash Flows 

Internal Service Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 

Motor Vehicle 

Fund 

Workers' 

Compensation 

Fund Total 

Receipts from customers $ 	2,000 $ 	- $ 	2,000 
Receipts from interfund services and reimbursements 614,759 118,970 733,729 
Payments to suppliers (293,389) (983) (294,372) 
Payments to employees (432,447) (76,420) (508,867) 
Claims paid (3,724) (172,514) (176,238) 
Other receipts 129,169 129,169 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities 16,368 (130,947) (114,579) 

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities 
Debt proceeds 123,610 123,610 
Proceeds from sales of capital assets 30,876 30,876 
Purchase of capital assets (148,119) (148,119) 
Principal and interest paid on capital debt (249,804) (249,804) 

Net cash used in capital and related financing 
activities (243,437) (243,437) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities - Interest received on 
investments 10,639 2,245 12,884 

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (216,430) (128,702) (345,132) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 2,517,233 412,534 2,929,767 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 	2,300,803 $ 	283,832 $ 	2,584,635 

Balance Sheet Classification of Cash and Cash 
Equivalents - Cash and investments $ 	2,300,803 $ 	283,832 $ 	2,584,635 

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash from 
Operating Activities 

Operating loss $ 	(354,141) $ 	(231,781) $ 	(585,922) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash from 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 215,895 215,895 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 

Due from others 59 123 182 
Prepaids (258) (258) 
Accounts payable (13,786) (983) (14,769) 
Estimated claims liability 1,719 101,694 103,413 

Accrued and other liabilities 166,880 166,880 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities $ 	16,368 $ 	(130,947) $ 	( I 14,579) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Other Supplemental Information 

Fiduciary Funds 
Fund Descriptions 

Trust funds are used to account for assets held by the government in a trustee capacity. Agency 
funds are used to account for the assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, 
private organizations, other governments, and/or other funds. 

Agency Funds - These funds account for the deposit of monies held by the city government in a 

trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and/or 

other funds. 

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds - The City operates one retirement 

system, one supplemental annuity fund, and one retiree healthcare account, which are 
accounted for in three separate funds. These funds cover all full-time employees of the City. 

107 



City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Other Supplemental Information 

Statement of Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 

June 30, 2017 

Assets 

Pension Trust Funds 

Pension Fund 

Supplemental 

Annuity Fund 

Other 

Postemployment 

Benefit Trust 

Fund 

Total Pension 

Trust Funds 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 	767,760 $ 	32,852 $ 	582,594 $ 	1,383,206 
Investments: 

Stocks 19,965,815 854,659 20,820,474 
Corporate bonds 7,245,739 7,245,739 
Pooled investments 9,635,253 722,610 10,357,863 

Receivables - Accrued interest 
receivable 297 13 310 

Total assets 37,614,864 1,610,134 582,594 39,807,592 

Liabilities - Accounts payable 10 10 

Net Position Held in Trust for Pension 
and Other Employee Benefits $ 37,614,854  $ 	1,610,134  $ 	582,594  $ 39,807,582  
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Other Supplemental Information 

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position 
Fiduciary Funds 

Year Ended dune 30, 2017 

Additions 
Investment income: 

Pension Fund 

Supplemental 

Annuity Fund 

Other 

Postemployment 

Benefit Trust 

Fund Total 

Interest and dividends $ 	503,034 $ 	20,088 $ 	1,190 $ 	524,312 

Net increase in fair market value 3,501,943 141,640 3,025 3,646,608 

Net investment income 4,004,977 161,728 4,215 4,170,920 

Contributions: 
Employer 1,076,052 290,000 1,472,713 2,838,765 

Employee 243,096 64,057 307,153 

Net contributions 1,319,148 290,000 1,536,770 3,145,918 

Total additions 5,324,125 451,728 1,540,985 7,316,838 

Deductions 
Benefit payments 3,217,569 257,534 1,422,713 4,897,816 

Administrative expenses 35,374 3,307 39 38,720 

Total deductions 3,252,943 260,841 1,422,752 4,936,536 

Net Increase in Net Position Held in 
Trust 2,071,182 190,887 118,233 2,380,302 

Net Position Held in Trust for Pension 
and Other Employee Benefits - 
Beginning of year 35,543,672 1,419,247 464,361 37,427,280 

Net Position Held in Trust for Pension 
and Other Employee Benefits - 
End of year $ 37,614,854  $ 	1,610,134  $ 	582,594  $ 39,807,582 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Combining Statement of Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds 
June 30, 2017 

Assets - Cash and cash equivalents 

Wayne County 

Tax Fund 

Cash Bond 

Escrow Fund Total 

$ 	41,148 $ 	21,358 $ 	62,506 

Liabilities 
Due to other governmental units $ 	41,148 $ 	 - $ 	41,148 

Court bonds payable 21,358 21,358 

Total liabilities $ 	41,148 $ 	21,358 $ 	62,506 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Other Supplemental Information 
Schedule of Changes in Assets and Liabilities 

Agency Funds 
Year Ended June 30, 2017 

Wayne County Tax Fund 

Balance at 

July I , 2016 Additions Reductions 

Balance at 

June 30, 2017 

Assets - Cash and investments $ 	22,210 $ 27,782,329 $ (27,763,391) $ 	41,148 

Liabilities - Due to other governmental 
units $ 	22,210 $ 27,782,329 $ (27,763,391) $ 	41,148 

Cash Bond Escrow Fund 

Assets - Cash and investments 5,618 $ 	143,876 $ 	(128,136) $ 	21,358 

Liabilities - Court bonds payable 5,618 $ 	143,876 $ 	(128,136) $ 	21,358 

Agency Funds 

Assets - Cash and cash equivalents 27,828 $ 27,926,205 $ (27,891,527) $ 	62,506 

Liabilities 
Due to other governmental units 22,210 $ 	27,782,329 $ 	(27,763,391) $ 	41,148 
Court bonds payable 5,618 21,740 (6,000) 21,358 

Total liabilities $ 	27,828 $ 27,804,069 $ (27,769,391) $ 	62,506 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Statistical and Continuing Disclosure Contents 

Statistical Information  

Statistical information contained herein relates to the physical, economic, social, and political 
characteristics of the City. It is designed to provide a broader and more complete understanding 
of the City and its financial affairs than is possible from the financial statements, notes, and 

supporting schedules presented in the financial section. 

I. Financial Trend Information 
These schedules contain certain trend information to help the reader understand how the 
City's financial position and performance have changed over time. 

Net Position by Component 115-116 
Changes in Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities, and Primary 

Government Net Position 117-120 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 121-122* 

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 123-124 

2. Revenue Capacity Information 
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the City's 
ability to generate its main income source - property taxes. 

General Governmental Revenue History 125 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 126* 
Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 127* 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 128-129* 

Principal Property Taxpayers (Major Taxpayers) 130* 

3. Debt Capacity Information 
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City's 

current level of outstanding debt and the ability to issue additional debt in the future. 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 131-132 
Pledged-revenue Coverage 133 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 134* 
Direct and Overlapping Debt 135 

Legal Debt Margin 136-137 

4. Demographic and Economic Information 
These schedules present various demographic and economic indicators for the reader to 
understand the environment within the City that affect the City's financial statements. 

Demographic and Economic Statistics 	 138 

Principal Employers 	 139* 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Statistical and Continuing Disclosure Contents (Continued) 

5. Operating Information 

These schedules contain information about the City's operations and resources to help the 
reader understand how the City's financial information relates to the services the City 
provides and the activities it performs. 

Full-time Equivalent Government Employees by Function 140 
Operating Indicators by Function 141-142 
Capital Asset Statistics by Function 143 

Continuing Disclosure  

Continuing disclosure information contained herein complies with Rule I 5c2-12, a federal 
regulation promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, designed to improve 

disclosure practices in the municipal bond market. Municipal bonds issued after July 3, 1995 are 
subject to this mandatory requirement. 

Continuing disclosure requires certain annual financial information and operating data, including 
audited financial statements for the preceding fiscal year. This information is generally consistent 
with the information contained or cross-referenced in the official statement relating to the 
bonds. 

State-shared Revenue 	 144 
Gas and Weight Taxes 	 145 
Labor Agreements 	 146 
Water and Sewer Customers and Consumption 	 147 
Historical Net Earnings, Cash Flow, and Debt Service Coverage 	 148 
Water Usage and Revenue of the Ten Largest Customers 	 149 
Metered Water Rates 	 150 
State Equalized Value and Taxable Value by Class and Use - Metered Water Rates 	151 

* Indicates schedules included in statistical information that fulfill continuing disclosure 
requirements 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Governmental Activities 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Net investment in capital assets $ 	24,238,535 $ 	25,835,044 $ 	26,744,399 $ 	26,9 I 8,168 $ 	26,908,007 

Restricted 2,018,840 782,422 727,050 772,268 923,644 

Unrestricted 4,549,297 1,596,786 64,083 (2,595,090) (4,608,002) 

Total net position $ 	30,806,672 $ 	28,214,252 $ 	27,535,532 $ 	25,095,346 $ 	23,223,649 

Business-type Activities 

Invested in capital assets - 

Net of related debt $ 	18,626,103 $ 	18,921,503 $ 	18,573,221 $ 	18,345,231 $ 	18,585,076 

Restricted 453,789 453,789 453,789 425,500 397,500 

Unrestricted 1,484,347 1,191,484 1,802,604 2,461,914 3,213,270 

Total net position $ 	20,564,239 $ 	20,566,776 $ 	20,829,614 $ 	21,232,645 $ 	22,195,846 

Primary Government in Total 

Invested in capital assets - 

Net of related debt $ 	42,864,638 $ 	44,756,547 $ 	45,317,620 $ 	45,263,399 $ 	45,493,083 

Restricted 2,472,629 1,236,211 1,180,839 1,197,768 1,321,144 

Unrestricted 6,033,644 2,788,270 1,866,687 (133,176) (1,394,732) 

Total net position $ 	51,370,911 $ 	48,781,028 $ 	48,365,146 $ 	46,327,991 $ 	45,419,495 

Source: City annual financial statements 
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Financial Trend Information 
Net Position by Component 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ 	27,096,926 $ 	26,303,935 $ 	27,569,120 $ 	25,064,363 $ 	22,206,276 

924,572 835,294 7,500,582 2,946,510 3,380,839 

(6,341,023) (7,745,764) (28,560,231) (26,399,199) (26,770,331) 

$ 	21,680,475 $ 	19,393,465 $ 	6,509,471 $ 	1,611,674 $ 	(1,183,216) 

$ 	18,451,087 $ 	18,458,605 $ 	18,185,073 $ 	18,154,537 $ 	18,507,826 

349,500 319,000 306,500 256,000 223,500 

4,232,956 5,465,819 5,537,757 7,005,669 9,036,011 

$ 	23,033,543 $ 	24,243,424 $ 	24,029,330 $ 	25,416,206 $ 	27,767,337 

$ 	45,548,013 $ 	44,762,540 $ 	45,754,193 $ 	43,218,900 $ 	40,714,102 

1,274,072 1,154,294 7,807,082 3,202,510 3,604,339 

(2,108,067) (2,279,945) (23,022,474) (19,393,530) (17,734,320) 

$ 	44,714,018 $ 	43,636,889 $ 	30,538,801 $ 	27,027,880 $ 	26,584,121 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Expenses 

Governmental activities: 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

General government $ 	2,924,641 $ 	4,609,178 $ 	3,042,077 $ 	3,422,593 $ 	3,092,280 

Public safety 5,990,280 7,525,431 7,899,396 7,912,560 7,153,532 

Public works 4,128,878 5,027,700 5,215,575 5,655,876 6,016,942 

Solid waste 1,473,425 1,366,272 1,315,293 1,087,987 1,121,417 

Municipal improvement 270,819 386,989 59,724 130,849 191,180 

Recreation and culture 2,040,528 2,370,954 2,181,206 1,967,708 1,717,327 

Interest on long-term debt 238,813 153,736 113,653 72,814 40,214 

Total governmental activities expenses 17,067,384 21,440,260 19,826,924 20,250,387 19,332,892 

Business-type activities: 

Water/Sewer 5,230,033 5,239,746 4,853,312 5,044,337 5,059,715 

Parking 293,746 316,991 241,562 198,866 237,150 

Boat dock 146,403 121,541 85,257 73,870 74,172 

Commodity sales 46,518 45,185 68,571 30,689 26,018 

Total business-type activities expenses 5,716,700 5,723,463 5,248,702 5,347,762 5,397,055 

Total primary government expenses 22,784,084 27,163,723 25,075,626 25,598,149 24,729,947 

Program Revenue 

Governmental activities: 

Charges for services: 

Municipal court 805,958 831,454 894,768 774,390 909,241 

Building inspections and related - - - 

Recreation and culture - 69,507 102,037 120,304 

Other activities 872,235 675,914 826,085 435,796 541,545 

Total charges for services 1,678,193 1,507,368 1,790,360 1,312,223 1,571,090 

Operating and capital grants and contributions 943,139 908,512 873,343 886,569 907,211 

Total governmental activities program 

revenue 2,621,332 2,415,880 2,663,703 2,198,792 2,478,301 

Business-type Activities 

Charges for services: 

Water/Sewer 4,594,730 4,878,913 4,856,083 5,405,036 5,976,950 

Parking 293,453 242,765 221,657 201,166 193,812 

Boat dock 162,468 146,872 141,338 132,715 130,778 

Commodity sales - 48,410 45,560 40,225 40,918 

Capital grants and contributions 731,943 146,962 - - 

Total business-type program revenue 5,782,594 5,463,922 5,264,638 5,779,142 6,342,458 

Total primary government program 

revenue 8,403,926 7,879,802 7,928,341 7,977,934 8,820,759 

Net (Expense) Revenue 

Governmental activities (14,446,052) (19,024,380) (17,163,221) (18,051,595) (16,854,591) 

Business-type activities 65,894 (259,541) 15,936 431,380 945,403 

Total primary government net expense $ 	(14,380,158) $ 	(19,283,921) $ 	(17,147,285) $ 	(17,620,215) $ 	(15,909,188) 

Source: City annual financial statements 
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Financial Trend Information 
Changes in Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities, 

and Primary Government Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ 	3,207,643 $ 	3,130,925 $ 	2,494,362 $ 	3,586,605 $ 	3,508,241 

6,869,020 6,553,852 7,777,514 9,321,147 8,318,311 

5,841,495 6,091,819 6,126,373 6,431,753 6,720,230 

1,152,236 1,150,743 1,193,308 I ,126,483 1, 108,370 

63,982 307,290 554,163 575,094 260,432 

1,827,426 1,554,898 1,773,961 1,855,328 1,905,019 

17,369 830,255 207,605 158,803 

18,979,171 19,619,782 19,919,681 23,104,015 21,979,406 

5,432,429 5,420,387 5,919,315 6,053,295 5,897,189 

207,597 195,791 246,050 304,826 136,057 

69,894 97,519 96,733 104,778 89,176 

40,085 - 36,955 23,940 35,713 

5,750,005 5,713,697 6,299,053 6,486,839 6,158,135 

24,729,176 25,333,479 26,218,734 29,590,854 28,137,541 

667,782 593,962 455,417 401,218 489,299 

119,399 107,161 I 11,904 116,383 146,619 

639,214 614,984 321,151 379,099 364,232 

1,426,395 1,316,107 888,472 896,700 1,000,150 

912,762 943,540 1,091,214 1,009,509 1,306,687 

2,339,157 2,259,647 1,979,686 1,906,209 2,306,837 

6,144,410 6,339,551 6,241,351 7,202,849 7,818,095 

301,696 292,825 454,533 439,720 446,643 

129,805 126,052 140,986 150,625 142,843 

37,922 34,214 33,075 30,392 27,679 

- - - 

6.613,833 6,792,642 6,869,945 7,823,586 8,435,260 

8,952,990 9,052,289 8,849,631 9,729,795 10,742,097 

(16,640,014) (17,360,135) (17,939,995) (21,197,806) ( I 9,672,569) 

863,828 1,078,945 570,892 1,336,747 2,277,125 

$ 	(15,776,186) $ 	(16,281,190) $ 	(17,369,103) $ 	(19,861,059) $ 	(17,395,444) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

General Revenue 

Governmental activities: 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Property taxes $ 	15,551,944 $ 	14,468,721 $ 	15,002,660 $ 	13,536,960 $ 	12,817,647 
State-shared revenue 1,667,431 1,645,722 1,391,898 1,420,431 1,482,102 
Investment earnings 733,693 153,512 44,655 63,272 63,694 
Donations - 

Franchise fees 238,054 271,953 295,688 320,426 262,837 
Other - - 234,820 368,060 
Gain on sale of fixed assets 

Transfers (802,000) (218,060) (250,400) 35,500 (11,446) 

Total governmental activities 17,389,122 16,321,848 16,484,501 15,611,409 14,982,894 

Business-type activities: 

Unrestricted investment earnings 79,589 21,534 11,960 7,151 6,352 
Other _ - 

Transfers 802,000 218,060 250,400 (35,500) 11,446 

Total business-type activities 881,589 239,594 262,360 (28,349) 17,798 

Total primary government 18,270,711 16,561,442 16,746,861 15,583,060 15,000,692 

Change in Net Position 

Governmental activities 2,943,070 (2,702,532) (678,720) (2,440,186) (1,871,697) 
Business-type activities 947,483 (19,947) 278,296 403,031 963,201 

Total primary government 3,890,553 $ 	(2,722,479) $ 	(400,424) $ 	(2,037,155) $ 	(908,496) 

Source: City annual financial statements 
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Financial Trend Information 
Changes in Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities, 

and Primary Government Net Position 
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Continued) 

(Accrual Basis of Accounting) 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

12,869,618 $ 	12,971,861 $ 	12,089,662 $ 	13,450,544 $ 	14,229,532 
1,500,662 1,521,267 1,568,207 1,640,461 1,564,983 

27,817 46,301 43,238 82,738 38,764 

380,964 340,268 315,723 427,964 379,362 
287,779 301,260 507,807 627,485 665,038 

- - 7,850 23,684 
30,000 (107,832) - 

15,096,840 15,073,125 14,532,487 16,252,876 16,877,679 

3,869 21,104 28,735 50,129 74,006 
2,000 - - 

(30,000) 107,832 

(26,131) 130,936 28,735 50,129 74,006 

15,070,709 15,204,061 14,561,222 16,303,005 16,951,685 

(1,543,174) (2,287,010) (3,407,508) (4,944,930) (2,794,890) 
837,697 1,209,881 599,627 1,386,876 2,351,131 

(705,477) $ 	(1,077,129) $ 	(2,807,88 I ) $ 	(3,558,054) $ 	(443,759) 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

General Fund 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011* 2012* 

Nonspendable $ 	 - $ 	37,750 $ 	99,767 $ 	6,111 $ 	4,325 

Committed - - 125,329 143,811 

Assigned 949,395 1,198,046 

Unassigned - - 3,896,333 3,853,739 

Unreserved: 

Designated 673,600 - 
Undesignated 2,367,734 2,311,090 3,205,975 

Total General Fund 3,041,334 2,348,840 3,305,742 4,977,168 5,199,921 

All Other Governmental Funds 

Designated: 

Special Revenue Funds 77,609 247,647 320,417 

Capital Project Funds 19,060 63,850 - 

Nonspendable - - 19,390 

Restricted 765,921 905,950 

Committed - - 14,850 

Assigned - - 447,234 313,424 

Reserved - 

Unreserved, reported in: 

Special Revenue Funds 2,390,161 1,223,726 1,124,603 - 

Capital Project Funds 210,272 167,083 116,162 

Debt Service Funds 1,176,240 1,180,314 763,214 - 

Total General Fund and all other 

governmental funds $ 	6,914,676 $ 	5,231,460 $ 	5,630,138 $ 	6,190,323 $ 	6,453,535 

Source: City annual financial statements 

* Fund balance classifications were changed as a result of implementation of GASB Statement No. 54. 
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Financial Trend Information 
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2013* 2014* 2015* 2016* 2017* 

$ 	121,380 $ 	138,757 $ 	104,203 $ 	79,148 $ 	94,419 

207,961 317,432 558,479 751,952 541,642 

1,751,490 953,821 1,027,515 707,910 748,464 

3,435,761 3,754,923 3,716,961 4,992,622 6,255,011 

5,516,592 5,164,933 5,407,158 6,531,632 7,639,536 

- - 

- - - 

17,002 13,365 10,438 11,153 

924,572 829,037 7,488,572 2,937,106 5,816,063 

17,750 33,500 66,700 16,770 23,158 

375,123 1,152,784 935,005 1,876,521 231,432 

- - 

(33,213) 

$ 	6,834,037 $ 	7,197,256 $ 	13,910,800 $ 	11,372,467 $ 	13,688,129 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Revenue 

Fiscal Year 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Property taxes $ 	15,082,641 $ 	14,093,330 $ 	14,471,027 $ 	13,525,921 $ 	12,816,628 
State and local sources 2,481,832 2,382,912 2,197,887 2,209,151 2,220,847 
Intergovernmental taxes - - - - - 
Delinquent interest and collection fee income 395,910 293,797 51 1,840 - - 
Federal financial assistance - 31,646 11,090 8,083 7,621 
Other revenue 2,193,987 1,986,433 2,153,729 1,968,095 2,363,851 
Investment income 731,478 143,074 43,829 54,524 54,762 
Donations - - - - 

Total revenue 20,885,848 18,931,192 19,389,402 17,765,774 17,463,709 

Expenditures 
Current: 

General government 3,749,368 3,764,577 2,580,898 2,728,228 2,726,596 
Public safety 4,717,501 4,866,702 5,640,372 6,067,173 5,723,312 
Public works 964,247 887,819 950,521 5,618,581 5,824,444 
Recreation and culture 1,686,488 1,784,052 1,682,472 1,581,537 1,353,885 
Miscellaneous 7,197,683 5,467,476 5,529,332 

Capital outlay 270,819 1,526,933 677,778 247,983 209,044 
Debt administration: 

Principal 2,823,747 1,552,022 1,539,247 1,152,522 1,185,797 
Interest 260,502 157,014 117,379 72,597 43,949 

Total expenditures 21,670,355 20,006,595 18,717,999 17,468,621 17,067,027 

Excess of Revenue (Under) Over Expenditures (784,507) (1,075,403) 671,403 297,153 396,682 

Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

Debt issuance/proceeds from sale of cap assets - - 500 
Transfers in 3,170,034 2,325,500 1,753,164 1,525,287 1,012,880 
Transfers out (3,972,034) (3,031,190) (2,038,124) (1,384,779) (1,024,326) 

Total other financing (uses) sources (802,000) (705,690) (284,960) 140,508 (10,946) 

Net Change in Fund Balances (1,586,507) (1,781,093) 386,443 437,661 385,736 

Fund Balances - Beginning of year - As restated 8,501,183 * 7,024,788 5,243,695 5,630,138 6,067,799 

Fund Balances - End of year $ 	6,914,676 $ 	5,243,695 $ 	5,630,138 $ 	6,067,799 $ 	6,453,535 

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital expenditures 16.10% 9.08% 9.16% 7.16% 7.30% 

* Beginning fund balance for fiscal years 2008 and 2009 was restated. See Note I for details. 
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Financial Trend Information 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) 

(Unaudited) 

Fiscal Year 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ 	12,868,677 $ 	12,971,026 $ 	12,089,662 $ 	13,450,544 $ 	13,942,867 
2,263,244 2,328,022 2,389,342 2,649,970 2,723,847 

- - - - 
- - - 

6,800 6,483 7,693 - 25,227 
2,166,176 2,088,772 1,903,267 2,057,149 2,272,146 

21,988 34,791 26,214 70,506 27,286 
- - - 

17,326,885 17,429,094 16,416,178 18,228,169 18,991,373 

2,884,058 2,773,796 2,864,850 2,603,109 2,645,589 
5,453,295 5,480,645 5,397,800 5,322,568 5,467,346 
5,905,623 6,202,883 6,465,890 10,813,928 8,840,961 
1,421,895 1,337,255 1,373,591 1,367,357 1,463,628 

124,082 334,617 498,095 451,935 171,937 

1,173,754 828,847 226,874 750,000 
14,676 207,605 211,250 

16,977,383 16,958,043 16,827,100 20,766,502 19,550,711 

349,502 471,051 (410,922) (2,538,333) (559,338) 

1,000 - 7,124,466 - 2,875,000 

385,501 660,919 231,416 364,163 16,900 
(355,501) (768,751) (231,416) (364,163) (16,900) 

31,000 (107,832) 7,124,466 2,875,000 

380,502 363,219 6,713,544 (2,538,333) 2,315,662 

6,453,535 6,834,037 7,197,256 13,910,800 11,372,467 

$ 	6,834,037 $ 	7,197,256 $ 	13,910,800 $ 	11,372,467 $ 	13,688,129 

7.09% 5.01% 1.44% 1.34% 5.90% 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Revenue Capacity Information 
General Governmental Revenue History 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 

Year 

General 

Property 

Taxes 

Inter- 

governmental 

Revenue 

Licenses 

and 

Permits 

Federal 

Financial 

Assistance 

Charges 

for 

Services 

Interest and 

Miscellaneous 

Total 

Revenue 

2008 $ 	15,082,641 $ 	2,481,832 $ 	395,910 $ 	- $ 	2,193,987 $ 	731,478 $ 	20,885,848 

2009 14,093,330 2,382,912 293,797 31,646 1,986,433 143,074 18,931,192 

2010 14,471,027 2,197,887 511,840 11,090 2,153,729 43,829 19,389,402 

2011 13,525,921 2,217,234 609,115 - 108,795 1,304,709 17,765,774 

2012 12,816,628 2,220,847 647,537 7,621 124,203 1,646,873 17,463,709 

2013 12,868,677 2,263,244 875,743 6,800 121,379 1,191,042 17,326,885 

2014 12,971,026 2,328,022 847,839 6,483 114,559 1,161,165 17,429,094 

2015 12,089,662 2,389,342 762,903 7,693 200,141 966,437 16,416,178 

2016 13,450,544 2,649,970 825,131 - 225,434 1,077,090 18,228,169 

2017 13,942,867 2,723,847 860,940 25,227 259,340 1,179,152 18,991,373 

Source: City annual financial statements 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Revenue Capacity Information 
Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Ten-year Comparison 
(Unaudited) 

Fiscal 

Year Ended 

June 30 

Property Tax 

Levy 

Current Tax 

Collections (I) 

Percent 

Collected 

Current 

Delinquent Tax 

Collections by 

Levy Year (2) 

Total Tax 

Collections 

Percent of Total 

Collections to 

Levy 

2008 $ 	14,931,695 $ 	14,474,262 96.94 $ 	446,046 $ 	14,920,308 99.92 
2009 14,249,802 13,789,085 96.77 460,717 14,249,802 100.00 
2010 14,465,586 13,993,400 96.74 472,187 14,465,587 100.00 
2011 12,964,347 12,565,830 96.93 398,518 12,964,347 100.00 
2012 12,178,436 11,860,159 97.39 318,277 12, I 78,436 100.00 
2013 I 1,994,577 11,722,371 97.73 272,206 11,994,577 100.00 
2014 12,364,679 12,083,808 97.73 280,870 12,364,678 100.00 
2015 11,986,716 11,460,229 95.61 526,487 11,986,716 100.00 
2016 13,131,261 12,483,896 95.07 647,365 13,131,261 100.00 
2017 14,037,134 13,307,362 94.80 726,581 14,033,943 99.98 

(I) Figure includes delinquent taxes turned over to Wayne County for collections on March I of each year. 

(2) Prior to 2004, the amount reported is adjusted for delinquent taxes collected for that year during subsequent years. 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Revenue Capacity Information 

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property 
Last Ten Years 

Taxable Value by Property Type (1) 

Real Property 

Taxable 

Value 

Estimated 	as a 

Tax 	 Tax Rate 	State Equalized 	Actual 	Percentage 

Year 	Residential 	Commercial 	Industrial 	Personal 	Total Value 	(Mills) 	Value 	 Value 	of Total 

2008 $ 	772,678,570 $ 	61,718,263 $ 	95,125 $ 	14,187,800 $ 	848,679,758 16.7917 $ 	925,563,656 $ 	1,851,127,312 45.85% 

2009 703,687,882 63,418,163 99,310 13,775,117 780,980,472 18.5417 800,477,026 1,600,954,052 48.78% 

2010 622,799,835 61,345,908 99,012 15,022,091 699,266,846 18.5417 725,639,050 1,451,278,100 48.18% 

2011 539,673,504 63,125,634 100,695 14,263,900 617,163,733 19.7082 636,476,684 1,272,953,368 48.48% 

2012 523,811,319 64,481,399 103,413 15,534,000 603,930,131 20.4542 623,040,680 1,246,081,360 48.47% 

2013 523,323,200 62,355,800 105,800 15,577,600 601,362,400 20.6834 638,890,901 1,277,781,802 47.06% 

2014 534,100,330 71,785,000 107,400 12,500,000 618,492,730 18.8883 681,439,327 1,362,878,654 45.38% 

2015 552,991,973 72,042,025 109,177 12,808,700 637,951,875 20.6091 742,311,865 1,484,623,730 42.97% 

2016 563,473,469 72,936,601 109,445 14,693,500 651,213,015 21.5685 793,579,200 1,587,158,400 41.03% 

2017 578,864,599 66,717,419 110,430 13,757,547 659,449,995 20.0671 842,847,660 1,685,695,320 39.12% 

(1) Under Michigan law, the revenue base is referred to as "taxable value." This amount represents assessed value (50% of true cash 

value), limited for each property by the lower of 5% or inflation. 

Taxes levied in a particular "tax year" become revenue in the subsequent fiscal year. 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Tax 

Year 

Millage Rates - Direct City Taxes (I) Overlapping Taxes 

General 

Operating Voted EMS 

Voted Park 

Bond 

Voted Road 

Bond 

Statutory 

Solid Waste 

Ch 20/21 

Milk River 

Drain 

Total 

Direct Taxes County H.C.M.A. 

2008 10.1847 0.3578 0.5665 1.8807 3.9986 16.9883 8.5120 0.2146 

2009 11.2957 0.3578 0,5665 1.8807 2.6320 16.7327 8.5120 0.2146 
2010 12.5012 0.3578 0.5665 1.8807 3.8050 19.1112 8.5120 0.2146 

2011 13.0012 0.3578 1.8807 4.4685 19.7082 8.5120 0.2146 

2012 13.5432 0.3578 2.0251 4.5281 20.4542 8.7120 0.2146 

2013 13.5212 0.5280 2.0251 4.5281 20.6024 8.7120 0.2146 
2014 14.1063 - - 2.0251 2.7340 18.8654 9.1220 0.2146 
2015 14.1051 0.3280 2.0251 4.1509 20.6091 9.1220 0.2146 

2016 13.8925 1.5000 2.0251 4.1509 21.5685 9.1220 0.2146 
2017 13.9732 1.5300 2.0251 2.6070 19.5953 9.1220 0.2141 

(I) Includes general operating, public safety, recreation, and culture 

(2) Previously termed homestead and nonhomestead 

Note: Michigan law restricts the maximum millage that may be levied by the City without a vote of our residents as follows: 

2006 	15.0469 	0.4476 	0.6100 
	

2.6859 	n/a 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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Revenue Capacity Information 
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates 

Last Ten Years 

Overlapping Taxes Total Tax Rate (2) 

Community 

College 

Grosse 

Pointe 

Library 

Intermediate 

School District 

School 

District 

Principal 

School 

District 

Nonprincipal Principal Nonprincipal 

2.4769 1.5412 3.4643 14.0165 26.2499 47.2138 59.4472 
2.4769 1.5412 3.4643 14.2900 26.3496 47.2907 59.3503 
2.4769 1.5412 3.4643 14.2900 26.3496 49.6102 61.6698 
2.2408 1.5412 3.4643 15.5790 26.6750 51.2601 62.3561 
2.2408 2.0012 3.4643 16.0882 26.7587 53.1753 63.8458 
3.2408 2.0412 3.4643 16.0890 26.7852 54.3643 65.0605 
3.2408 2.0512 3.4643 15.9166 26.7550 52.8749 63.7133 
3.2408 2.0712 3.4643 15.9166 26.7550 54.6386 65.4770 
3.2408 2.0613 3.4643 15.3770 27.3955 55.0485 67.0670 
3.2408 2.2186 3.4643 15.3770 27.3955 31.1500 31.1500 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Revenue Capacity Information 
Principal Property Taxpayers (Major Taxpayers) 

Current Year and Ten Years Ago 

Taxpayer 

Type of 

Business 

2017 

Taxable Value 

Percentage 

of Total City 	2007 

Value 	Taxable Value 

Percentage 

of Total 

I DRSN Real Estate GP LLC Apartment Complex $ 	13,037,084 0.020 	 n/a 0.00000 
2 Health Care Reit Inc Assisted Living 6,888,910 0.010 	$ 	5,992,520 0.00691 
3 Pointe Plaza Office Bldg 4,862,963 0.007 	4,208,970 0.00485 
4 Detroit Edison Utility 4,215,630 0.006 	3,423,370 0.00395 
5 Michigan Cons. Gas Co. Utility 2,690,887 0.004 	1,881,500 0.00217 
6 Lochmoor Club Private Club 1,670,000 0.003 	5,006,830 0.00577 
7 A H Peters Funeral Home Mortuary 1,476,200 0.002 	1,314,030 0.00151 
8 Grosse Pointe Hunt Club Private Club 1,355,000 0.002 	1,404,370 0.00162 
9 Kroger Co. of Mich. Grocery 1,200,000 0.002 	2,394,619 0.00276 

10 St John Health System Medical 1,177,224 0.002 	1,441,000 0.00166 

Total $ 	38,573,898 0.058 	$ 	27,067,209 0.03120 

Total City Taxable Value $ 659,449,995 $ 867,467,911 

Source: City of Grosse Pointe Woods Assessing Department records 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Governmental Activities 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

General obligation bonds (GOB) $ 	880,000 $ 	420,000 $ 

GOB installment note 

GOB contract - Wayne County Drain 5,771,683 4,679,661 3,560,414 2,407,892 1,222,095 

2015 Road Bonds Issue #1 

2015 Road Bonds Issue #2 

Installment loans - Vehicles 

Total 6,651,683 5,099,661 3,560,414 2,407,892 1,222,095 

Business-type Activities 

Installment purchase agreements 

2010 DWRF Bonds 1,976,488 2,723,141 4,195,364 

2012 SRF Bonds 

Revenue bonds 5,050,000 4,795,000 4,530,000 4,255,000 3,975,000 

Total 5,050,000 4,795,000 6,506,488 6,978,141 8,170,364 

Total debt of the government $ 	11,701,683 $ 	9,894,661 $ 	10,066,902 $ 	9,386,033 $ 	9,392,459 

Total taxable value (1) $ 	847,756,558 $ 	780,980,472 $ 	699,266,846 $ 	617,163,733 $ 	603,930,131 

Ratio of total debt to taxable value 1.38% 1.27% 1.44% 1.52% 1.56% 

Total population 17,080 17,080 17,080 16,135 16,135 

Total debt per capita $ 	685 $ 	579 $ 589 $ 582 $ 	582 

(I) Personal income is not available 

Source: City annual financial statements; population data reported from demographics schedule 
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Debt Capacity Information 
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ $ $ 	- $ 

7,124,469 7,072,022 6,269,575 

2,875,000 

272,558 648,813 539,586 

7,397,027 7,720,835 9,684,161 

- - - 

5,170,410 4,951,798 4,696,798 4,436,798 4,166,798 

667,763 2,485,726 2,733,788 2,620,513 2,497,065 
3,975,000 3,190,000 2,880,000 2,560,000 2,235,000 

9,813,173 10,627,524 10,310,586 9,617,311 8,898,863 

$ 	9,813,173 $ 	10,627,524 $ 	17,707,613 $ 	17,338,146 $ 	18,583,024 

$ 	601,362,400 $ 	618,492,730 $ 	637,951,875 $ 	651,213,015 $ 	659,449,995 

1.63% 1.72% 2.78% 2.66% 2.82% 

16,135 16,135 16,135 16,135 16,135 

$ 608 $ 659 $ 	L097 $ 	1,075 $ 	1,152 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Debt Capacity Information 
Pledged-revenue Coverage 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Years 

Ended 

June 30 

Gross 

Revenue (I) 

Applicable 

Expenses (2) Net Revenue 

Debt Service Requirements (3) 

Principal Interest Total Coverage 

2008 $ 	4,594,730 $ 	4,430,308 $ 	164,422 $ $ 	170,079 $ 	170,079 0.97 (4) 
2009 4,878,913 4,414,039 464,874 164,167 164,167 2.83 
2010 4,856,083 4,031,251 824,832 265,000 160,115 425,115 1.94 
2011 5,405,036 4,164,564 1,240,472 275,000 151,741 426,741 2.91 
2012 5,976,950 4,1 I 6,499 1,860,451 370,000 223,209 593,209 3.14 
2013 6,144,410 5,168,865 975,545 290,000 135,279 425,279 2.29 
2014 6,311,280 5,029,027 1,282,253 305,000 92,188 397,188 3.23 
2015 6,213,080 5,640,641 572,439 310,000 87,850 397,850 1.44 
2016 7,174,578 5,805,365 1,369,2 I 3 320,000 76,851 396,851 3.45 
2017 7,789,824 5,631,186 2,158,638 325,000 74,850 399,850 5.40 

Notes 

(I) Exclusive of nonoperating revenue 

(2) Exclusive of depreciation charges and nonoperating expenditures 

(3) Includes principal and interest of revenue bonds only 

(4) The Water/Sewer Fund had operating transfers in from other funds in an amount which would cover the debt service 

requirement. 

Source: CAFR, Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Debt Capacity Information 

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding 
Last Ten Years 

Fiscal Years 

Ended June 30 

Population 

Per Federal 

Census 

Adjusted 

Taxable 

Equalized 

Valuation 

General 

Obligation 

Bonds 

Outstanding 

Percent 

Debt to 

Assessed 

Value 

Debt Per 

Capita 

2008 17,080 $ 	847,756,558 $ 	6,651,683 0.78% $ 	389 

2009 17,080 780,980,472 5,099,661 0.65% 299 

2010 17,080 699,266,846 3,560,414 0.51% 208 

2011 16,135 (I) 617,163,733 2,407,892 0.39% 149 

2012 16,135 603,930,131 1,222,095 0.20% 76 

2013 16,135 601,362,400 0.00% 

2014 16,135 618,492,730 0.00% 

2015 16,135 (2)  637,951,875 7,124,469 1.12% 442 

2016 16,135 651,213,015 7,072,022 1.09% 438 

2017 16,135 (3)  659,449,995 9,144,575 1.39% 567 

Source: Comptroller's office 

(I) Based upon 2010 federal census 

(2) Road Bonds approved by voters Nov 2014 

(3) Road Bond Debt Issue #2 Added 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Debt Capacity Information 

Direct and Overlapping Debt 
June 30, 2017 

Debt 

Outstanding 

Percent 

Applicable 

to City 

Estimated Share of 

Overlapping Debt 

Direct debt, general obligation debt $ 	8,898,863 100.00 $ 	8,898,863 

Overlapping debt: 

Grosse Pointe Public Library 11,300,000 24.86 2,809,180 

Grosse Pointe Public Schools 33,165,000 24.86 8,244,819 

County of Wayne Building Authority and Debt Fund 284,016,436 1.71 4,856,681 

Wayne County Community College 2.68 

Total overlapping debt 328,481,436 15,910,680 

Total direct and overlapping debt $ 	337,380,299 $ 	24,809,543 

Source: Municipal Advisory Council of Michigan 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Calculation of Debt Limit (I) 

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Taxable valuation $ 	847,756,558 $ 	780,980,472 $ 	699,266,846 $ 	617,163,733 $ 	603,930,131 
Debt limit (10% of equalized value) 84,775,656 78,098,047 69,926,685 61,716,373 61,716,373 

Calculation of Debt Subject to Limit 

Total debt 11,701,684 9,894,661 10,280,414 9,386,033 9,392,459 

Less Debt Not Subject to Charter Limitations 

Grosse-Gratiot Drain/Milk River Debt 5,771,684 4,679,661 3,560,414 2,407,892 1,222,097 
2010 DWRF Bonds 1,976,488 2,723,141 4,195,364 
2012 SRF Bonds - - - - 

Water/Sewer Revenue Bonds 2003 5,050,000 4,795,000 4,530,000 4.255,000 3,975,000 

Total debt not subject to Charter limitations 10,821,684 9,474,661 10,066,902 9,386,033 9,392,461 

Total net debt (2) 880,000 420,000 213,512 (2) 

Legal debt margin $ 	83,895,656 $ 	77,678,047 $ 	69,713,173 $ 	61,716,373 $ 	61,716,375 

Net debt subject to limit as 

percentage of debt limit 1.05% 0.54% 0.31 % 0.00% 0.00% 

(I) The legal debt limit continues to be derived from state equalized value (SEV), not Taxable Value (TV). 

(2) Amount does not include water and sewer and County contractual obligations. 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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Debt Capacity Information 
Legal Debt Margin 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

$ 	601,362,400 $ 	618,492,730 $ 	637,951,875 $ 	651,213,015 $ 	659,449,995 
62,331,330 62,331,330 74,231,187 79,357,920 84,284,766 

9,333,173 10,627,524 9,617,311 9,617,311 8,898,863 

5,170,410 4,951,798 4,696,798 4,436,798 4,166,798 
667,763 2,485,726 2,733,788 2,620,513 2,497,065 

3,495,000 3,190,000 2,880,000 2,560,000 2,235,000 

9,333,173 10,627,524 10,310,586 9,617,311 8,898,863 

(693,275) 

$ 	62,331,330 $ 	62,331,330 $ 	74,924,462 $ 	79,357,920 $ 	84,284,766 

0.00% 0.00% -0.93% 0.00% 0.00% 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Demographic and Economic Information 
Demographic and Economic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 

Year Population 

Personal 

Income 

(in thousands) 

Estimated 

Number of 

Households 

Per Capita 

Personal 

Income 

Median 

Age 

Unemployment 	School 

Rate 	Enrollment 

2008 17,080 (1)  (4) (4) (4) (4) 9.30% 8,900 (3) 

2009 17,080 (I) (4) (4) (4) (4) 14.10% 8,900 (3) 

2010 17,080 (I) (4) (4) (4) (4) 14.10% 8,900 (3) 

2011 16,135 (2)  (4) 6,396 (4) (4) 12.70% 8,900 (3)  

2012 16,135 (2) (4)  6,416 (4) (4) 11.40% 8,900 (3) 

2013 16,135 (2) (4) 6,819 (4) (4) 11.40% 8,900 (3) 

2014 16,135 (2) (4) 6,819 (4) (4) 11.40% 8,900 (3) 

2015 16,135 (2) (4) 6,819 (4) (4) 11.40% 8,900 (3) 

2016 16,135 (2) (4) 6,819 (4) (4) 11.40% 8,900 (3) 

2017 16,135 (2) (4) 6,089 92,014 44.9 5.70% 3,992 (3) 

(1) 2000 population from U.S. Census 

(2) 2010 population from U.S. Census 

(3) Estimate 

(4) Information not available 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Demographic and Economic Information 

Principal Employers 

Taxpayer Enterprise 

2010 

Employees 

Percentage of Total 

Employment 

2000 

Employees 

2004 

Rank 

I GP Public School School 384 10.77% (I) (I) 
2 Van Elslander Center Medical 250 7.01% (I) (I) 
3 Kroger Grocery 159 4.46% (1) (I) 
4 Sunrise Assisted Living Medical 130 3.64% (I) (1) 

5 University of Liggett School 128 3.59% (I) (I) 
6 Great Lakes Cancer Mgt Specialist Medical 103 2.89% (I) (I) 
7 Lochmoor Club Country Club 100 2.80% (I) (I) 
8 St. John I.T. & Desktop Support Medical Business 100 2.80% (I) (I) 
9 Grosse Pointe Hunt Club Private Club 80 2.24% (I) (I) 
10 City of Grosse Pointe Woods Municipal 78 2.19% (I) (I) 

Total People Employed in City 2017 3,567 

(I) Data from 2004 is not readily available 

Source: City Business License Registry 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Operating Information 

Full-time Equivalent Government Employees by Function (I) 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Percent of 

Total for 

Department 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2017 

Supervisor/Administrator 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 0.03 
Assessing 2 2 I 1 I I I 0.00 
Clerk's Office 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 0.04 
Treasurer's Office 5 4 5 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 0.05 
Municipal Court 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 0.04 
Information Systems 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 0.03 
Building 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 4 4 4 0.05 
Parks and Recreation 4 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 0.03 
Public Safety 54 52 50 44 43 42 39 35 34 34 0.44 
Public Works 25 25 28 26 23 22 22 23 23 24 0.31 

Total 103  99 99 90 86 84 81 78 77 78 100% 

(2) 
( I) Full-time employees reported only; data is not available for equivalent part-time positions. 
(2) 2015 shows the loss of EMTs. 

Source: City personnel records 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Function/Program 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 

Public safety (calendar year Jan I - Dec 31): 

Police physical arrests 676 727 486 507 357 
Police traffic violations 4,635 5,106 3,146 3,182 1,986 
Fire runs 71 53 56 62 139 
Fire actual fires 14 12 17 12 15 
Fire basic ambulance runs 368 474 543 753 715 
Fire Advance Life Support ambulance runs 356 328 359 403 362 
Fire inspections 180 183 77 144 78 

Parks and recreation (estimated): 

Recreation programs - Lake Front Park 426 415 392 362 359 
Community center programs 40 41 41 53 42 

Water: 

New connections (calendar year Jan 1 - Dec 3 I) I - - - 
Water main breaks 36 19 20 22 31 
Total consumption (billed to customers - HCF) - FY 932,395 804,221 750,096 791,987 746,113 

(I) Information not applicable, as function reports operating indicators on a calendar year 

(2) Information is reported on calendar year. 

Source: City Departmental Operational Reports 
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Operating Information 
Operating Indicators by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

(2) (2) (2) (2) (2) 

374 337 359 309 (I) 
1,883 1,306 1,652 1,541 (I) 

242 213 214 199 (I) 
14 10 20 25 (I) 

523 458 433 541 (I) 
361 560 601 536 (I) 
104 8 19 14 (I) 

267 261 217 217 217 
67 57 59 59 59 

1 16 5 2 (I) 
34 23 48 34 (I) 

813,574 724,717 653,545 653,901 731,328 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Operating Information 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function (Unaudited) 

Function/Program 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Public safety: 

Stations I I I I I I I I I 1 
Patrol units 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 

Fire trucks 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Ambulances I I I I I I I I I 1 

Parks and recreation: 

Acreage 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 92 

Playgrounds 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Soccer fields 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

Baseball/Softball diamonds 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Water: 

Mains (miles) 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 63 

Fire hydrants 603 603 603 603 603 603 608 608 608 608 

Sewer - Miles of sanitary sewers 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 78 

Source: Departmental annual reports 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Continuing Disclosure 
State-shared Revenue 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Fiscal 

Years Ended 

June 30 

Modified 

Accrual and 

Accrual Basis 

of Accounting 

2008 $ 	1,584,047 
2009 1,514,040 
2010 1,339,744 
2011 1,452,878 
2012 1,352,529 
2013 1,363,026 
2014 1,413,776 
2015 1,431,780 
2016 1,394,687 
2017 1,389,170 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Continuing Disclosure 
Gas and Weight Taxes 
Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Type of Street 	 Total 

Gas and Weight 

Fiscal Years 	 Tax (Act 51) 

Ended June 30 	 Major 	Local 	 Receipts 

2008 $ 	636,344 $ 	261,441 $ 	897,785 
2009 612,785 251,769 864,554 
2010 602,084 247,497 849,581 
2011 610,993 251,206 862,199 
2012 624,586 255,891 880,477 
2013 629,291 257,655 886,946 
2014 648,809 265,806 914,615 
2015 662,419 271,424 933,843 
2016 697,972 433,599 1,131,572 
2017 802,672 364,938 1,167,610 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 

Continuing Disclosure 
Labor Agreements 

June 30, 2017 

Bargaining Unit 
Expiration 

Date 

6/30/20 17 

Number of 
Employees 

Police Officers Association of Michigan 6/30/2019 20 
Represents police officers 

Command Officers Association of Michigan 6/30/2019 9 
Represents police corporals, sergeants, and lieutenants 

Police Officers Labor Council 6/30/2019 2 
Represents all dispatchers 

Technical, Professional, and Office Workers Assn of Ml 
TPOAM 6/30/20 19 27 

Represents clerical, public works employees, building, 
and ordinance officers 

Nonunion Employees (Full-time) 
City Administrator N/A 1 
Confidential Secretary to City Administrator N/A 1 
City Assessor N/A 0 
Treasurer/Comptroller N/A 1 
Deputy Treasurer/Comptroller N/A 1 
Utility Billing Manager N/A I 
City Clerk N/A 1 
Deputy City Clerk N/A 1 
Public Safety Director N/A 1 
Court Clerk N/A 1 
Deputy Court Clerk N/A I 
Information Technology Manager N/A 1 
Information Systems Technician N/A I 
Building Official N/A I 
Director of Public Services N/A 1 
Assistant Director of Public Services N/A I 
Foreman N/A 1 
Recreation Supervisor N/A I 
Confidential Administrative Assistant N/A 3 

20 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Continuing Disclosure 

Water and Sewer Customers and Consumption 
June 30, 2017 

User Type 

Number of 

Meters 

Water Consumption 

Volume (100 cubic feet) 

Percentage of 

Consumption 

Residential 6,562 5,979 84.5% 

Commercial 289 813 11.5% 

Churches, schools, and government 23 287 4.0% 

Total 6,874 7,079 100% 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Continuing Disclosure 

Historical Net Earnings, Cash Flow, and Debt Service Coverage 
June 30, 2017 

Fiscal Years 

Ended 

June 30 

Operating 

Expense 

Operating 

Expenses 

Exclusive of 

Depreciation 

Net Operating 

Income 

Other 

Nonoperating 

Income (I) 

Annual Income 

Available for 

Debt Service 

Annual Revenue 

Debt Service 

Requirements 

Annual 

Coverage 

2008 $ 	4,594,730 $ 	4,430,308 $ 	164,422 $ 	26,241 $ 	190,663 $ 	420,079 045 
2009 4,878,913 4,414,039 464,874 19,799 484,673 164,167 2.95 
2010 4,856,083 4,031,251 824,832 10,393 835,225 425,115 1.96 
2011 4,837,093 4,164,564 672,529 6,192 678,721 426,74I 1.59 
2012 4,827,454 4,116,499 710,955 5,335 716,290 593,209 1.21 
2013 5,168,865 4,447,042 721,823 3,718 725,541 425,279 1.71 
2014 5,029,027 4,248,572 780,455 16,430 796,885 397,188 2.01 
2015 5,640,641 4,898,622 742,019 25,876 767,895 397,850 1.93 
2016 5,805,365 5,003,502 801,863 86,421 888,284 396,851 2.24 
2017 5,631,186 4,826,771 804,415 74,058 878,473 399,850 2.20 

(I) Nonoperating income except connection fees net of nonoperating expenses other than interest expense 

Source: CAFR - Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position - Proprietary Funds 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Continuing Disclosure 

Water Usage and Revenue of the Ten Largest Customers 
June 30, 2017 

Customer Usage in Dollars 

Volume of Water Used 

(in 100 cubic feet) 

Lochmoor Club 88,507 26,446 
Grosse Pointe Board of Education 46,156 13,544 
The Rivers Resident Club 21,363 6,342 
Shorepointe Condos 20,466 5,998 
GP University School 17,419 5,142 
Sunrise Development 15,039 4,418 
Kroger 14,066 4,129 
Berkshire Condo Association 11,952 3,527 
St. John Hospital 10,067 3,036 
ANK Enterprises 9,237 2,702 

Source: City of Grosse Pointe Woods Finance 

Information from B. Meli 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
Continuing Disclosure 
Metered Water Rates 

June 30, 2017 

Meter Size Residential Commercial* 

5/8" $ 	45.67 $ 	11.00 
3/4" 45.67 16.50 
I" 82.21 27.50 
1 	1/2" 132.44 60.50 
2"  210.08 88.00 
3"  580.01 159.50 
4"  808.36 220.00 
6" 1,402.07 330.00 
8" 2,100.82 n/a 
10" 3,525.72 770.00 

Billing Charge 2.00 2.00 

Water Rate per 100 cubic feet used 3.13 3.13 
Sewer Rate per 100 cubic feet used 2.34 2.34 

*Commercial rate includes churches, schools, and government 
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City of Grosse Pointe Woods, Michigan 
State Equalized Value and Taxable Value by Class and Use 

Metered Water Rates 
June 30, 2017 

State Equalized Value 

Real Property 

Personal Property 

Total 

By Class 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

$ 	823,997,600 

18,850,060 

$ 	778,885,700 

14,693,500 

$ 	728,749,665 

13,562,200 

$ 	668,939,327 

12,500,000 

$ 	623,313,301 

15,577,600 

$ 842,847,660 $ 793,579,200 $ 742,311,865 $ 681,439,327 $ 638,890,901 

By Use 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Residential $ 	753,496,300 $ 	703,530,700 $ 	654,411,965 $ 	587,336,827 $ 	547,824,301 

Commercial 70,383,300 75,239,500 74,222,500 81,486,700 75,371,900 

Industrial 118,000 115,500 115,200 115,800 117,100 
Personal Property 18,850,060 14,693,500 13,562,200 12,500,000 15,577,600 

Total $ 842,847,660 $ 793,579,200 $ 742,311,865 $ 681,439,327 $ 638,890,901 

Taxable Value 
By Class 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Real Property $ 	645,692,448 $ 	636,519,515 $ 	624,389,675 $ 	605,992,730 $ 	585,784,800 
Personal Property 13,757,547 14,693,500 13,562,200 12,500,000 15,577,600 

Total $ 659,449,995 $ 651,213,015 $ 637,951,875 $ 618,492,730 $ 601,362,400 

By Use 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 

Residential $ 	578,864,599 $ 	563,473,469 $ 	552,288,032 $ 	534,100,330 $ 	523,323,200 

Commercial 66,717,419 72,936,601 71,992,525 71,785,000 62,355,800 

Industrial 110,430 109,445 109,118 107,400 105,800 
Personal Property 13,757,547 14,693,500 13,562,200 12,500,000 15,577,600 

Total $ 659,449,995 $ 651,213,015 $ 637,951,875 $ 618,492,730 $ 601,362,400 

Source: Comptroller's office 
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MEMO 17 - 51 

TO: 	Bruce Smith, City Administrator 

FROM: 	Frank Schulte, Director of Public Services 

DATE: 	December 1, 2017 

SUBJECT: Cross Connection Control Program 

In order to maintain compliance with the State of Michigan MDEQ Safe Drinking Water Act 1976 
PA399 and Administrative Rule, rule number R325.11401-R325.11407 as amended pertaining to 
Municipal Cross Connection Control Programs, the established program must be maintained by Grosse 
Pointe Woods and should consist of ongoing enforcement, awareness, education and training. 

Based upon a review of the Cross Connection Control Program status, HydroCorp has prepared a 
proposal to meet the specific cross connection control program needs of Grosse Pointe Woods and to 
continue to assist the city with Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Water Bureau 
cross connection control program regulations and compliance for public water systems. 

Attached is a three year proposal based upon completing 88 inspections each year consisting of 
compliance inspections and re-inspections of our individual commercial, institutional facilities and 
miscellaneous water users on an annual basis for the next three years. HydroCorp is the only Michigan 
company who offers this specialized service and their performance over the last three years has been 
satisfactory. They have offered the city a price of $717 per month, a 4% increase over the $689 per 
month from the prior 3-year contract. I do not believe any benefit would accrue to the city by seeking 
additional competitive bids. 

Therefore, I recommend that a new 3-year contract be entered into with HydroCorp, 5700 Crooks 
Road, Suite 100, Troy, MI 48098, to continue the city's Cross Connection Control Program. The 
contract will include 264 inspections performed over the next three years; 88 inspections per year, at a 
cost of $717 per month totaling $3585 for the remainder of the 2017/18 fiscal year. The annual 
expense will be $8,604.00 for the 2018/19 and 2019/20 fiscal years and $5,019 for the 2020/21 fiscal 
year through January 31, 2021. The 3-year contract will total $25,812 for the period February 1, 2018 
through January 31, 2021. This is a budgeted item included in Water/Sewer account 592-537-975.395 
in each fiscal year budget, contingent upon final budget approvals in May of 2018, 2019 and 2020. 

If you have any questions concerning this matter please contact me. 

Attachment 
c.c. 	0/F 

Recommend approval of the above stated and do not believe any benefit will accrue to the City to seek 
further competitive bids. 
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SCOPE OF WORK 

Based on our conversations, HydroCorpTM will provide the following services to the City of Grosse Pointe Woods. This 

project is a continued effort for an ongoing Cross-Connection Control Program and will provide the City with the necessary 

data and information to maintain compliance with the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) Water Bureau 

Cross Connection Control Regulations. Once this project has been approved and accepted by the City and HydroCorp, you 

may expect completion of the following elements within a three (3) year period. The components of the project include: 

1. Annually, perform a minimum of 88 initial inspections, compliance inspections, and re-inspections at individual 

industrial, commercial, institutional facilities and miscellaneous water users within the City served by the public water 

supply for cross-connections. Inspections will be conducted in accordance with the DEQ Water Bureau Cross 

Connection Control regulations. 

2. Generate all backflow prevention assembly test notices, non-compliance notices and coordinate/monitor backflow 

prevention assembly testing compliance for all backflow prevention assemblies. 

3. Perform administrative functions including: answering water user telephone calls, scheduling of inspections, mailing of 

all notices, verification of backflow prevention assembly tester credentials & proper testing results and general 

customer service and program education inquiries. 

4. Generate and document the required program data for the facilities using the HydroCorp Software Data Management 

Program. 

5. Submit comprehensive management reports on a quarterly basis. 

6. Conduct an annual review meeting to discuss overall program status and recommendations. 

7. Provide up to six- (6) ASSE approved hose bibb vacuum breakers or anti-frost hose bibb vacuum breakers, (i.e. 

combination) per facility as required, in order to place a facility into immediate compliance at the time of inspection. 

8. Prepare the annual State of Michigan, DEQ Water Bureau Cross Connection Report. 

9. Assist the City with a community wide public relations program including general awareness brochures and customized 

web site cross connection control program overview content and resources. 

10. Provide ongoing support via phone, fax, Internet, text or email. 

The above services will be provided for: 

Monthly Amount: $ 717.00 
	

Annual Amount: $ 8,604.00 	Contract Total: $ 25,812.00 

Contract Amount is based upon a 36-month period. HydroCorp will invoice in 36 equal amounts of $ 717.00 

GORPORATE OFFICE 
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AL. S R CU 

This agreement, made and entered into this DATE 	 by and between the City of Grosse 

Pointe Woods, organized and existing under the laws of the State of Michigan, referred to as "Utility", and 

HydroCorp'M a Michigan Corporation, referred to as "HydroCorp". 

WHEREAS, the Utility supplies potable water throughout its corporate boundary to property owners; and 

desires to enter into a professional services contract for cross connection control program inspection, reporting and 

management services. 

WHEREAS, HydroCorp is experienced in and capable of supplying professional inspection of potable water 

distribution systems and cross connection control program management to the Utility and the Utility desires to 

engage HydroCorp to act as its independent contractor in its cross connection control program. 

WHEREAS, the Utility has the authority under the laws of the State of Michigan and its local governing body 

to enter into this professional services contract. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements herein contained, and subject to the terms 

and conditions herein stated, the parties agree as follows: 

During the term of this Agreement, the Utility agrees to engage HydroCorp as an independent contractor 

to inspect and document its findings on its potable water distribution system in public, commercial and industrial 

facilities within the community. Each party to this Agreement agrees that it will cooperate in good faith with the 

other, its agents, and subcontractors to facilitate the performance of the mutual obligations set forth in this 

Agreement. Both Parties to this Agreement recognize and acknowledge that the information presented to them is 

complete and accurate, yet due to the inaccessible nature of water piping or due to access constraints within water 

users' facilities, complete and accurate data is not always available. 

ARTICLE II. Scope of Services 

The scope of services to be provided by HydroCorp under this Agreement will include the 

inspections/surveys, program administration, answering telephone call inquires, scheduling of inspections, program 

compliance review, public education materials, preparation of quarterly management reports, and annual cross 

connection reports with respect to the facilities to the extent specifically set forth in this Article II (hereinafter the 

"Scope of Services"). Should other reports/services be included within the Scope of Services, the same shall be 

appended to this Agreement as Exhibit 1. 

2.1 	PROGRAM REVIEW/PROGRAM ST" ^-r tiP MEETING HydroCorp will conduct a Program Startup Meeting 

for the Cross-Connection Control/Backflow Prevention Program. Items for discussion/review will include 

the following: 

• Review state & local regulations 

• Review and/or provide assistance in establishing local Cross-Connection Control Ordinance 

• Review/establish wording and timeliness for program notifications including: 

- Inspection Notice 

- Compliance Notice 

- Non-Compliance Notices 1-2, Penalty Notices 

• Special Program Notices 

• Electronic use of notices/program information 

• Obtain updated facility listing, address information and existing program data from Utility 

• Prioritize Inspections (City buildings, schools, high hazard facilities, special circumstances.) 

• Review/establish procedure for vacant facilities 
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• Establish facility inspection schedule 

Review/establish procedures and protocol for addressing specific hazards 

9 	Review/establish high hazard, complex facilities and large industrial facility inspection/containment 

procedures including supplemental information/notification that may be requested from these types 

of facilities in order to achieve program compliance. 

Review/establish program reporting procedures including electronic reporting tools 

Review/establish educational and public awareness brochures 

2.2 
	

• 	HydroCorp will perform initial inspections, compliance inspections, and re-inspections at 

individual industrial, commercial, institutional facilities and miscellaneous water users within the utility 

served by the public water supply for cross-connections. Inspections will be conducted in accordance with 

the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality Cross Connection Control Rules. 

a Initial Inspection — the first time a HydroCorp representative inspects a facility for cross 
connections. Degree of Hazard will be assigned and/or verified during this facility visit. The Degree 

of Hazard will dictate future re-inspection frequency/schedule of facility, (facility will be either 

compliant or non-compliant after this inspection). 

O Compliance Inspection—subsequent visit by a HydroCorp representative to a facility that was non-
compliant during the Initial Inspection to verify that corrective action was completed and meets 

the program requirements. 

• Re-Inspection — Revisit by a HydroCorp representative to a facility that was previously inspected. 

The re-inspection frequency/schedule is based on the degree of hazard assigned to the facility 

during the initial inspection (one or five year re-inspection cycle). 

2.3 	145PErTifIN SCHEE, 	HydroCorp shall determine and coordinate the inspection schedule. Inspection 

personnel will check in/out on a daily basis with the Utility's designated contact person. The initial check 

in will include a list of inspections scheduled. An exit interview will include a list of inspections completed. 

2.4 	 HydroCorp will generate and document the required program data for the Facility Types 

listed in the Scope of Services using the HydroCorp Software Data Management Program. Program Data 

shall remain property of the Utility; however, the HydroCorp Software Data Management program shall 

remain the property of HydroCorp and can be purchased for an additional fee. Data services will include: 

• Prioritize and schedule inspections 

• Notify users of inspections, backflow device installation and testing requirements if applicable 

• Monitor inspection compliance using the HydroCorp online software management program. 

• Maintain program to comply with all MDEQ regulations 

2.5 	MANAGEMENT REPORTS. HydroCorp will submit comprehensive management reports in electronic, 

downloadable format on a quarterly & annual basis to the Utility. Reports to include the following 

information: 

• Name, location and date of inspections 

• Number of facilities inspected/surveyed 

• Number of facilities compliant/non-compliant 

2.6 	pl7,7,N r. ,̀  CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL. ORDINANCE 	HydroCorp will review or assist in the 

development of a cross-connection control ordinance. Items for review include: 

• Code adoption references, standard operational procedures, program notice documentation, reporting 

procedures and preference standards. 

• Penalties for noncompliance. 
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2.7 	 • XER.!.. HydroCorp will provide up to six (6) ASE approved hose bibb vacuum breakers or 

anti-frost hose bibb vacuum breakers per facility as required, in order to place a facility into immediate 

compliance at the time of inspection if no other cross-connections are identified. 

	

2.8 	is • 	RFIAT oNS P 	RAM. HydroCorp will assist the Utility with a community-wide public relations 

program including general awareness brochures and website cross connection control program content. 

	

2.9 	 ;=T_ HydroCorp will provide ongoing support via phone, fax, text, website or email for the contract 
period. 

2.10 	 Tynl 	"he facility types included in the program are as follows: 

• Industrial 

• Institutional 

• Commercial 

Miscellaneous Water users 

• Multifamily 

ar Icji0')< raOlile Large industrial and high hazard complexes or facilities may require inspection/survey 

services outside the scope of this Agreement. (HydroCorp typically allows a maximum of up to three (3) 

hours of inspection time per facility.) An independent cross connection control survey (at the business 

owner's expense) may be required at these larger/complex facilities and the results submitted to the Utility 

to help verify program compliance. 

	

2.11 	INSPf7.(LriOe., 	HydroCorp will perform a minimum of 264 Non-Residential inspections over a three 

— (3) year contract period. The total inspections include all initial inspections, compliance and re-

inspections. Vacant facilities that have been provided to HydroCorp, scheduled no show or refusal of 

inspection will count as an inspection/site visit for purposes of the contract. 

	

2.12 	• IMPUANCF MTH -)1:PARTmENT r iiNV1ROP•MENT.A, 	 HydroCorp will assist in 

compliance with DEQ and Michigan Plumbing Code cross connection control program requirements for all 

commercial, industrial, institutional, residential, multifamily and public authority facilities. 

	

2.13 	Pni.ICY MANUA' HydroCorp will review and/or develop a comprehensive cross connection control policy 

manual/plan and submit to the appropriate regulatory agency for approval on behalf of the Utility. 

	

2.14 	iNVUTIOR' HydroCorp shall inventory all accessible (ground level) backflow prevention assemblies and 

devices. Documentation will include: location, size, make, model and serial number if applicable. 

	

2.15 	DATA MAN ,GEMENT HydroCorp shall provide data management and program notices for all inspection 

services throughout the contract period. 

	

2.16 	ANNUAL YEAR END REVIEV HydroCorp will conduct an on-site annual year-end review meeting to discuss 

overall program status and specific program recommendations. 

	

2.17 	CROSS CONNECTION CONTROL BROCHURES HydroCorp will provide approximately 650 cross-connection 

control educational brochures for the duration of the Agreement. 

	

2.18 	INSURANC 	HydroCorp will provide all required copies of general liability, workers' compensation and 

errors and omissions insurance naming the Utility as an additional insured if required. 
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3.1 tiTILTY'S REPRiiSENTAT • VI On or before the date services are to commence under this Agreement, the Utility 
shall designate an authorized representative ("Authorized Representative") to administer this Agreement. 

3.2 CC Mi'LIANCE WITH LAWS. The Utility, with the technical and professional assistance of HydroCorp, shall comply 

with all applicable local, state, and federal laws, codes, ordinances, and regulations as they pertain to the water 

inspection and testing, and shall pay for any capital improvements needed to bring the water treatment and 

delivery system into compliance with the aforementioned laws. 

3.3 NCI ;Cf.i 	 •1? 	In the event that the Utility or HydroCorp has or receives notice of or undertakes the 

prosecution of any actions, claims, suits, administrative proceedings, investigations or other proceedings in 

connection with this Agreement, the party receiving such notice or undertaking of such prosecution shall give 

the other party timely notice of such proceedings and will inform the other party in advance of all hearings 

regarding such proceedings 

3.4 FACII • 	STING. The Utility must provide HydroCorp a complete list of facilities to be inspected, including 
facility name, type of service connection, address, contact person, and phone number, (if available). ic • io i?ii 

3.5 	;HF, 	 The Utility will provide HydroCorp with an electronic file copy of the utility logo or utility 

letterhead and all envelopes for the mailing of all official program correspondence only. (300 dpi in either .eps, 

or other high quality image format for printing.) 

'no 

4.1 'Hiv ANn 	 TERM Services by HydroCorp under this Agreement shall commence on 

DATE 	 and end three — (3) year from such date, unless this Agreement is renewed or terminated as 

provided herein. The terms of this Agreement shall be valid only upon the execution of this Agreement within 

ninety (90) days of its receipt. Failure to execute this Agreement within the ninety (90) day period shall deem 

the proposed terms void. 

4.2 	RFNEWP: , Upon the expiration of this Agreement the utility will have the option to renew this contract for two 

(2) consecutive one (1) year periods. Any increases in pricing for each of the renewal periods will be equal to 

the Consumer Price Index at the time of renewal or 3%, whichever is less. 

4.3 	-fTIVIINATION. The Utility or HydroCorp may terminate this Agreement at any time and on any date in the 

initial and renewal terms of this Agreement, with or without any cause, by giving written notice of such intent 

to terminate to the other party at least thirty (30) days prior to the effective date of termination. Notice of the 

intent to terminate shall be given in writing by personal service, by an authorized agent, or by certified mail, 

return receipt requested. The Utility shall pay the balance of any outstanding accounts for work performed by 

HydroCorp. 

4.4 3ASI COMPENSATION. The Utility shall pay HydroCorp as compensation ("Base Compensation") for labor, 

equipment, material, supplies, and utilities provided and the services performed pursuant to this Agreement, 

$717.00 per month, $8,604.00 annually, for a three year contract total of $25,812.00. Completed inspections 

shall consist of all initial inspections, re-inspections and compliance inspections as defined in section 2.2. 
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4.5 	 Upon presentation of invoices by HydroCorp, all payments including base and other 

compensation shall be due and payable on the first day of each month (due date) after the month for which 

services have been rendered. All such payments shall be made no later than thirty (30) days after the due date. 

Failure to pay shall be deemed a default under this Agreement. For any payment to HydroCorp which is not 

made within thirty (30) calendar days after the due date, HydroCorp, shall receive interest at one and one-half 

(11/2 ) percent per month on the unpaid balance. 

4.6 	 SCoPE 	SEP,VICE'll. In the event that the Utility requests and HydroCorp consents to perform 

additional work or services involving the consulting, management, operation, maintenance, and repair of the 

Utility's water delivery system where such services or work exceeds or changes the Scope of Services 

contemplated under this Agreement, HydroCorp shall be provided additional compensation. Within thirty (30) 

calendar days from the date of notice of such additional work or services, the parties shall mutually agree upon 

an equitable sum for additional compensation. This amount shall be added to the monthly sum effective at the 

time of change in scope. Changes in the Scope of Service include, but are not limited to, requests for additional 

service by the Utility or additional costs incurred in meeting new or changed government regulations or 

reporting requirements. 

4.7 r' 	 Disclosure of all communications between HydroCorp and the Utility regarding 

business practices and other methods and forms of doing business is subject to the provisions of Michigan 

Public Records Law. HydroCorp agrees to make available for inspection and copying all records in its possession 

created, produced, collected or otherwise related to this Agreement to the same extent as if the records were 

maintained by the Utility. HydroCorp expressly acknowledges and agrees that its obligations concerning Public 

Records Law and compliance under this Agreement should not be limited by copyright, license, privacy and/or 

confidentiality except as authorized under the Public Records Law. 

4.8 Acc.iS.Si•:•i. 	Backflow prevention device information will be completed in full only when the identifying 

information (i.e. data plate, brass tag, etc.) is accessible and visible from ground level or from a fixed 

platform/mezzanine. 

4.9 	:0NF 1\11,,r si'AC; 5. — HydroCorp personnel will not enter confined spaces. 

ARTICU V. Risk Mariagis.riv,,  an, 	 •DV!Si01 

5.1 	INFoRMA 	Both Parties to this Agreement recognize and acknowledge that the information presented to 

them is complete to the best of their knowledge, yet due to the inaccessible nature of water piping or lack of 

access provided by property owner/water user, complete accurate data is not always available. Cross-

connection control inspection and results are documented as of a specific date. The property owner and/or 

water user may make modifications to the potable water system after the inspection date that may impact 

compliance with the program. 

5.2 	ITATION OF LIABILITY. HydoCorp's liability to the Utility for any loss, damage, claim, or expense of any 

kind or nature caused directly or indirectly by the performance or non-performance of obligations pursuant to 

this Agreement shall be limited to general money damages in an amount not to exceed or within the limits of 

the insurance coverage provided hereunder. HydroCorp shall in no event be liable for indirect or consequential 

damages, including but not limited to, loss of profits, loss of revenue, or loss of facilities, based upon contract, 

negligence, or any other cause of action. 
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5.3 
	

AN( 	HydroCorp currently maintains the following insurance coverage's and limits: 

Comprehensive General Liability 

Excess Umbrella Liability 

Automobile Liability (Combined Single Limit) 

Worker's Compensation/ Employer's Liability 

Errors and Omissions 

Occurrence 

$1 Million 

$5 Million 

$1 Million 

$1 Million 

$2 Million 

Aggregate 

$2 Million 

$5 Million 

$2 Million 

Within thirty (30) calendar days of the start of the project, HydroCorp shall furnish the Utility with satisfactory 

proof of such insurance, and each policy will require a 30-day notice of cancellation to be given to the Utility 

while this Agreement is in effect. The Utility shall be named as an additional insured according to its interest 

under the general liability policy during the term of this Agreement. 

	

5.4 	 ti rkNcE The Utility will maintain liability insurance on an all risk basis and including extended 

coverage for matters set forth in this Agreement. 

	

5.5 	t r!ONSHIP The relationship of HydroCorp to the Utility is that of independent: contractor and not one of 

employment. None of the employees or agents of HydroCorp shall be considered employees of the Utility. For 

the purposes of all state, local, and federal laws and regulations, the Utility shall exercise primary management, 

and operational and financial decision-making authority. 

	

5.6 	r..E ACRE iMENT AmENDME41-`..z This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the Utility and 

HydroCorp, and supersedes all prior or contemporaneous communications, representations, understandings, 

or agreements. This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment signed by both parties. 

	

5.7 	 FXi.i T' The heading contained in this Agreement is for reference only 

and shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. The Attachments and Exhibits 

to this Agreement shall be construed as integral parts of this Agreement. 

	

5.8 	.A4 0 The failure on the part of either party to enforce its rights as to any provision of this Agreement shall 

not be construed as a waiver of its rights to enforce such provisions in the future. 

	

5.9 	ASSIGNMEIV: . This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without the prior written consent of the 

other unless such assignment shall be to the affiliate or successor of either party. 

5.10 FORCE MAIELM. A party's performance under this Agreement shall be excused if, and to the extent that, the 

party is unable to perform because of actions due to causes beyond its reasonable control such as, but not 

limited to, Acts of God, the acts of civil or military authority, loss of potable water sources, water system 

contamination, floods, quarantine restrictions, riot, strikes, commercial impossibility, fires, explosions, 

bombing, and all such interruptions of business, casualties, events, or circumstances reasonably beyond the 

control of the party obligated to perform, whether such other causes are related or unrelated, similar or 

dissimilar, to any of the foregoing. In the event of any such force majeure, the party unable to perform shall 

promptly notify the other party of the existence of such force majeure and shall be required to resume 

performance of its obligations under this Agreement upon the termination of the aforementioned force 

majeure. 

5.11 n TilORITY TO CONTRACT Each party warrants and represents that it has authority to enter into this 

Agreement and to perform the obligations, including any payment obligations, under this Agreement. 

5.12 GC)VEFNING LAW (1,1,-- -FiNU` This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Michigan, regardless of the fact that any of the parties hereto may be or may become a 

resident of a different state or jurisdiction. Any suit or action arising shall be filed in a court of competent 

jurisdiction within the State of Michigan, venue by the presiding County. The parties hereby consent to the 

personal jurisdiction of said court within the State of Michigan. 
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5.13 t.i, iNTERPAR"S This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be 

deemed to be an original and all of which together shall be deemed to be one and the same instrument. 

5.14 	 All notices, requests, demands, payments and other communications which are required or may be 

given under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered 

personally or sent by nationally recognized overnight carrier, or mailed by certified mail, postage prepaid, 

return receipt requested, as follows: 

If to HyclroCorp: 

HydroCorp 

c/o Mark Martin 

5700 Crooks Road, Ste. 100 

Troy, MI 48337 

(248) 250-5005 

If to Utility: 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

c/o Frank Schulte 

1200 Parkway 

Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

(313) 343-2460 

5.15 SFVERABitrY Should any part of this Agreement for any reason, be declared invalid or void, such 

declaration will not affect the remaining portion, which will remain in full force and effect as if the 

Agreement has been executed with the invalid portion eliminated. 

SiiNATURES 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement effective as of the date first above written. 

City of Grosse Pointe Woods 

By: 

Title: 

FlydroCorp 

By: John Hudak 

Its: President 
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HydroCorpTM is a professional service organization that specializes in Cross Connection Control Programs. Cross 

Connection Control Program Management & Training is the main core and focus of our business. We are 

committed to providing water utilities and local communities with a cost effective and professionally managed 

cross connection control program in order to assist in protecting the public water supply. 

HydroCorp conducts over 30,000 Cross Connection Control Inspections annually. 

HydroCorp tracks and manages over 35,000+ backflow prevention assemblies for our Municipal client 

base. 

Our highly trained staff works in an efficient manner in order to achieve maximum productivity and keep 

program costs affordable. We have a detailed system and process that each of our field inspectors 

follow in order to meet productivity and quality assurance goals. 

Our municipal inspection team is committed to providing outstanding customer service to the water users 

in each of the communities we serve. We teach and train customer service skills in addition to the 

technical skills since our team members act as representatives of the community that we service. 

Our municipal inspection team has attended training classes and received certification from the following 

recognized Cross Connection Control Programs: OF TREED, UW-Madison, and USC — Foundation for Cross 

Connection Control and Hydraulic Research, American Backflow Prevention Association (ABPA), American 

Society for Sanitary Engineering (ASSE). HydroCorp recognizes the importance of Professional 

Development and Learning. We invest heavily in internal and external training with our team members to 

ensure that each Field Service and Administrative team member has the skills and abilities to meet the 

needs of our clients. 

We have a trained administrative staff to handle client needs, water user questions and answer telephone 

calls in a professional, timely and courtesy manner. Our administrative staff can answer most technical 

calls related to the cross connection control program and have attended basic cross connection control 

training classes. 

HydroCorp currently serves over 200 communities in Michigan, Wisconsin, Maryland, Delaware, Virginia & 

Florida. We still have our first customer! 

HydroCorp and its' staff are active members in many water industry associations including: National Rural 

Water Association, State Rural Water Associations, National AWWA, State AWWA Groups, HydroCorp is 

committed to assisting these organizations by providing training classes, seminars and assistance in the 

area of Cross Connection Control. 

Several Fortune 500 companies have relied on HydroCorp to provide Cross Connection Control Surveys, 

Program Management & Reporting to assist in meeting state/local regulations as well as internal company 

guidelines. 
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CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

From: 	Jo1n, . Kosanice, Dijector of Public Safety 

Subject: 	Mobile Data Computers Purchase  

Date: 	December 12, 2017 

To: 
	

Bruce Smith, City Administrator 
7-7*  'En ,ED  

DEC 4 2017 

E PTE. WOODS 

I am requesting approval for the purchase of three mobile data computers. The warranties on the three existing computers, 
which are 5-years old, expired at the end of October 2017. The expected life span of the Dell computers is between 3 to 5 
years. An unexpected repair on a computer no longer covered under warranty could end up costing more than the system is 
worth. The monitors on our existing computers are leaking as the heat from five summers has caused fluid behind the LED 
to drip out. In addition, one of the monitors has a cracked housing. 

The mobile data computers are vital tools for everyday law enforcement. The technology enables officers to protect the 
security needs of the public in the most efficient manner possible by allowing the successful coordination of personnel, 
vehicles and equipment. With new computers, officers are empowered with the capability to receive and share information 
without delay. Five years' worth of firmware updates have caused our current computers to slow down tremendously which 
could prove to be a safety risk as officers wait for information to be processed. 

The computers are to be purchased from Dell, the vendor recommended by CLEMIS to use with the system we have in place. 
The mobile data computer recommended and tested by CLEMIS is the Dell Latitude Rugged 5414, which comes with a five-
year warranty. As the majority of our MDC mount was recently purchased and installed, we would also require new docking 
stations, made by HAVIS, which can be retrofitted into our current mounting system. The purchase of only the docking 
systems rather than the full mount results in a savings of over $400.00 per unit. 

This is a budgeted expense included in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget in the Minor Equipment fund (101-310-970.000). 
The total cost of the purchase from Dell, Inc. would be approximately $9,380.55. A current balance of $9,880.00 is available 
in the account. 

Payment will be issued to:  

Dell, Inc. 
One Dell Way 
Mail Stop 8129 
Round Rock, TX 78682 

Recommend Approval of the above stated purchase with a cost not to exceed $9,380.55 as submitted. 

Department Certification: 
I herebj certify that the above items are necessary for the proper operation of this Department. 

D6p rtment He Signature — Public Safety 

Fund Certification: 
1,ft eby c ' ify that unen ,umb ,ed funds are available for the above purchase, and that the account number has been verified. 

Treasurer/Comptroller Signature 

I do not believe any benefit will accrue to the City by seeking further bids. Approved for Council consideration. 

City Administrator 	ature 



Sales rep: Laura Brock 13000020098900.1 

A quote for your consideration! 	 Total: $9,380.55 

Based on your business needs, we put the following quote together to help with 
your purchase decision. Please review your quote details below, then contact 
your sales rep when you're ready to place your order. 

Quote number: 
	

Quote date: 
	

Quote expiration: 

3000020098900.1 
	

Nov. 29, 2017 
	

Dec. 29, 2017 

Company name: 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

Sales rep information: 

Laura Brock 

Laura_Brock@DetLcom 

(800) 456-3355 

Ext: 7'15Q51 
51a 

Customer number: 	Phone: 

14695717 	 (313) 343-2525 

Billing Information: 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE 
WOODS 

20025 MACK PLAZA DR 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

MI 48236-2343 

US 

(313) 343-2525 

Pricing Summary 

Item Qty Unit Price Subtotal 

Latitude 14 Rugged 5414 3 $2,050.00 $6,150.00 

Havis DS-DELL-406-3 Basic Port Replication with Triple High-Gain 3 $576.00 $1,728.00 
Antenna - docking station 

Havis D5-DA-412 - Laptop screen stiffener 3 $49.74 $149.22 

2011-2012 FORD EXPLORER (RETAIL) 2012 FORD INTERCEPTOR 3 $451.11 $1,353.33 
SUV PREMIUM PASSENGER SID 

Subtotal: $9,380.55 

Shipping: $0.00 

Environmental Fees: $0.00 

Non-Taxable Amount: $9,380.55 

Taxable Amount: $0.00 

Estimated Tax: $0.00 

Total: $9,380.55 

Special lease pricing may be available for qualified customers. Please contact your DFS Sales Representative for 
details. 
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Date: 

To: 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY 

December 12, 2017 

Bruce Smith, City Administrator 

From: 	John . Kosanke Director of Public Safety 
t  A 0 

Subject: 	Puichase of Five Sets of Fire Gear 
OS 

The NFPA (National Fire Protection Association) Standard on Selection, Care & Maintenance of Protective 
Ensembles (NFPA 1851) requires that structural turnout gear shall be retired when the garment is beyond repair 
and no longer able to pass an NFPA 1851 Advanced Inspection, or ten years from the date of manufacture, 
whichever comes first. In order to comply with the latter part of this standard and to reduce health and safety 
risks for our firefighters, the department has made a practice of replacing five sets of fire gear annually. 

I am requesting that the City approve a purchase order for five (5) sets of coats and pants as part of the five (5) 
new sets of fire gear purchased annually by the department. The Super Deluxe coats come at a cost of 
$1,230.00 each for a total of $6,150.00 and the Super Pants with lumbar and suspenders come at a cost of 
$848.00 each for a total of $4,240.00. The order would also include helmets, gloves, and hoods. 

Four vendors were contacted for price quotes and only two responded. West Shore Fire came in with a quote of 
$13,261.00 which was slightly higher than the quote received from Apollo Fire Equipment, the vendor that the 
department has been purchasing fire equipment from for the past several years. Two thirds of the department are 
already outfitted in Lion apparel purchased from Apollo. To allow for consistency and matching equipment, and 
to take advantage of the lower price, the fire gear will once again be purchased from Apollo. 

The vendor name and address is:  

Apollo Fire Equipment 
12584 Lakeshore Drive 
Romeo, MI 48085 

Total: $13,105.00 

The funds will be taken from account 101-339-757.000 (Operating Supplies — Fire Services) which has a 
current available balance of $18,528.97. The purchase is part of the budgeted amount for five (5) new sets of 
fire gear at $2,700.00 each for a total of $13,500.00 included in the 2017-2018 fiscal year budget. 

Recommend Approval of the above stated purchase with a cost not to exceed $13,105.00 as submitted. 

Department Certification: 
I hereby certify that the above items are necessary for the proper operation of this Department. 

artment Heald Signature 

Fund Certification: 
I 	eby ceify that unencyrnb 	funds are available for the above purchase, and that the account number has been verified. 
	 Treasurer/Comptroller Si • ture 

APPROVED FOR COUNCIL CONSIDERATION:  
City Admitu 	or Sign ture 



APOLLO 

 

PRICE QUOTATION 

12584 LAKESHORE DRIVE 

FIRE EQUIPMENT COMPANY 

Jo Ellen Pavoni 

 

ROMEO, MI 48065 

cell phone: 616-291-6534 
WATTS 1- 800-626-7783 

FAX (586) 752-6907 

TO Grosse Pointe Woods DATE 	12/4/2017 Terms 30 days net 

Director Kosanke PROPOSED SHIPPING DATE 

TO BE SHIPPED VIA 

QUOTE VALID FOR 

Stock - 75 days 

Fed-ex 

until Dec 27, 2017 

Lion Apparel 	Estimated Quote 

5 Super Deluxe Coats (per attached specs) $1,230.00 $6,150.00 

5 Super Pant with Lumbar and Suspenders $848.00 $4,240.00 

5 Cairns Helemt 1010 Defender $288.00 $1,440.00 

5 Helmet Leather Fronts $39.00 $195.00 

5 Commander FF Gloves $86.00 $430.00 

5 Firefighting Carbon Hoods $37.00 $185.00 

No Shipping on Fire Fighting Coat and Pant 

Plus Shipping on Helmet, Hoods and Gloves 

OPTION: NFPA PARTICULANT BARRIER HOOD i ci,„00 ii 	u5,c)C 

Majestic Model = $ 93.00 or Fire Dex Model= $135.00 

 

THANK YOU FOR YOUR BUSINESS 

  

TOTAL 

     

 

Jo Ellen Pavoni 	Account Manager PPE 

  

     



Thr 	 WHERE SALES 	SERVICE COME TOGETHER 

West Shore Fire Inc. 	 Office of:  - 
Eric Johnson 6620 Lake Michigan Dr.

Alb. la IN= 
PO Box 188 	 ejohnsonawestshorefire.com  
Allendale MI 49401 	 1110111111C. 
Phone: 616-895-4347 	 y. 	 Home Office of: 

Watts: 800-632-6184 	 /R.L.....---VaROUP 	 Paul Dowell 
Fax: 	616-895-7158 	 pdowellAwestshorefire.com  

QUOTATION 	 Cell: 616-215-4817 

Bill to 	GROSSE POINTE WOODS DPS 	 PO # 
Address 	20025 MACK PLAZA 	 Ship Via 	Best Way 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI.48236 

Shipping 	 Date: 	 8/28/2017 

Address 

Phone # 	 County: 	Wayne 
Fax # 
E-mail 	 QUOTE VALID FOR 45 DAYS 

QUANTITY DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE TOTAL PRICE 

4 

4 

1 

1 

5 

5 

5 

5 

Fire-Dex Custom FX-R TecGen Turnout Coat 

Fire-Dex Custom FX-R TecGen Turnout Pant 

Fire-Dex Custom FX-R TecGen Turnout Coat (wear trial) 

Fire-Dex Custom FX-R TecGen Turnout Pant (wear trial) 

G2: Fire Dex Leather Dex-Pro Gloves (specify wristlet or gauntlet) 

Custom Leather fronts 

H4IPSNBFH: FIRE-DEX INTERCEPTER HOOD (specify size) 

USTM6R350: ReTrak Series traditional, matte finish, styled fiberglass structural fire 
helmet with integrated visor & 6" brass eagle (specify color) 

1,345.00 

935.00 

1,003.00 

698.00 

78.00 

55.00 

125.00 

230.00 

$5,380.00 

$3,740.00 

$1,003.00 

$698.00 

$390.00 

$275.00 

$625.00 

$1,150.00 

Subtotal 

FREIGHT NOT INCLUDED IN QUOTE 
Tax (If Applicable) 

TOTAL QUOTE 

$13,261.00 

$13,261.00 
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Memorandum 
DATE: December 18, 2018 

TO: Mayor Novitke and City Council 

FROM: Bruce J. Smith, City Administrator 

SUBJECT: Building Department Vehicle Replacements 

I am requesting City Council's authorization to purchase a 2018 GMC Sierra extended cab pick-up truck 
under the State of Michigan bid price of $21,560.00, plus a delivery fee for a total price of approximately 
$21,718.00. I am also requesting the purchase of a 2018 Ford Fusion S under the State of Michigan Bid 
price of $16,285.00, plus a delivery for a total of approximately $16,360.00. There may be a slight 
variance in the total price as the delivery charge is based on total miles to the city and the above delivery 
costs were calculated by Google Maps. For this reason, an additional $100.00 has been added to the 
overall costs of the vehicles to cover any unexpected variances in delivery charges. The total for both 
vehicles, including an additional $100.00 to cover delivery costs, will not exceed $38,178.00. Funds to 
purchase the vehicles are available in the Motor Pool Fund Balance Account #640-000-395.000, which 
post audit is at $2,132,826. 

Vehicle 	 State Bid Holder Cost 
2018 GMC Sierra Extended Cab Light Duty 
Truck, 6' Box 	 Todd Wenzel Buick GMC $21,718.00 
2018 Ford Fusion S 	 Gorno Ford $16,360.00 
Delivery fees $ 	100.00 
Total $38,178.00 

The new vehicles will replace two aging vehicles utilized by the Building Department. In turn, one of 
the vehicles being replaced will be reassigned to the Department of Public Services. 

In addition, three vehicles ending their useful service life would be cycled out, which include the 2004 
Police Interceptor, 2004 Pontiac Grand Prix and a 2006 Jeep Wrangler Soft-Top. These vehicles would 
be listed for auction on the MITN website, and it is anticipated that they could sell for an estimated range 
of $5,000.00 to $7,500.00. 

Lastly, for informational purposes I've attached an email from the Director of Public Services, Frank 
Schulte, regarding maintenance and needed repairs on all three of the vehicles currently being utilized 
by the Building Department. 

Attachment 

Recommend approval of the above stated and do not believe any benefit will accrue to the City to seek 
further competitive bids. 

       

IZ1kS ` 	k  
Date 

       

       

 

Bruce J. Smith, 	Admin strator 

 



Fund Certification:  

A budget transfer is required from the Motor Pool Fund balance, account No. 640-000-395.000 into 
Capital Equipment-General, account No. 640-852-977.299 in the amount of $38,280.00, and that the 
account number has been verified. 

Treasurer/Comptroller Signature 



Cathy Behrens 

From: 	 Frank Schulte 
Sent: 	 Tuesday, December 12, 2017 4:43 PM 
To: 	 Cathy Behrens 
Subject: 	 Property maintenance vehicles 

Hi Cathy, 

Per your request, I have reviewed the maintenance files and talked to city mechanic Bob Fournier 
regarding the condition of the following city vehicles. Listed below are our comments and 
recommendations. 

2004 Crown Victoria, A-14, used by the Building Department. This is a retired police vehicle with 
78,440 miles on it. I have reviewed the maintenance records and it has had equipment replaced 
multiple times including tires, shocks, ball joints and two air-conditioning units. Vehicles of this age 
and miles are known to need the transmission replaced. The cost to have the transmission replaced 
would be approximately $3,000.00. The Kelley blue book sale price on this vehicle ranges from 
$2,400-$3,100. It would be my recommendation to sell the vehicle before we need to replace the 
transmission. 

2006 Jeep Wrangler, A-17, used by the Building Department. This vehicle has 132,887 miles on it. 
This vehicle has been a maintenance nightmare for our mechanics. It has gone through two 
transmissions, two power steering gearboxes, ball joints, shocks, and currently the front axle housing 
is cracked. The cost to replace the front axle housing would be a minimum of $3,000.00. The body 
condition of the vehicle is very poor and is rotting out. The Kelley blue book price on this vehicle is 
$6,000-$7,000 in value. Due to the cracked axle and the potential of a minimum of $3,000.00 of 
added maintenance costs, I think it would be in the best interest of the city to sell the vehicle at this 
time. 

2004 GMC Bonneville, DPW-1, used by the Director of Public Services. It is 13 years old with 78,322 
miles on it. The vehicle has been a good car but an inspection of the vehicle reveals the entire body 
and undercarriage is rotting out. In the last year the brake lines two blower fans for the air 
conditioning unit have been replaced in the last year. The estimated Kelly blue book price of this 
vehicle is $2,000-$2,800. It would be recommendation to sell this vehicle while it still has value. 

All vehicles would be posted on the mitten website for auction. Please let me know if you need any 
further information. 

Thanks, 

Frank Schulte 
Director of Public Services 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
1200 Parkway Dr 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 
313 343-2460 

1 
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TO: 	Bruce Smith, City Administrator 	 G190 

FROM: 	Frank Schulte, Director of Public Services 

DATE: 	November 30, 2017 

SUBJECT: Wayne County Annual Permit Community Resolutions 

Each year Wayne County issues the City of Grosse Pointe Woods an Annual Maintenance 
Permit to Construct, Operate, Use and/or Maintain — To Occupy the Right-of-Way of County 
Roads. The County also requires an Annual Pavement Restoration Permit and an Annual 
Permit for Special Events. As in prior years, the Model Community Resolutions and copies 
of the city's certificate of insurance must accompany the approved permits. The cover letter 
indicates updates in insurance requirements; however, we confirmed with the Wayne County 
Permit Coordinator there are no changes from 2017 to 2018. Please be sure to include the 
correct permit number on the certificate of insurance for each permit in the "description of 
operations" box. City Attorney Chip Berschback has reviewed the November 9,10, and 14, 
2017 cover letters and the proposed permits and has compared them to last year's documents. 
Mr. Berschback recommends that the Council authorize the signing of the permits. 

I recommend the City Council adopt the Model Community Resolutions authorizing 
execution of the annual maintenance permit, the annual pavement restoration permit, and the 
annual permit for special events, authorize the Director of Public Services to sign the permits, 
and authorize the City Clerk to forward said documents to Wayne County. 

If you have any questions concerning this matter please contact me. 

Attachments 
c.c. 0/F 

Recommended for Approval as Submitted: 

V4--\ W   
Date 



 

CHARLES T. BERSCHBACK 
ATTORNEY AT LAW 

24053 EAST JEFFERSON AVENUE 

ST. CLAIR SHORES, MICHIGAN 48080-1530 

 

CHARLES T. BERSCHBACK 

(586) 7 7 7-0400 
FAX (586) 777-0430 
blbwlaw@yahoo.com  DON R. BERSCHBACK 

OF COUNSEL 

November 29, 2017 

The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Plaza 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236 

RE. 	Wayne County Annual Permits 

Dear Honorable Mayor and Council: 

Wayne County has submitted its annual request for the City to sign a resolution regarding 
road closures for special events and temporary banners as the City may request from time 
to time in Wayne County's right of way. I have reviewed the resolution and supporting 
documentation. 

The resolution can be summarized as follows: 

1. Any work performed for the City by a contractor will be acknowledged as 
working for the City, not an agent of the county. 

2. The City acknowledges that it will take no unlawful action or other conduct which 
results in claims being asserted against the county. 

3. With respect to activities authorized by the permit, if the City requires insurance 
on its own, it will require that such policy includes Wayne County as a named 
insured. 

4. The County reserves the right to require additional performance security or 
insurance depending on the type of permit requested. 

5. The City acknowledges that it will be responsible for necessary police supervision, 
any detours within the right of way, and traffic control. 

6. The City agrees to repair any road damage. 



The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
November 29, 2017 
RE: Wayne County Annual Permits 
Page 2 

It would be the prerogative of Council to adopt the proposed resolution authorizing 
execution of Wayne County permits, and authorize the City Administrator to sign the 
resolution and any future permits. 

Very truly yours, 

CHARLES T. BERSCHBACK 

CTB:nmg 
cc: 	Bruce Smith 

Lisa K. Hathaway 
Frank Schulte 
John Kosanke 



 

Warren C. Evans 
County Executive November 14, 2017 

City Of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Plaza Dr 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236-2343 

RE: Annual Maintenance Permit - A-18054 

Attention: Frank Schulte 

Enclosed is your Wayne County Annual Maintenance Permit package. The Annual Permit 
authorizes a municipality to occupy Wayne County road rights-of-way for the purpose of 
inspection, repair and routine maintenance of the following facilities which are under its 
jurisdiction: 

1. Sanitary sewer inspection, repair and routine maintenance. 
2. Water main inspection, repair, routine maintenance and installation of residential and 

commercial water service connections (two-inch maximum diameter). 
3. Application of dust palliatives. 
4. Repair and replacement of existing sidewalks. 

Note: A separate permit will be required for final pavement repairs when pavement is broken 
while making either emergency or non-emergency repairs. 

In addition to the Annual Permit, the package also includes the following attachments, which are 
incorporated by reference into the permit: 

1. Scope of Work and Conditions for Municipal Maintenance Permits 
2. General Conditions and Limitations of Permits 
3. Indemnity and Insurance Attachment 
4. Model Community Resolution 

Please review the insurance attachment carefully, since the insurance requirements have been 
recently updated. 

The WCDPS Permit Office has published its manual, Rules, Specifications and Procedures for 
Permit Construction. This manual replaces the Permit Specifications Document which was 
attached to annual permits in previous years. The manual is also incorporated by reference into 
this annual permit and is available online at: 

http://www.waynecounty.comidpeconstruction  permits.htm 

Department of Public Services — Pernit Office 
lc;R(-)c) Michio-an Avenue, Wayne, AIII 49184 a Phone (734)595-6504 u Fax (734) 595-6356 



As a condition of the annual permit, the County requires that your governing body pass a 
blanket resolution of approval which 

a) agrees to fulfill all permit obligations and conditions 

b) to the extent allowed by law, hold harmless and defends Wayne County and its officials 
and employees against any and all damage claims, suits or judgments of any kind or 
nature arising as a result of the permitted activity 

c) designates and authorizes an appropriate official of the requesting municipality to sign 
the permit on its behalf. 

Please return the original permit, signed and dated by the person authorized and designated by 
the resolution, along with a certified copy of the resolution and a copy of your certificate of 
insurance, consistent with the requirements transmitted in this package. Type the name of the 
designated signer below the signature line and submit these documents to: 

Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Permit Office 

Attn: Ms. Janice Clarke 
33809 Michigan Avenue 

Wayne MI 48184 

Once received, the Permit Coordinator will validate your permit and return an executed copy to 
you for your files. 

The Scope of Work and Conditions for Municipal Maintenance Permits requires that the Permit 
Holder submit monthly reports of all work performed under this permit. These reports should be 
faxed to 734.595.6356. 

If you have any questions regarding this Annual Permit, please contact me at 734.595.6504, 
extension 2002. 

Sincerely, 

Janice Clarke 
Permit Coordinator 

C: file 

Attachments: Annual Permit 
Scope of Work and Conditions for Municipal Maintenance Permits 
General Conditions and Limitations of Permits 
Indemnity and Insurance Attachment 
Model Community Resolution 

Department of Public Services — Permit Office 
onn 	 A 	 h44 401 QA 	 r71.11 4;04",_ -Sill Ira F 	171:11 



PERMIT OFFICE 
33809 MICHIGAN AVE 

WAYNE, Mi 48184, 
PHONE (734) 595-6504 

FAX (734) 595-6356 

72 HOURS BEFORE ANY 
CONSTRUCTION. CALL 

Various Staff 
(734) 595-6504, Ext: 2009 

FOR INSPECTION 

WAYNE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, USE AND/OR MAINTAIN 

PERMIT No. 

A-18054 
ISSUE DATE EXPIRES 

1/1/2018 12/31/2018 
REVIEW No. WORK ORDER 

79636 

PRO.IFr.T NAMF 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS - MAINTENANCE 

LOCATION 

VARIOUS ROADS ( ) 
CITY/TWP 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS 
PERMIT HOLDER 
	

CONTRACTOR 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

20025 MACK PLAZA DR 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236-2343 

CONTACT 	 CONTACT 

FRANK SCHULTE 	 (313) 343-2460 
	<BLANK> 

DESCRIPTION OF PERMITTED ACTIVIT 	 (72 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG, CALL MISS DIG 1-800-482-7161, www.missdig.org) 

TO OCCUPY THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF COUNTY ROADS FOR THE BELOW ACTIVITIES: 

1. SANITARY SEWER INSPECTION, REPAIR AND ROUTINE MAINTENANCE. 
2. WATERMAIN INSPECTION, REPAIR AND ROUTINE MAINTENANCE. 
3. DUST PALLATIVE, CALCIUM & SALT APPLICATIONS. 
4. SIDEWALK REPAIR AND REPLACEMENT. 
5. TO PERFORM STREET SWEEPING OPERATIONS DURING DAYLIGHT HOURS ONLY. 

ALL ACTUAL INSPECTION COSTS, INCLUDING OVERTIME, SUPERVISION, TESTING OF MATERIALS AND EMERGENCY WORK, IF REQUIRED, 
SHALL BE BILLED TO THE PERMIT HOLDER. 

REFER TO ATTACHMENTS REFERENCED BELOW FOR ANNUAL PERMIT REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS. 
ALL ATTACHMENTS ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE AS PART OF THIS PERMIT. 

PAVEMENT REPAIRS REQUIRE A SEPARATE PERMIT AND ARE NOT TO BE COMPLETED UNDER THE TERMS OF THIS ANNUAL PERMIT. 

PERMIT HOLDER AGREES TO SUBMIT MONTHLY REPORTS OF WORK PERFORMED UNDER THIS PERMIT. 

DEPOSITOR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

PERMIT FEE 	 $0.00 
PLAN REVIEW FEE 	 $0.00 
PARK FEE 	 $0.00 
OTHER FEE 	 $0.00 

BOND 	 $0.00 
INSPECTION DEPOSIT 	 $0.00 
OTHER BOND 	 $0.00 

TOTAL COSTS  	 $0.00 

APPROVED PLANS PREPARED BY 

PLANS APPROVED BY 	DATE PLANS APPROVED 

1/1/2018 

TOTAL CHECK AMOUNT 

LETTER OF CREDIT DEPOSITO 

$0.00 

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 
SCOPE OF WORK AND CONDITIONS FOR 
MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE PERMITS 

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE ATTACHMENT 

SAMPLE COMMUNITY RESOLUTION 

RULES. SPECIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES 
FOR PERMIT CONSTRUCTION - AVAILABLE 
ONLINE AT 

www.waynecounty.corMdps_engineering_cpoffice.htm 
CASHIER DATE 

1/1/2018 	 (PERMIT VALID ONLY IF ACCOMPANIED 
BY ABOVE ATTACHMENTS]  

In consideration of the Permit Holder and Contractor agreeing to abide and conform with all the terms and conditions herein, a Permit is hereby issued to the above named to Construct, Operate, Use and/or 
Maintain within the Road Right of Way, County Easement, and/or County Property. The permitted work described above shall be accomplished in accordance with the Approved Plans, Maps, Specifications 
and Statements filed with the Permit Office which are integral to and made pad of this Permit. The General Conditions as well as any Required Attachments are incorporated as part of this Permit. 

WAYNE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

FRANK SCHULTE 	
DATE 	 PREPARED BY 

PERMIT HOLDER / AUTHORIZED AGENT 

<BLANK> 	 DATE 
	

VALIDATED BY Ms. Janice Clarke 
	 DATE 

CONTRACTOR / AUTHORIZED AGENT 



Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Engineering Division - Permit Office 

• 	4 •4' 

11; 1 7'7> 	

Conditions & Limitations of Permits 

Plan Approval and Specifications: All work performed under the permit shall be done in accordance with the approved plans. specifications, maps, statements and special conditions filed with the County and shall comply 
with Wayne County Specifications, as defined in the current Warne Conn, Riley, Spreffi fyifi fots and Procedures Air Permit Coostrordi fit t  included as an attachment to this permit the nitwit: COIMIV Sloodord Mont for 
Permit COMirlfCtIMI  and the MDOT Swofford Specifications For Coostruidion  as modified by WCDPS Special Provisions, and other WCDPS specifications. Any situation or problem which occurs as a result of the 
construction, operation, use and/or maintenance of the facility in the right-of-way and is not covered by the approved plans  nor by the County's current Standards and Specifications shall be resolved by the Permit Holder as 
directed and approved by the Permit Office. Any significant change to the plans must be approved by the Permit Office and is authorized only when an approved addendum is obtained from the Permit Office. 

Fees: The Permit Holder shall be responsible for all fees and costs incurred by the County in connection with the permit and shall deposit payment for fees and costs as determined by the County at the time the permit is 
issued. 

Bond: The Permit Holder shall furnish a bond in cash or Certified check in an amount acceptable to the County to guarantee performance under the conditions of the permit. The County may use all or any portion of the 
bond which shall be necessary to cover any expense, including inspection costs or damage incurred by the County through the granting of tux permit. Should the bond be insufficient to cover the expenses and damages 
incurred by the County, the Permit Holder shall pay such deficiency upon billing by the County. If the bond amount exceeds the expenses and damages incurred by the County, the excess portion will be returned to the 
Depositor. The excess performance bond provided for herein, when it cannot be returned, shall be deposited into the County Road Fund and become a part thereof, unless claimed by the Depositor within one year of the date 
of satisfactory completion of the construction authorized by the permit. 

Insurance: The Permit Holder shall furnish proof of liability and property damage insurance in the form and amounts acceptable to the County with Wayne County named as an insured party. The Permit Holder shall 
maintain this insurance until the permit is released, revoked or cancelled by the County. 

Indemnification / Hold Harmless: Sub-Section 1 herein applies to all Permit Holders except Municipalities. Sub-Section 2 herein applies to Municipalities only, 

1. To the extent allowed by law, the Permit Holder shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Wayne County, its Department of Public Services, its officials and employees against any and all claims, suits and judgments to 
which the County, the Department, its officials and employees may be subject and for all costs and actual attorney fees which may be incurred on account of injury to persons or damage to property, including property of 
the County, whether due to negligence of the Permit Holder or to the joint negligence of the Permit Holder and the County, arising out of any and all work performed under the permit, or in connection with work not 
authorized by the permit, or resulting from failure to comply with the terms of the permit or arising out of the continued existence of the work product that is the subject of the permit. This hold harmless provision must 
not be construed as a waiver of any governmental immunity by the County. 

2. To the extent allowed by law, the Municipality as Permit Holder shall hold harmless and defend Wayne County. its Department of Public Services, its officials and employees, for the Municipality's own negligence, 
tortious acts, errors, or omissions, and the acts, errors, or omissions of any of its employees, on account of injury to persons or damage 10 property, including property of the County, arising out of any and all work 
performed under the permit, or in connection with work not authorized by the permit, or resulting from failure to comply with the terms of the permit or arising out of the continued existence of work product that is the 
subject of the permit. Sub-section 1 above applies to contractors, subcontractors, consultants, or agents of the Municipality. This hold harmless provision must not be construed as a waiver of any governmental immunity 
by the County or the Municipality's, as provided by statute or modified by court decisions. 

Permit on Site: The Permit Holder shall keep available a copy of the permit and any associated approved plans on site during permitted activities. 

Notification for Start and Completion of Work: The permit shall not become operative until it has been fully executed by the County. The Permit Holder shall notify the County before starting construction and shall notify 
the County when work is completed. The Permit Holder or their representative shall have copies of the executed permit and approved plans in their possession on the job site at all times. 

1. The Permit Holder shall provide at least three (3) days advanced notice, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, to the Permit Office prior to the commencement of any pan-titled activities by submitting a START OF 
WORK NOTIFICATION form by mail, fax ore-mail. In certain instances, additional notice may be required by the Permit Office. In de event that construction work ceases for a period of time, then the Permit Holder 
shall notify the Wayne County Inspector at least 24 hours prior to resuming work. 

2. The Permit Holder shall comply with all requirements of the Miss Dig Statute. MCL §460.701 et seq., as amended. The Permit Holder shall call "MISS DIG" at (800) 482.7161, at least 72 hours, excluding Saturdays, 
Sundays and holidays, but not more than twenty-one (21) calendar days, before starting any underground work. The Permit Holder assumes all responsibility fur damage to or interruption of underground utilities. 

3. The Permit Holder shall call Wayne County Department of Public Services' Traffic Operations Office at (734) 955-2154, at least 72 hours prior, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, but not more than twenty-one 
(21) calendar days, before starting any underground work in the vicinity of any traffic signal equipment owned, operated or maintained by Wayne County. 

Safety: The Permit Holder agrees that all work under the permit shall be performed in a safe manner and to keep the area affected by the permit in a safe condition until the work is completed and accepted by the County. 
The Permit Holder shall furnish, install and maintain all necessary traffic controls and protection which are in accordance with the current Manual on Uniform Traffic. Control Devices (MUTCD). The Permit Holder shall 
conduct all activities and maintain all facilities as set forth in the permit in a manner so as not to damage, impair, interfere with, or obstruct a public road or create a foreseeable risk of harm to the traveling public. The Permit 
Holder shall comply with all applicable OSHA and MIOSHA requirements. 

Underground Utilities: The Permit Holder shall contact all utility owners regarding their facilities prior to starting work and shall comply with all applicable provisions of Act 53, Public Acts of 1974, as amended. Wayne 
County makes no warranty either expressed or implied as to the condition or suitability of subsurface conditions or any existing facility which may be encountered during an excavation. The presence or absence of utilities is 
based on the best information available and the County is not responsible for the accuracy of this information. The Permit Holder assumes all responsibility for the interruption and damage to underground utilities. The 
Permit Holder is responsible for proper disposal, in accordance with current reeulations, of any material excavated from within the right-of-way. Such materials include, without limitation, soils or groundwater contaminated 
by petroleum products or other pollutants associated with sites identified by the MDEQ or reported on appropriate release forms for underground storage tanks. 

Assignability: The permit is neither transferable nor assignable without the written consent of the County. 

Limitation of Permit: The Applicant and the Permit Holder shall be responsible for obtaining and shall secure any permits or permission necessary or required by law from State, federal or other local governmental agencies 
and jurisdictions, corporations or individuals. These include, without limitation, those pertaining to drains, inland lakes and streams, wetlands, woodlands, flood plains, filling, noise regulation and hours of operation. Issuance 
of a Wayne County permit does not authorize activities otherwise regulated by State, federal or local agencies. 

Access of Other Vehicles: The Permit Holder shall, at all times possible, maintain a minimum of one acceptable access to all abutting occupied properties, driveways and side streets unless otherwise specified on the 
approved plans. The Permit Holder shall notify all owners or occupants of properties whose access may be temporarily disrupted during the permitted work. The local police, fire or emergency service agencies shall define 
acceptable access. The Permit Holder shall provide signing and other improvements necessary to ensure adequate access until the roadway, driveway or sate street is restored. The Permit Holder shall conduct all operations so 
as to minimize inconvenience to abutting property owners, Wayne County reserves the right to reasonably restrict the progress of work by the Permit Holder based on the rate of roadway and right-of-way restoration, 
including permanent or temporary pavement. Wayne County may require that work be suspended until satisfactory backfilling of open trenches or excavations has been completed and driveways, side streets and drainage 
restored. 

Restoration: The Permit Holder agrees to restore the County road and road right-of-way. County drain easement or County park property to a condition equal to or better than its condition before work under the permit 
began. If the Permit Holder fails to satisfactorily restore the permitted work area, Wayne County may take all practical actions necessary to provide reasonably safe and convenient public travel, preservation of the roadway 
and drainage, prevention of soil erosion and sedimentation, and elimination of nuisance to abutting property owners caused by the permitted activity. Security in the form of cash, a certified check or surety bond shall be 
required to secure the cost of restoring the disturbed portion of the right-of-way to an acceptable safe condition. Tire amount of the security shall be determined by the Permit Office. In the event that a suspension of work will 
be protracted or that the work will not be completed by the Permit Holder, the Permit Holder shall restore the right-of-way to a condition similar-  to the condition that existed prior to issuance of the permit. 

Acceptance: Acceptance by the County of work performed does not relieve the Permit Holder of full responsibility for work performed or the presence of the permitted facility. The Permit Holder acknowledges that the 
County has no liability for the presence of the Permit Holder's facility located within the County road right-of-way, County drain easement or County park property. 

Permit Expiration and Extension of Time: All work authorized by the permit shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Permit Office onor before the expiration date specified in the permit. Any request for an extension 
of time for completion shall be on a completed County form and shall demonstrate good cause for granting the request. Additional requirements may be imposed as a condition of an extension of time due to seasonal 
limitations or other considerations. These additional requirements may include, without limitation, changes to materials or construction methods, reestablishment of fees, bonds, deposits and insurance requirements. 

Responsibility: The design, construction, operation and maintenance of all work covered by the permit shall be at the Permit Holder's expense with the exception that the Permit Holder will not be responsible for 
maintaining road widenings or similar facilities which become part of the County roadway. 

Revocation: The permit may be suspended or revoked at the will of the County. Upon order of the County, the Permit Holder shall surrender the permit, cease operations and remove, alter or relocate, at their expense, the 
facilities for which the permit was granted. The Permit Holder expressly waives any right to claim damages for compensation resulting from the revocation of the permit. 

Violation: The County may declare the permit null and void if the Permit Holder violates the terms of the permit. The County may require uomediate removal of the Permit Holder's facilities and restoration of the County 
property, or the County may remove the facilities and restore the County property at the Permit Holder's expense. The Permit Holder agrees that in the event of a violation of the terms of the permit or in the event the work 
authorized by the permit is not satisfactorily completed by the permit expiration date, the County may use all or any portion of the performance bond to restore the County road right-of-way, drain easement. wastewater 
facility or park property as necessary for reasonably safe and efficient operations and maintenance, or to establish extraordinary maintenance procedures as required to assure reasonably safe and efficient operation of the 
County facility. 

Inspection and Testing of Materials: Wayne County reserves the right of inspection and the testing of materials by its authorized representatives of all permitted activities and/or activities within the road right-of-way, 
County owned property or within a County drain easement. All items identified by the final inspection shall be resolved prior to release of the permit. All materials and methods utilized during the course of the authorized 
permit work shall meet the requirements of the current MOOT Standard Specifications For Construction as modified by Wayne County Special Provisions. Standard Plans for Permit Construction and this manual. The Permit 
Holder shall reimburse Wayne County for all required inspections and testing of materials. 

Design: The Permit Holder is fully responsible for the design of the permitted facility, such that the design shall be consistent with all applicable County standards, specifications. guidelines, requirements and with good 
engineering practice. Any errors in the plans that become evident after the issuance of a permit, and which change the scope of permitted nork, are subject to review and may be grounds for revocation of the permit. Tice 
Permit Office will not relieve the Permit Holder of the responsibility of correcting errors, deficiencies, or omissions due to oversight or unforeseen contingencies such as faulty drainage, poor subsoil conditions or the failure 
of the Permit Holder's engineer to show all the related or pertinent conditions inside or outside the plan area. 

Drainage: Drainage shall not be altered to flow into the mad right-of-way or road drainage system unless approved by Wayne County. 

Permit Holder Compliance: The Permit Holder shall abide by the conditions and limitations contained on the permit and all other conditions listed within the WCDPS Rules, Specifications and Procedures for Construction 
Permits. The application of any work undertaken under the permit shall constitute the Permit Holder's agreement to the Provision. 



Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Engineering Division — Permit Office 

Scope of Work and Conditions Attachment 
For Annual Municipal Maintenance Permits 

The Annual Permit authorizes the municipality to occupy Wayne County road rights-of-way for the purpose of 
inspection, repair and routine maintenance of the facilities listed below that are under its jurisdiction. 

Scope of Work - The following work is authorized under the Annual Maintenance Permit: 

Sanitary Sewers 

1. Inspection, repair and routine maintenance of the facilities under its jurisdiction 

Water Main and installation of 2" pipe 

1. Inspection, repair and routine maintenance of the facilities under its jurisdiction 
2. Water service connection with 2" diameter pipe or less, serving single customer 

A separate permit will be required for any operations performed under the following conditions for Water and/or 
Sanitary related work: 

a. For all water service connections larger than a two inch (2") diameter. 
b. For any water service connection that serves more than one customer. 
c. Whenever work is to be performed in a new subdivision. 
d. For any sanitary sewer service connection. 

Dust Palliative Applications 

1. Dust palliative treatment shall be with calcium magnesium chloride in accordance with Wayne County 
specifications. 

2. The municipality shall designate each road to be treated with dust palliative and pay the Contractor for all 
materials and service. 

3. Prior to the application of Dust Palliative Materials, the Permit Holder shall provide at least seven (7) days 
notice to the Wayne County Roads Division (313-955-9920) to allow for preparation and inspection of the 
roads to be treated. 

Sidewalk 

1. Existing sidewalks may be repaired or replaced at existing alignment on existing grade. 

A separate permit will be required for the construction of a new sidewalk, for the replacement of an existing 
sidewalk on a new alignment or grade or for the construction of new sidewalk ramps to the County road. 

Street Sweeping 
1. Street sweeping shall be performed during daylight hours only. 
2. All traffic control devices shall conform to the provisions of the current MMUTCD. 

Permit Conditions 

1. A separate permit will be required for final pavement repairs when pavement is broken while making 
either emergency or non-emergency repairs. 

2. Reports indicating all work performed or that no work was performed under the permit shall be provided to 
the Permit Office at the end of each month. 

3. Any work not covered under the annual scope of work and conditions above shall require a separate permit. 
Refer to the Wayne County Rules, Specifications and Procedures Construction Permits. 

4. All inspection costs, including overtime, supervision, testing of materials and emergency work, if required, 
shall be billed to the Permit Holder. 

Ravicari• Clrgrthor O. 91111R 



Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Engineering Division — Permit Office 

Indemnity and Insurance Attachment 

To the extent allowed by law, the Permit Holder shall defend and hold harmless Wayne County, the 
Department of Public Services, its officials and employees against any and all claims, suits and judgments 
to which Wayne County, the Departments, its officials and employees may be subject and for all costs and 
actual attorney fees which may be incurred on account of injury to persons or damage to property, including 
County property. The Permit Holder shall provide this indemnity for any incident arising out of any and all 
activities performed under the permit or in connection with work not authorized by the permit, or resulting 
from the failure to comply with the terms of the permit, or arising out of the continued existence of the work 
product that is subject to the permit. 

Certificates of insurance shall be required for all construction permits, excluding residential driveway 
permits. Each certificate of insurance and any associated correspondence shall reference the plan review 
number of the project. General liability and automotive liability insurance coverage shall be in amounts 
detailed below: 

The general liability insurance coverage shall be in amounts not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence 
and $2,000,000 general aggregate. Proof of automobile liability shall be in amounts not less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident, bodily injury per accident, and property damage per 
accident, and in an amount not less than $1,000,000 for bodily injury each person, each occurrence 
and property damage liability $1,000,000 each occurrence. 

The certificate of insurance must be provided by a person, the corporation, or by authorized representatives 
who signed personally either the application or permit. Insurance shall remain in force until the permit is 
released by Wayne County. 

The Wayne County Department of Public Services shall be a Certificate Holder on the policy of 
insurance. Wayne County, drainage district, and its officers, agents and employees shall be named 
as additional insured parties. It is also required that the annual permit numbers are included on 
each certificate of insurance. 

The insurance shall cover a period not less than the term of the permit and shall provide that it cannot be 
cancelled or reduced without thirty (30) days advance written notice to Wayne County, by certified mail, 
first-class, return receipt requested. The thirty (30) days shall begin on the date when the County received 
the notice, as evidenced by the return receipt. 

Such insurance shall provide by endorsement therein for the thirty (30) day notice by the insurer to the 
Permit Office prior to termination, cancellation or material alteration of the policy. 

Licensee agrees to make application for renewal thereof at least sixty (60) days before the expiration date 
of the policy then in force and to file a certified copy of such renewed policy with the Permit Office. 

The policy shall also provide by endorsement for the removal of the contractual exclusion. 

Should insurance coverage be cancelled or reduced below acceptable limits, or allowed to expire, the 
authorization to continue work under the permit shall be suspended or revoked and shall not resume until 
new insurance is in force and accepted by Wayne County. Wayne County may, in such cases, take 
appropriate action to restore or protect the road and appurtenances. All costs incurred by this action shall 
be deducted from any remaining inspection deposit, bond and/or Letter of Credit and, if necessary, the 
Permit Holder may be billed to defray actual expenses. 



MODEL COMMUNITY RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 

WAYNE COUNTY PERMITS 

Resolution No. 

At a Regular Meeting of the 	 (Name 	of 

Community Governing Board) on 	  (date), the following 

resolution was offered: 

WHEREAS, the 	 (hereinafter 	the 	"Community") 
periodically applies to the County of Wayne Department of Public Services, Engineering 
Division Permit Office (hereinafter the "County") for permits to conduct emergency 
repairs, annual maintenance work, and for other purposes on local and County roads 
located entirely within the boundaries of the Community, as needed from time to time to 
maintain the roads in a condition reasonably safe and convenient for public travel; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 51 of 1951, being MCL 247.651 et seq., the County permits 
and regulates such activities noted above and related temporary road closures; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in consideration of the County granting such 
permit (hereinafter the "Permit"), the Community agrees and resolves that: 

Any work performed for the Community by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as 
a contractor for the Community and not as a contractor or agent of the County. Any 
claims by any contractor or subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the 
Community. The County shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors 
and contractors of the Community, or their subcontractors. 

The Community shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or 
indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the Permit which results 
in claims being asserted against or judgment being imposed against the County, and all 
officers, agents and employees thereof pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event 
that same occurs, for the purposes of the Permit, it will be considered a breach of the 
Permit thereby giving the County a right to seek and obtain any necessary relief or 
remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages. 

With respect to any activities authorized by Permit, when the Community requires 
insurance on its own or its contractor's behalf, it shall also require that such policy 
include as named insured the County of Wayne and all officers, agents and employees 
thereof. 

The incorporation by the County of this Resolution as part of a permit does not prevent 
the County from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance 
of a Permit. 

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall, at no expense to Wayne 
County, provide necessary police supervision, establish detours and post all necessary 



signs and other traffic control devices in accordance with the Michigan Manual of 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall assume full responsibility 
for the cost of repairing damage done to the County road during the period of road 
closure or partial closure. 

This Resolution shall continue in force from the date of execution until cancelled by the 
Community or the County with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 
other party. It will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the Community with 
regard to any Permit which has already been issued or activity which has already been 
undertaken. 

The Community stipulates that it agrees to the terms of the County of Wayne permit at 
the time a permit is signed by the Community's authorized representative. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following individual(s) is/are authorized in their 
official capacity as the Community's authorized representative to sign and so bind the 
Community to the provisions of any and all permits applied for to the County of Wayne, 
Department of Public Services Engineering Division Permit Office for necessary permits 
from time to time to work within County road right-of-way or local roads on behalf of the 
Community. 

Name 	 Title 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted 

by the [Board of Trustees/City Council] of the 	  

(name of Community), County of Wayne, Michigan, on 	  

#305299-v2 



 

Warren C. Evans 
County Executive November 10, 2017 

City Of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Plaza Dr 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236-2343 

RE: Annual Pavement Restoration Permit - A-18109 

Attention: Frank Schulte 

Enclosed is your Wayne County Annual Pavement Restoration Permit package. The Annual 
Permit authorizes your company to occupy Wayne County road rights-of-way for the purpose of 
pavement repair and restoration. 

In addition to the Annual Permit, the package also includes the following attachments, which are 
incorporated by reference into the permit: 

1. General Conditions and Limitations of Permits 
2. Indemnity and Insurance Attachment 
3. Model Community Resolution 

Please review the insurance attachment carefully, since the insurance requirements have been 
recently updated. 

The WCDPS Permit Office has published its manual, Rules, Specifications and Procedures for 
Permit Construction. This manual replaces the Permit Specifications document which was 
attached to annual permits in previous years. The manual is also incorporated by reference into 
this annual permit and is available online at: 

http://www.wavnecounty.com/dpeconstruction  permits.htm 

In particular, refer to Section 6, "Restoration" and Section 7, "Maintaining Traffic and Traffic 
Control Devices" for specific rules and specifications regarding pavement restoration work. 
Additionally, refer to Wayne County Standards of Permit Construction, numbered: PR-1, PR-2, 
PR-3, PR-4 and PR-5 for detailed specifications on pavement repair and patching. These 
standards are also available online at the above web address. 

As an additional condition of this annual permit, the Permit Holder agrees to provide at least 72 
hours prior notice before starting any construction. Each notice shall be sent to the Permit 
Office at the address shown below and shall include the location and date of the proposed work 
along with a detailed set of construction plans. 

For each restoration project,.plan review and inspection costs, including overtime, supervision, 
materials testing and emergency work (if required) will be billed to the Permit Holder on a 
monthly basis. 

Department of Public Services — Permit Office 
33809 Michigan Avenue, Wayne, MI 49184 Phone (734) 595-6504 st Fax (734) 595-6356 



Please return the original permit, signed and dated by an authorized signatory, confirming that 
the signer's name is typed below the signature line and submit these documents to: 

Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Permit Office 

Attn: Ms. Janice Clarke 
33809 Michigan Avenue 

Wayne MI 48184 

Once received, I will validate your permit and return an executed copy to you for your files. 

If you have any questions regarding this Annual Permit, please contact me at 734.595.6504, 
extension 2002. 

Sincerely, 

Janice Clarke 
Permit Coordinator 

C: file 

Attachments: Annual Permit 
General Conditions and Limitations of Permits 
Indemnity and Insurance Attachment 

Model Community Resolution 

Department of Public Services — Permit Office 
33809 Michigan Avenue, Wayne, MI 49184 IA Phone (734) :595-6504 u Fax (734) 595-63.5.6 



PERMIT OFFICE 
33809 MICHIGAN AVE 

WAYNE, Mi 48184, 
PHONE (734) 595-6504 

FAX (734) 595-6356 

72 HOURS BEFORE ANY 
CONSTRUCTION. CALL 

Various Staff 
(734) 595-6504, Ext: 2009 

FOR INSPECTION 

WAYNE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, USE AND/OR MAINTAIN 

PERMIT No. 

A-18109 
ISSUE DATE EXPIRES 

1/1/2018 12/31/2018 
REVIEW No. WORK ORDER 

79349 

PRO.iFc.T NAMF 
GROSSE POINTE WOODS - PAVEMENT RESTORATION 

LOCATION 

VARIOUS 
CITY/TWP 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

PERMIT HOLDER 
	

CONTRACTOR 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

20025 MACK PLAZA DR 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236-2343 

CONTACT 
	

CONTACT 

FRANK SCHULTE 	 (313) 343-2460 
	<BLANK> 

DESCRIPTION OF PERMITTED ACTIVIT 	 (72 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG, CALL MISS DIG 1-800-482-7161, www.missdig.org) 

TO REPLACE AND REPAIR PAVEMENT CUTS DUE TO UTILITY REPAIRS WITHIN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY OF VARIOUS ROADS IN WAYNE COUNTY 
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE WAYNE COUNTY RULES, SPECIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES MANUAL & WAYNE COUNTY STANDARD PLANS 
FOR PERMIT CONSTRUCTION. 

AT LEAST 72 HOURS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION, THE PERMIT HOLDER SHALL SUBMIT WRITTEN NOTICE OF CONSTRUCTION, INCLUDING 
THE LOCATION AND DATE OF THE WORK ALONG WITH CONSTRUCTION PLANS TO THE PERMIT OFFICE FOR APPROVAL. 

THE FINAL AREA OF ANY PAVEMENT TO BE REPLACED AND/OR OVERLAID SHALL BE DETERMINED AND MARKED OUT BY THE COUNTY. 

FOR EACH PROJECT, ALL ACTUAL PLAN REVIEW AND INSPECTION COSTS, INCLUDING OVERTIME, SUPERVISION, TESTING OF MATERIALS 
AND EMERGENCY WORK, IF REQUIRED, SHALL BE BILLED TO THE PERMIT HOLDER ON A MONTHLY BASIS. 

ANY ROAD CLOSURE SHALL BE IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE MICHIGAN MANUAL OF TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES. 
HTTP://MUTCD.FHWA.DOT.GOV  

THE ATTACHMENTS LISTED BELOW ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE AS PART OF THE CONDITIONS OF THIS PERMIT. 

APPROVED PLANS PREPARED BY DEPOSITOR 

PLANS APPROVED BY 	DATE PLANS APPROVED 

1/1/2018 

LETTER OF CREDIT DEPOSITO 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

PERMIT FEE 	 $0.00 
PLAN REVIEW FEE 	 $0.00 
PARK FEE 	 $0.00 
OTHER FEE 	 $0.00 

BOND 	 $0.00 
INSPECTION DEPOSIT 	 $0.00 
OTHER BOND 	 $0.00 
TOTAL COSTS  	 $0.00 

TOTAL CHECK AMOUNT $0.00  
CASHIER 	 DATE 

1/1/2018 

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS 

GENERAL CONDITIONS 

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE ATTACHMENT 
RULES, SPECIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES 
FOR PERMIT CONSTRUCTION - AVAILABLE 
ONLINE AT 

vAvw.waynecounty.com/dps_engineeting_cpoffice.htm  

(PERMIT VALID ONLY IF ACCOMPANIED 
BY ABOVE ATTACHMENTS)  

In consideration of the Permit Holder and Contractor agreeing to abide and conform with all the terms and conditions herein, a Permit is hereby issued to the above named to Construct, Operate, Use and/or 
Maintain within the Road Right of Way, County Easement, and/or County Property. The permitted work described above shall be accomplished in accordance with the Approved Plans, Maps, Specifications 
and Statements filed with the Permit Office which are integral to and made part of this Permit. The General Conditions as well as any Required Attachments are incorporated as an of this Permit. 

WAYNE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

FRANK SCHULTE 	
DATE 	

PREPARED BY 
PERMIT HOLDER / AUTHORIZED AGENT 

<BLANK> 	 DATE 
	

VALIDATED BY Ms. Janice Clarke 
	 DATE 

CONTRACTOR / AUTHORIZED AGENT 



Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Engineering Division - Permit Office 

Conditions & Limitations of Permits 

Plan Approval and Specifications: All work performed under the permit shall be done in accordance with the approved plans, specifications, maps statements and special conditions filed with the County and shall comply 
with Wayne County Specifications, as defined in the current Warne Count,: Rules, Succifiections and Prricediire, flu Permit Construction  included as an attachment to this permit, the Movie Counts Standard Plans for 
Permit Consmirtion  and the ff.DOT Stow/gird Specifications Fur Cenntrucrion  as modified by WCDPS Special provisions, and other WCDPS specifications. Any situation or problem which occurs as a result of the 
construction, operation, use and/or maintenance of the facility in the right-of-way and is not covered by the approved plans nor by the County's current Standards and Specifications shall be resolved by die Permit tickler as 
directed and approved by the Permit Office. Any significant change to the plans must be approved by the Permit Office and is authorized only when an approved addendum is obtained from the Permit Office. 

Fees: The Permit Holder shall be responsible for all fees and costs incurred by the County in connection with the permit and shall deposit payment for fees and costs as determined by the County at the time the  permit is 
issued. 

Bond: The Permit Holder shall furnish a bond in cash or Certified check in an amount acceptable to the County to guarantee performance under the conditions of the permit. The County may use all or any portion of the 
bond which shall be necessary to cover any expense, including inspection costs or damage incurred by the County through the granting of the permit. Should the bond be insufficient to cover the expenses and damages 
incurred by the County, the Permit Holder shall pay such deficiency upon billing by the County. If the bond amount exceeds the expenses and damages incurred by the County, the excess portion will be relented to the 
Depositor. The excess performance bond provided for herein, when it cannot be returned, shall be deposited into the County Road Fund and become a part thereof, unless claimed by the Depositor within one year of the date 
of satisfactory completion of the construction authorized by the permit. 

Insurance: The Permit Hokler shall furnish proof of liability and property damage insurance in the form and amounts acceptable to the County with Wayne County named as an insured party. The Permit Holder shall 
maintain this insurance until the permit is released, revoked or cancelled by the County. 

Indemnification / Field Harmless: Sub-Section 1 herein applies to all Permit Holders except Municipalities. Sub-Section 2 herein applies to Municipalities only. 

1. To the extent allowed by law, the Permit Holder shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Wayne County, its Department of Public Services, its officials and employees against any and all claims, suits and judgments to 
which the County, the Department, its officials and employees may be subject and for all costs and actual attorney fees which may be incurred on account of injury to persons or damage to property, including property of 
the County, whether due to negligence of the Permit Holder or to the joint negligence of the Permit Holder and the County, arising out of any and all work performed under the permit, or in comedian with work riot 
authorized by the permit, or resulting from failure to comply with the terms of the permit or arising out of the continued existence of the work product that is the subject of the permit. This hold harmless prevision must 
not be construed as a waiver of any governmental immunity by the County. 

2. To the extent allowed by law, the Municipality as Permit Holder shall hold harmless and defend Wayne County, its Department of Public Services, its officials and employees, for the Municipality's own negligence, 
tortious acts, errors, or omissions, and the acts, errors, or omissions of any of its employees, on account of injury to persons or damage to property, including property of the County, arising out of any and all work 
performed under the permit, or in connection with work not authorized by the permit, or resulting from failure to comply with the terms of the permit or arising out of the continued existence of work product that is the 
subject of the permit. Sub-section 1 above applies to contractors, subcontractors, consultants, or agents of the Municipality. This hold harmless provision must not be construed as a waiver of any governmental immunity 
by the County or the Municipality's, as provided by statute or modified by court decisions. 

Permit on Site: The Permit Holder shall keep available a copy of the permit and any associated approved plans on site during permitted activities. 

Notification for Start and Completion of Work: The permit shall not become operative until it has been fully executed by the County. The Permit Holder shall notify the County before starting construction and shall notify 
the County when work is completed. The Pencil Holder or their representative shall have copies of the executed permit and approved plans in their possession on the job site at all times. 

I. The Permit Holder shall provide at least three (3) days advanced notice, excluding Saturdays. Sundays and holidays, to the Permit Office prior to the commencement of any pennitted activities by submitting a START OF 
WORK NOTIFICATION form by mail, fax or e-mail In certain instances, additional notice may be required by the Permit Office. In de event that construction work ceases for a period of time, then the Permit Holder 
shall notify the Wayne County Inspector at least 24 hours prior to resuming work. 

2. 	The Permit Holder shall comply with all requirements of the Miss Dig Statute, MCL §460.701 et seq., as amended. The Permit Holder shall call "MISS OR  T, at (800) 482-7161, at least 72 hours, excluding Saturdays, 
Sundays and holidays, but not more than twenty-one (21) calendar days, before starting any underground work. The Permit Holder assumes all responsibility for damage to or interruption of underground utilities. 

3. The Permit Holder shall call Wayne County Department of Public Services' Traffic Operations Office at (734) 955-2154, at least 72 hours prior, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, but not more than twenty-one 
(21) calendar days, before starting any underground work in the vicinity of any traffic signal equipment owned, operated or maintained by Wayne County. 

Safety: The Permit Holder agrees that all work. under the permit shall be performed in a safe manner and to keep the area affected by the permit in a safe condition until the work is completed and accepted by the County. 
The Permit Holder shall furnish, install and maintain all necessary traffic controls and protection which are in accordance with the current Manual Q111,Inifirou Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). The Permit Holder shall 
conduct all activities and maintain all facilities as set forth in the permit in a manner so as not to damage, impair, interfere with, or obstruct a public road or create a foreseeable risk of ham to the traveling public. The Permit 
Holder shall comply with all applicable OSHA and MIOSHA requirements. 

Underground Utilities: The Permit Holder shall contact all utility owners regarding their facilities prior to starting work and shall comply with all applicable provisions of Act 53, Public Acts of 1974, as amended. Wayne 
County makes no warranty either expressed or implied as to the condition or suitability of subsurface conditions or any existing facility which may be encountered during an excavation. The presence or absence of utilities is 
based on the best information available and the County is not responsible for the accuracy of this information. The Permit Holder assumes all responsibility for the interruption and damage to underground utilities. The 
Permit Holder is responsible for proper disposal, in accordance with current regulations, of any material excavated from within the right-of-way. Such materials include, without limitation, soils or groundwater contaminated 
by petroleum products or other pollutants associated with sites identified by the MDEQ or reported on appropriate release forms for underground storage tanks. 

Assignability: The permit is neither transferable nor assignable without the written consent of the County. 

Limitation of Permit: The Applicant and the Permit Holder shall be responsible for obtaining and shall secure any permits or permission necessary or requited by law from State, federal or other local governmental agencies 
and jurisdictions, corporations or individuals. These include, without limitation, those pertaining to drains, inland lakes and streams, wetlands, woodlands, flood plains, filling, noise regulation and hours of operation. Issuance 
of a Wayne County permit does not authorize activities otherwise regulated by State, federal or local agencies. 

Access of Other Vehicles: The Permit Holder shall, at all times possible, maintain a minimum of one acceptable access to all abutting occupied properties, driveways and side streets unless otherwise specified on the 
approved plans. The Permit Holder shall notify all owners or occupants of properties whose access may be temporarily disrupted during the permitted work. The local police, tire or emergency service agencies shall define 
acceptable access. The Permit Holder shall provide signing and other improvements necessary to ensure adequate access until the roadway, driveway or side street is restored. The Permit Holder shall conduct all operations so 
as to minimize inconvenience to abutting property owners. Wayne County reserves the right to reasonably restrict the progress of work by the Permit Holder based on the rate of roadway and right-of-way restoration, 
including permanent or temporary pavement. Wayne County may require that work be suspended until satisfactory backfilling of open trenches or excavations has been completed and driveways, side streets and drainage 
restored. 

Restoration: The Permit Holder agrees to restore the County road and road right-of-way, County drain easement or County park property to a condition equal to or better than its condition before work under the permit 
began. If the Permit Holder fails to satisfactorily restore the permitted work area, Wayne County may take all practical actions necessary to provide reasonably safe and convenient pubic travel, preservation of the roadway 
and drainage, prevention of soil erosion and sedimentation, and elimination of nuisance to abutting property owners caused by the permitted activity. Security in the form of cash, a certified check or surety bond shall be 
required to secure the cost of restoring the disturbed portion of the right-of-way to an acceptable safe condition. The amount of the security shall be determined by the Permit Office. In the event that a suspension of work will 
be protracted or that the work will not be completed by the Permit Holder, the Permit Holder shall restore the right-of-way to a condition similar to the condition that existed prior to issuance of the permit. 

Acceptance: Acceptance by the County of work performed does not relieve the Permit Holder of full responsibility for work perfcnined or the presence of the permitted facility. The Permit Holder acknowledges that the 
County has no liability for the presence of the Permit Holder's facility located within the County road right-of-way, County drain easement or County park property. 

Permit Expiration and Extension of Time: Alt work authorized by the permit shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Permit Office on or before the expiration date specified in the pemtit. Any request for an extension 
of time for completion shall be on a completed County form and shall demonstrate good cause for granting the request. Additional requirements may be imposed as a condition of an extension of time due to seasonal 
limitations or other considerations. These additional requirements may include, without limitation, changes to materials or construction methods, reestablishment of fees, bonds, deposits and insurance requirements. 

Responsibility: The design, construction, operation and maintenance of all work covered by the permit shall be at the Permit Holder's expense with the exception that the Permit Holder will not be responsible for 
maintaining road widenings or similar facilities which become part of the County roadway. 

Revocation: The permit may be suspended or revoked at the will of the County. Upon order of the County, the Permit Holder shall surrender the permit, cease operations and remove, alter or relocate, at their expense, the 
facilities for which the permit was granted. The Permit Holder expressly waives any right to claim damages for compensation resulting from the revocation of the permit. 

Violation: The County may declare the permit null and void if the Permit Holder violates the terms of the permit. The County may require immediate removal of the Permit Holder's facilities and restoration of the County 
property, or the County may remove the facilities and restore the County property at the Permit Holder's expense. The Permit Holder agrees that in the event of a violation of the terms of the permit or in the event the work 
authorized by the permit is not satisfactorily completed by the permit expiration date, the County may use all or any portion of the performance bond to restore the County road right-of-way, drain easement, wastewater 
facility or park property as necessary for reasonably safe and efficient operations and maintenance, or to establish extraordinary maintenance procedures as required to assure reasonably safe and efficient operation of the 
County facility. 

Inspection and Testing of Materials: Wayne County reserves the right of inspection and the testing of materials by its authorized representatives of all permitted activities and/or activities within the road right-of-way, 
County owned property or within a County drain easement. All items identified by the final inspection shall be resolved prior to release of the permit. All materials and methods utilized during the course of the authorized 
permit work shall meet the requirements of the current MOOT Standard Soecitications For CunStrnedOn as modified by Wayne County Special Provisions, Standard Plans for Permit Construction and this manual. The Permit 
Holder shall reimburse Wayne County for all required inspections and testing of materials. 

Design: The Permit Holder is fully responsible for the design of the permitted facility, such that the design shall be consistent with all applicable County standards, specifications, guidelines, requirements and with good 
engineering practice. Any errors in the plans that become evident after the issuance of a permit, and which change the scope of permitted work, are subject to review and may be grounds for revocation of the permit. The 
Permit Office will not relieve the Permit Holder of the responsibility of correcting errors, deficiencies, or omissions due to oversight or unforeseen contingencies such as faulty drainage, poor subsoil conditions or the failure 
of the Permit Holder's engineer to show all the related or pertinent conditions inside or outside the plan area. 

Drainage: Drainage shall not be altered to flow into the road right-of-way or road drainage system unless approved by Wayne County. 

Permit Holder Compliance: The Permit Holder shall abide by the conditions and limitations contained on the permit and all other conditions listed within the WCDPS Rules, Specifications and Procedures for Construction 
Permits. The application of any work undertaken under the permit shall constitute the Permit Holder's agreement to the Provision. 



Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Engineering Division — Permit Office 

Indemnity and Insurance Attachment 

To the extent allowed by law, the Permit Holder shall defend and hold harmless Wayne County, the 
Department of Public Services, its officials and employees against any and all claims, suits and judgments 
to which Wayne County, the Departments, its officials and employees may be subject and for all costs and 
actual attorney fees which may be incurred on account of injury to persons or damage to property, including 
County property. The Permit Holder shall provide this indemnity for any incident arising out of any and all 
activities performed under the permit or in connection with work not authorized by the permit, or resulting 
from the failure to comply with the terms of the permit, or arising out of the continued existence of the work 
product that is subject to the permit. 

Certificates of insurance shall be required for all construction permits, excluding residential driveway 
permits. Each certificate of insurance and any associated correspondence shall reference the plan review 
number of the project. General liability and automotive liability insurance coverage shall be in amounts 
detailed below: 

The general liability insurance coverage shall be in amounts not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence 
and $2,000,000 general aggregate. Proof of automobile liability shall be in amounts riot less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit for each accident, bodily injury per accident, and property damage per 
accident, and in an amount not less than $1,000,000 for bodily injury each person, each occurrence 
and property damage liability $1,000,000 each occurrence. 

The certificate of insurance must be provided by a person, the corporation, or by authorized representatives 
who signed personally either the application or permit. Insurance shall remain in force until the permit is 
released by Wayne County. 

The Wayne County Department of Public Services shall be a Certificate Holder on the policy of 
insurance. Wayne County, drainage district, and its officers, agents and employees shall be named 
as additional insured parties. It is also required that the annual permit numbers are included on 
each certificate of insurance. 

The insurance shall cover a period not less than the term of the permit and shall provide that it cannot be 
cancelled or reduced without thirty (30) days advance written notice to Wayne County, by certified mail, 
first-class, return receipt requested. The thirty (30) days shall begin on the date when the County received 
the notice, as evidenced by the return receipt. 

Such insurance shall provide by endorsement therein for the thirty (30) day notice by the insurer to the 
Permit Office prior to termination, cancellation or material alteration of the policy. 

Licensee agrees to make application for renewal thereof at least sixty (60) days before the expiration date 
of the policy then in force and to file a certified copy of such renewed policy with the Permit Office. 

The policy shall also provide by endorsement for the removal of the contractual exclusion. 

Should insurance coverage be cancelled or reduced below acceptable limits, or allowed to expire, the 
authorization to continue work under the permit shall be suspended or revoked and shall not resume until 
new insurance is in force and accepted by Wayne County. Wayne County may, in such cases, take 
appropriate action to restore or protect the road and appurtenances. All costs incurred by this action shall 
be deducted from any remaining inspection deposit, bond and/or Letter of Credit and, if necessary, the 
Permit Holder may be billed to defray actual expenses. 



MODEL COMMUNITY RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 

WAYNE COUNTY PERMITS 

Resolution No. 

At a Regular Meeting of the 	 (Name 	of 

Community Governing Board) on 	  (date), the following 

resolution was offered: 

WHEREAS, the 	 (hereinafter 	the 	"Community") 
periodically applies to the County of Wayne Department of Public Services, Engineering 
Division Permit Office (hereinafter the "County") for permits to conduct emergency 
repairs, annual maintenance work, and for other purposes on local and County roads 
located entirely within the boundaries of the Community, as needed from time to time to 
maintain the roads in a condition reasonably safe and convenient for public travel; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 51 of 1951, being MCL 247.651 et seq., the County permits 
and regulates such activities noted above and related temporary road closures; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in consideration of the County granting such 
permit (hereinafter the "Permit"), the Community agrees and resolves that: 

Any work performed for the Community by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as 
a contractor for the Community and not as a contractor or agent of the County. Any 
claims by any contractor or subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the 
Community. The County shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors 
and contractors of the Community, or their subcontractors. 

The Community shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or 
indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the Permit which results 
in claims being asserted against or judgment being imposed against the County, and all 
officers, agents and employees thereof pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event 
that same occurs, for the purposes of the Permit, it will be considered a breach of the 
Permit thereby giving the County a right to seek and obtain any necessary relief or 
remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages. 

With respect to any activities authorized by Permit, when the Community requires 
insurance on its own or its contractor's behalf, it shall also require that such policy 
include as named insured the County of Wayne and all officers, agents and employees 
thereof. 

The incorporation by the County of this Resolution as part of a permit does not prevent 
the County from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance 
of a Permit. 

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall, at no expense to Wayne 
County, provide necessary police supervision, establish detours and post all necessary 



signs and other traffic control devices in accordance with the Michigan Manual of 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall assume full responsibility 
for the cost of repairing damage done to the County road during the period of road 
closure or partial closure. 

This Resolution shall continue in force from the date of execution until cancelled by the 
Community or the County with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 
other party. It will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the Community with 
regard to any Permit which has already been issued or activity which has already been 
undertaken. 

The Community stipulates that it agrees to the terms of the County of Wayne permit at 
the time a permit is signed by the Community's authorized representative. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following individual(s) is/are authorized in their 
official capacity as the Community's authorized representative to sign and so bind the 
Community to the provisions of any and all permits applied for to the County of Wayne, 
Department of Public Services Engineering Division Permit Office for necessary permits 
from time to time to work within County road right-of-way or local roads on behalf of the 
Community. 

Name 	 Title 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted 

by the [Board of Trustees/City Council] of the 	  

(name of Community), County of Wayne, Michigan, on 	  

#305299-v2 



 

Warren C. Evans 
County Executive November 9, 2017 

City Of Grosse Pointe Woods 
20025 Mack Plaza Dr 
Grosse Pointe Woods, MI 48236-2343 

RE: Annual Permit for Special Events - A-18142 

Attention: Frank Schulte 

Enclosed is your Wayne County Annual Permit for Special Events package. This annual permit 
grants preliminary authorization to a municipality to 

a) temporarily close a county road for a reasonable length of time for a parade, 
marathon, festival or similar activity; 

b) to use a county road as a detour for traffic around such activity taking place on a non-
county road. 

c) place a temporary banner within the County right-of-way; 

In addition to the annual permit, the package also includes the following attachments, which are 
incorporated by reference into the permit: 

1. Annual Special Events Attachment for Municipalities 
2. Banner Attachment for Municipalities 
3. General Conditions and Limitations of Permits 
4. Model Community Resolution 

As a condition of the annual permit, the County requires that a governing body pass a blanket 
resolution, effective for all permitted road closures for special events and installation of banners 
planned throughout the year which 

a) agrees to fulfill all permit obligations and conditions for the current year 

b) to the extent allowed by law, hold harmless and defends Wayne County and its officials 
and employees against any and all damage claims, suits or judgments of any kind or 
nature arising as a result of the permitted activity. 

c) designates and authorizes an appropriate official of the requesting municipality to sign 
the permit on its behalf 

Additionally, the Permit Office requires that each municipality provide a written request on 
municipal letterhead at least (10) ten business days prior to the commencement of a road 
closure and/or banner placement. The written request should include all required information as 
specified in the appropriate attachments, "Annual Special Events for Municipalities" or "Annual 
Attachment for Banners". Upon approval, the permit office shall issue a permit authorizing the 
special event activities. 

Department of Public Services — Permit Office 
33809 Michigan Avenue, Wayne, MI 49184 Phone (734) 595-6504 Fax (734) 595-6356 



For additional information on the Annual Permit for Special Events (Road Closure/Detour and 
Banner Placement), please refer to Rule 11.4 published in the Wayne County, Rules,  
Specifications & Procedures for Construction Permits. 

This publication may be downloaded at 

http://www.waynecounty.com/dps/construction  permits.htm  

Please return the original permit, signed and dated by the person authorized and designated by 
the resolution, along with a certified copy of the resolution consistent with the requirements 
transmitted in this package. Type the name of the designated signer below the signature line 
and submit these documents to: 

Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Permit Office 

Attn: Ms. Janice Clarke 
33809 Michigan Avenue 

Wayne MI 48184 

Once received, an executed copy will be returned to you for your files. 

If you have any questions regarding this Annual Permit, please contact me at 734.595.6504, 
extension 2002. 

Sincerely, 

Janice Clarke 
Permit Coordinator 

C: file 

Attachments: 

Annual Permit 
Annual Special Events Attachment for Municipalities 
Banner Attachment for Municipalities 
General Conditions and Limitations of Permits 
Model Community Resolution 

Department of Public Services — Permit Office 
33809 Michigan Avenue, Wayne, MI 49184 Phone (734) 595-6504 n Fax (734) 595-6356 



PERMIT OFFICE 
33809 MICHIGAN AVE 

WAYNE, Mi 48184, 
PHONE (734) 595-6504 

FAX (734) 595-6356 

72 HOURS BEFORE ANY 
CONSTRUCTION, CALL 

Various Staff 
(734) 595-6504, Ext: 2009 

FOR INSPECTION 

WAYNE COUNTY 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

PERMIT TO CONSTRUCT, OPERATE, USE AND/OR MAINTAIN 

PERMIT No. 

A-18142 
ISSUE DATE EXPIRES 

1/1/2018 12/31/2018 
REVIEW No. WORK ORDER 

PF10.1RnT NAMF 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS - SPECIAL EVENTS 

LOCATION 

VARIOUS 

CITY/TWP 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

PERMIT HOLDER 

CITY OF GROSSE POINTE WOODS 

20025 MACK PLAZA DR 

GROSSE POINTE WOODS, MI 48236-2343 

CONTACT 

FRANK SCHULTE 	 (313) 343-2460 

CONTRACTOR 

CONTACT 

<BLANK> 

DESCRIPTION OF PERMITTED ACTIVIT 	 (72 HOURS BEFORE YOU DIG, CAL MISS DIG 1-800-482-7161, www.missdlg.org) 

TO ALLOW TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF CERTAIN LOCAL AND COUNTY ROADS FOR A SPECIFIED PERIOD OF TIME IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL 
GENERAL AND SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF THIS PERMIT. 

REFER TO ATTACHEMENT: ANNUAL SPECIAL EVENTS PERMIT FOR MUNICIPALITIES TO CONDUCT PARADES, BLOCK PARTIES, 
MARATHONS, CELEBRATIONS AND FESTIVALS. 

PERMIT TO INSTALL BANNERS WITHIN THE COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY. EACH REQUEST FOR A BANNER SHOULD BE SUBMITTED ONE 
MONTH PRIOR TO INSTALLMENT FOR APPROVAL. 
PLEASE REFER TO ATTACHMENT: ANNUAL PERMIT FOR MUNICIPAL BANNERS 

PERMIT HOLDER SHOULD CONTACT/INFORM THE LOCAL POLICE, HOSPITAL, FIRE MARSHAL, SCHOOL AND ANY OTHER LOCAL AGENCIES 
ARE/MAY BE AFFECTED BY THIS ROAD CLOSURE THREE (3) BUSINESS DAYS PRIOR TO SCHEDULED CLOSURE. 

THE PERMIT HOLDER SHOULD CONTACT THE WAYNE COUNTY TRAFFIC OFFICE AT (734) 955-2154 THREE (3) WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO ANY 
CLOSURE. 

THE CONTRACTOR/PERMIT HOLDER WILL SET UP AND MAINTAIN ALL BARRICADING AND SIGNS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MICHIGAN 
MANUAL OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (HTTP://MUTCD.FHWA.DOT.GOV) AND WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PERMIT 
HOLDER. 

ALL ATTACHMENTS ARE INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE AS PART OF THIS PERMIT. 

DEPOSITOR APPROVED PLANS PREPARED BY 

PLANS APPROVED BY 	DATE PLANS APPROVED 

1/1/2018 

LETTER OF CREDIT DEPOSITO 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 

PERMIT FEE 	 $0.00 
PLAN REVIEW FEE 	 $0.00 
PARK FEE 	 $0.00 
OTHER FEE 	$0.00 

BOND 	 $0.00 
INSPECTION DEPOSIT 	 $0.00 
OTHER BOND 	 $0.00 

TOTAL COSTS  	$0.00 

TOTAL CHECK AMOUNT 

REQUIRED ATTACHMENTS 
GENERAL CONDITIONS 
ANNUAL ROAD SPECIAL EVENTS FOR 
MUNICIPALITIES 
ANNUAL BANNER PERMIT ATTACHMENT FOR 
MUNICIPALITIES 
SAMPLE COMMUNITY RESOLUTION 
RULES, SPECIFICATIONS AND PROCEDURES 
FOR PERMIT CONSTRUCTION - AVAILABLE 
ONLINE AT 

www.waynecounty.com/dps_engineering_cpoffice.htm  $0.00 
CASHIER ' DATE 

1/1/2018 (PERMIT VALID ONLY IF ACCOMPANIED 
BY AllOVE ATYArNMENTSI  

 

   

In consideration of the Permit Holder and Contractor agreeing to abide and conform with all the terms and conditions herein, a Permit is hereby issued to the above named to Construct, Operate, Use and/or 
Maintain within the Road Right of Way, County Easement, and/or County Property. The permitted work described above shall be accomplished in accordance with the Approved Plans, Maps, Specifications 
and Statements filed with the Permit Office which are integral to and made part of this Permit. The General Conditions as well as any Required Attachments are incorporated as part of this Permit. 

WAYNE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 

FRANK SCHULTE 	 DATE 	
PREPARED BY 

<BLANK> 	 DATE 	 VALIDATED BY Ms. Janice Clarke 	 DATE 
CONTRACTOR / AUTHORIZED AGENT 

PERMIT HOLDER / AUTHORIZED AGENT 



Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Engineering Division - Permit Office 

Conditions & Limitations of Permits 
/7944 .-- 

Plan Approval and Specifications: All work performed under the permit shall be done in accordance with the approved plans, specifications, maps, statements and special conditions filed with the County and shall comply 
with Wayne County Specifications, as defined in the current Mime County Rides. Sneeificodons mid Procedure,. fin- Permit Construction,  included as an attachment to this permit, the Warne Conte' Sentdoret Nom he-
/emelt Consencrion  and the :1400T Standard Soccificationy For Comm:a-don  as modified by WCDPS Special Provisions, and other WCDPS specifications. Any situation or problem which Gears as a result of the 
construction. operation, use and/or maintenance of the facility in the right-of-way and is not covered by the approved plans nor by the Comity's current Standards and Specifications shall be resolved by the Permit Holder as 
directed and approved by the Permit Office. Any significant change to the plans must be approved by the Permit Office and is authorized only when an approved addendum is obtained from the Permit Office. 

Fees: The Permit Holder shall be responsible for all fees and costs incurred by the County in connection with the permit and shall deposit payment for fees and costs as determined by the County at the time the Permit is 
issued. 

Bond: The Permit Holder shall furnish a bond in cash or Certified check in an amount acceptable to the County to guarantee performance under the conditions of the permit. The County may use all or any patron of the 
bond which shall be necessary to cover any expense, including inspection costs or damage incurred by the County through the granting of the permit. Should the bond be insufficient to cover the expenses and damages 
incurred by the County, the Permit Holder shall pay such deficiency upon billing by the County. If the bond amount exceeds the expenses and damages incurred by the County. the excess portion will be returned to the 
Depositor. The excess performance bond provided for herein, when it cannot be returned, shall be deposited into the County Road Fund and become a part thereof, unless claimed by the Depositor within one year of the date 
of satisfactory completion of the construction authorized by the permit. 

Insurance: The Permit Holder shall furnish proof of liability and property damage insurance in the form and amounts acceptable to the County with Wayne County named as an insured party. The Permit Holder shall 
maintain this insurance until the permit is released, revoked or cancelled by the County. 

Indemnification / Hold Harmless: Sub-Section I herein applies to all Permit Holders except Municipalities. Sub-Section 2 herein applies to Municipalities only. 

1. To the extent allowed by law, the Permit Holder shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend Wayne County, its Department of Public Services, its officials and employees against any and all claims, suits and judgments to 
which the County, the Department, its officials and employees may be subject and for all costs and actual attorney fees which may be inured on account of injury to persons or damage to property, including property of 
the County. whether due to negligence of the Permit Holder or to the joint negligence of the Permit Holder and the County. arising out of any and all work performed under the permit, or in connection with work not 
authorized by the permit, or resulting from failure to comply with the terms of the permit or arising out of the motioned existence of the work product that is the subject of the permit. This hold harmless provision must 
not be construed as a waiver of any governmental immunity by the County. 

2. To the extent allowed by law, the Municipality as Permit Holder shall hold harmless and defend Wayne County, its Department of Public Services. its officials and employees, for the Municipality's own negligence, 
tOrtiOUS acts, errors, or omissions, and the acts, errors, or omissions of any of its employees, on account of injury to persons or damage to property. including property of the County. arising out of any and all work 
performed under the permit, or in connection with work not authorized by the permit, or resulting from failure to comply with the terms of the permit or arising out of the continued existence of work product that is the 
subject of the permit. Sub-section 1 above applies to contractors, subcontractors, consultants, or agents of the Municipality. This hold harmless provision must not be construed as a waiver of any governmental immunity 
by the County or the Municipality's, as provided by statute or modified by court decisions. 

Permit on Site: The Permit Holder shall keep available a copy of the permit and any associated approved plans on site during permitted activities. 

Notification for Start and Completion of Work: The permit shall not become operative until it has been fully executed by the County, The Permit Holder shall notify the County before starting construction and shall notify 
the County when work is completed. The Permit Holder or their representative shall have copies of the executed permit and approved plans in their possession on the job site at all times. 

I. The Permit Holder shall provide at least three (3) days advanced notice, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, to the Permit Office prior to the commencement of any permitted activities by submitting a START OF 
WORK NOTIFICATION form by mail, fax or e-mail. In certain instances, additional notice may be required by the Permit Office. In the event that construction work ceases for a period of time, then the Permit Holder 
shall notify the Wayne County Inspector at least 24 hours prior to resuming work. 

2. The Permit Holder shall comply with all requirements of the Miss Dig Statute, MCL §460.701 et seq., as amended. The Permit Holder shall call "MISS DIG" at (800) 482-7161, at least 72 hours. excluding Saturdays, 
Sundays and holidays, but not more than twenty-one (21) calendar days, before starting any underground work. The Permit Holder assumes all responsibility for damage to or interruption of underground utilities. 

3. The Permit Holder shall call Wayne County Departrnent of Public Services' Traffic Operations Office at (734) 955-2154, at least 72 hours prior, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays, but not more than twenty-one 
(21) calendar days, before starting any underground work in the vicinity of any traffic signal equipment owned, operated or maintained by Wayne County. 

Safety: The Permit Holder agrees that all work under the permit shall be performed in a safe manner and to keep the area affected by the permit in a safe condition until the work is completed and accepted by the County. 
The Permit Holder shall furnish, install and maintain all necessary traffic controls and protection which are in accordance with the current Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD). The Permit Holder shall 
conduct all activities and maintain all facilities as set forth in the permit in a manner so as not to damage, impair, interfere with, or obstruct a public mad or create a foreseeable risk of harm to the traveling public. The Permit 
Holder shall comply with all applicable OSHA and MIOSHA requirements. 

Underground Utilities: The Permit Holder shall contact all utility owners regarding their facilities prior to starting work and shall comply with all applicable provisions of Act 53, Public Acts of 1974, as amended. Wayne 
County makes no warranty either expressed or implied as to the condition or suitability of subsurface conditions or any existing facility which may be encountered during an excavation. The presence or absence of utilities is 
based on the best information available and the County is not responsible for the accuracy of this information. The Permit Holder assumes all responsibility for the interruption and damage to underground utilities. The 
Permit Holder is responsible for proper disposal, in accordance with current regulations, of any material excavated from within the right-of-way. Such materials include, without limitation, soils or groundwater contaminated 
by petroleum products or other pollutants associated wits sites identified by the MDEQ or reponed on appropriate release forms for underground storage tanks. 

Assignability: The permit is neither transferable nor assignable without the written consent of the County. 

Limitation of Permit: The Applicant and the Permit Holder shall be responsible for obtaining and shall secure any permits or permission necessary or required by law from State, federal or other local govemmental agencies 
and jurisdictions, corporations or individuals. These include, without limitation, those pertaining to drains, inland lakes and streams, wetlands, woodlands, flood plains, filling, noise regulation and hours of operation. Issuance 
of a Wayne County permit does not authorize activities otherwise regulated by State, federal or local agencies. 

Access of Other Vehicles: The Permit Holder shall, at all times possible, maintain a minimum of one acceptable access to all abutting occupied properties, driveways and side streets unless otherwise specified on the 
approved plans. The Permit Holder shall notify all owners or occupants of properties whose access may be temporarily disrupted during the permitted work The local police, fire or emergency service agencies shall define 
acceptable access. The Permit Holder shall provide signing and other improvements necessary to ensure adequate access until the roadway, driveway or side street is restored. The Permit Holder shall conduct all operations so 
as to minimize inconvenience to abutting property owners. Wayne County reserves the right to reasonably restrict the progress of work by the Permit Holder based on the rate of roadway and right-of-way restoration, 
including permanent or temporary pavement. Wayne County may require that work be suspended until satisfactory backfilling of open trenches or excavations has been completed and driveways, side streets and drainage 
restored. 

Restoration: The Permit Holder agrees to restore the County road and road right-of-way, County drain easement or County park property to a condition equal to or better than its condition before work under the permit 
began. If the Permit Holder fails to satisfactorily restore the permitted work area, Wayne County may take all practical actions necessary to provide reasonably safe and convenient public travel, preservation of the roadway 
and drainage, prevention of soil erosion and sedimentation, and elimination of nuisance to abutting properly owners caused by the persisted activity. Security in the form of cash, a certified check or surety bond shall be 
required to secure the cost of restoring the disturbed portion of the right-of-way to an acceptable safe condition. The amount of the security shill be determined by the Permit Office. In the event that a suspension of work will 
be protracted or that the work will not be completed by the Permit Holder, the Permit Holder shall restore the right-of-way to a condition similar to the condition that existed prior to issuance of the permit. 

Acceptance: Acceptance by the County of work performed does not relieve the Permit Holder of full responsibility for work performed or the presence of the permitted facility. The Permit Holder acknowledges that the 
County has no liability for the presence of the Permit Holder's facility located within the County road right-of-way, County drain easement or County park property. 

Permit Expiration and Extension of Time: All work authorized by the permit shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Permit Office on or before the expiration date specified in the permit. Any request for an extension 
of time for completion shall be on a completed County form and shall demonstrate good cause for granting the request. Additional requirements may he imposed as a condition of an extension of time due to seasonal 
limitations or other considerations. These additional requirements may include, without limitation, changes to materials or construaion methods, reestablishment of fees, bonds, deposits and insurance requirements. 

Responsibility: The design, construction, operation and maintenance of all work covered by the permit shall be at the Permit Holder's expense with the exception that the Permit Holder will not be responsible for 
maintaining road widenings or similar facilities which become part of the County roadway. 

Revocation: The permit may be suspended or revoked at the will of the County. Upon order of the County, the Permit Holder shall surrender the permit, cease operations and remove, alter or relocate, at their expense, the 
facilities for which the permit was granted. The Permit Holder expressly waives any right to claim damages for compensation resulting from the revocation of the permit. 

Violation: The County nay declare the permit null and void if the Permit Holder violates the terms of the permit. The County may require immediate removal of the Permit Holder's facilities and restoration of the County 
property, or the County may remove the facilities and restore the County property at the Permit Holder's expense. The Permit Holder agrees that in the event of a violation of the terms of the permit or in the event the work 
authorized by the permit is not satisfactorily completed by the permit expiration date, the County may use all or any portion of the Performance bond to restore the County road right-of-way, drain easement, wastewater 
facility or park property as necessary for reasonably safe and efficient operations and maintenance, or to establish extraordinary maintenance procedures as required to assure reasonably safe and efficient operation of the 
County facility. 

Inspection and Testing of Materials: Wayne County reserves the right of inspection and the testing of materials by its authorized representatives of all permitted activities and/or activities within the road right-of-way, 
County owned property or within a County drain easement. All hems identified by the final inspection shall be resolved prior to release of the permit. All materials and methods utilized during the course of the authorized 
permit work shall meet the requirements of the current MDOT Standard Sthroiticatioes air Construction  as modified by Wayne County Special Provisions, Standard Plans for Permit Construction and this manual. The Permit 
Holder shall reimburse Wayne County for all required inspections and testing of materials. 

Design: The Permit Holder is fully responsible for the design of the permitted facility, such that die design shall be consistent with all applicable County standards, specifications, guidelines, requirements and with good 
engineering practice. Any errors in the plans that become evident after the issuance of a permit, and which change the scope of permitted work, are subject to review and may be grounds for revocation of the permit. The 
Permit Office will not relieve the Permit Holder of the responsibility of correcting errors, deficiencies, or omissions due to oversight or unforeseen contingencies such as faulty drainage, poor subsoil conditions or the failure 
of the Permit Holder's engineer to show all the related or pertinent conditions inside or outside the plan area. 

Drainage: Drainage shall not be altered to flow into the road right-of-way or road drainage system unless approved by Wayne County. 

Permit Holder Compliance: The Permit Holder shall abide by the conditions and limitations contained on the permit and all other conditions listed within the WCDPS Rules, Specifications and Procedures for Construction 
Permits. The application of any work undertaken under the permit shall constitute the Permit Holder's agreement to the Provision. 



Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Engineering Division — Permit Office 

Annual Special Events for Municipalities 
Road Closure/Detour Guidelines 

An Annual Permit granting permission to temporarily close a County road for a reasonable length of time for a 
parade, marathon, celebration, festival or similar activity, or to use a County road as a detour for traffic around 
such activity taking place on a non-County road may be issued by the Permit Office to a governing body of a 
city, incorporated village or township. 

A permit, granting authorization to close County roads and to set detours over County roads may be issued if 
an annual Special Events Permit was previously executed with an associated blanket resolution. For each 
event, the Permit Holder shall submit a written request at least ten (10) business days prior to the 
commencement of a road closure. Each request shall be submitted on municipal letterhead and include the 
following information: 

a) The nature of the activity for which the permit is requested; 
b) The dates and times it is proposed to close and reopen the County road to traffic; 
c) The roads and/or portions of roads to be closed; 
d) The proposed detour route or routes, including a map if necessary to clearly describe the proposed 

detour. 

The written request shall be sent to the following offices: 

Wayne County Permit Office 
	

Wayne County Division of Roads 
33809 Michigan Ave 
	

Traffic Operations Office 
Wayne MI 48184 
	

29900 Goddard Road 
Romulus MI 48242 

Upon approval of the request, a permit will be issue authorizing the special event activities. 

Permit Conditions: 

1. All roads temporarily closed under the permit shall be County local roads, as certified under Act 51, P.A. 
1951, with residential frontage exclusive of section line (mile roads), quarter section line (collector roads) 
and border line roads. 

2. Road closures authorized under the permit shall not be for the purpose of allowing private commercial 
activities such as advertising or the sale of goods, wares or produce. 

3. The Permit Holder, at no expense to the County, shall provide any necessary police supervision. 
4. Road closures authorized under the permit shall not have the effect of depriving property which is not 

adjacent to the section of road being closed from continuous uninterrupted access to the main public road 
system. 

5. The closure or partial closure of the road and any detour route selected shall allow alternative routes for 
the reasonably safe and convenient movement of traffic. 

6. Road closures authorized by the permit shall not exceed the approved duration, generally between 24 and 
72 hours. 

7. The Permit Holder shall, at no expense to the County, install, maintain and remove all traffic control 
devices required for the temporary road closure and detour routes. 

8. All traffic control devices installed in conjunction with the road closure or partial closure and any detour 
route shall conform to the provisions of the current MMUTCD. 

9. The Permit Holder shall, at its sole expense, immediately following conclusion of the permitted activity 
clean up and remove any litter, debris, refuse, etc., placed or left in the right-of-way as a result of the 
permitted activity. In the event that the Permit Holder fails to clean up as required, causing Wayne County 
to do the cleanup work, the Permit Holder shall reimburse Wayne County any costs incurred to restore the 
right-of-way. 

10. The Permit Holder acknowledges that the County may, at its sole discretion, deny any road closure 
proposed under the permit. 

Revised: October 7, 2008 



Wayne County Department of Public Services 
Engineering Division — Permit Office 

Banner Attachment for Municipalities 
Guidelines 

Pursuant to MCL §247.323, a permit for installation of any banner to be placed within or over County road right-of-
way may be issued to a governing body of a city, incorporated village or township. Commercial signs shall not be 
permitted within the right-of-way of any road under the jurisdiction of the Wayne County. 

A permit, authorizing the placement of banners within the County right-of-way may be issued if an annual 
Special Events Permit was previously executed with an associated blanket resolution. For each event, 
the Permit Holder shall submit a written request at least ten (10) business days prior to the placement of 
banner(s). Each request shall be submitted on municipal letterhead and include the following information: 

a) The activity in connection with which the banner is to be placed; 

b) The location of the proposed installation, including distance to overhead traffic control devices; 

c) A description of the banner, including any legend or symbol thereon; 

d) The height of any overhead banner from the road surface to its lowest point; 

e) The dates the banner will be erected and removed. This period shall not exceed a time specified by 
the Permit Office. An acceptable period of time for banners to be in place is a total of three (3) weeks, 
except for Holiday decorations which may be in place for eight (8) weeks; 

f) Such other information as the Permit Office may deem necessary. 

Upon approval of the request, a permit will be issue authorizing the special event activities. 

Design & Placement Requirements 

a) Any banner shall be designed, installed and located so as to avoid danger to those using the road or 
undue interference with the free movement of traffic or maintenance operations. 

b) Any banner shall be securely fastened so as to have a minimum bottom height of 18 feet above the 
surface of the traveled way, shall be placed no closer than 100 feet in advance of flashing beacons 
or traffic control signals and shall be placed so as to not obstruct a clear view of traffic lights, signals 
or other traffic control devices. 

c) Banners shall not be attached to trees. 

d) No banner shall have displayed thereon any legend or symbol which may in any way be construed to 
advertise or otherwise promote the sale of or publicize any merchandise or commodity, or which may 
be construed to be political in nature. 

e) No banner shall have displayed thereon any device that is or purports to be an imitation of, 
resembles or may be mistaken for a traffic control device or which attempts to direct the movement of 
traffic. 

f) No banner shall be above ground figures, signs or other structures, objects or devices whether lit or 
unlit. 

g) Decorations shall not include flashing lights, reflective materials or other devices that may distract 
motorists. 

Permit Conditions 

a) Any authorization may be revoked by the Permit Office if the banner placement becomes dangerous 
to those using the road or unduly interferes with the free movement of traffic or maintenance 
operations. 

b) The city, village or township making application shall faithfully fulfill all permit requirements. 

An addendum authorization may be revoked by the Permit Office upon failure to comply with any permit conditions. 

Revised: October 14, 2009 



MODEL COMMUNITY RESOLUTION 
AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF 

WAYNE COUNTY PERMITS 

Resolution No. 

At a Regular Meeting of the 	 (Name 	of 

Community Governing Board) on 	  (date), the following 

resolution was offered: 

WHEREAS, the 	 (hereinafter the 	"Community") 
periodically applies to the County of Wayne Department of Public Services, Engineering 
Division Permit Office (hereinafter the "County") for permits to conduct emergency 
repairs, annual maintenance work, and for other purposes on local and County roads 
located entirely within the boundaries of the Community, as needed from time to time to 
maintain the roads in a condition reasonably safe and convenient for public travel; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 51 of 1951, being MCL 247.651 et seq., the County permits 
and regulates such activities noted above and related temporary road closures; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in consideration of the County granting such 
permit (hereinafter the "Permit"), the Community agrees and resolves that: 

Any work performed for the Community by a contractor or subcontractor will be solely as 
a contractor for the Community and not as a contractor or agent of the County. Any 
claims by any contractor or subcontractor will be the sole responsibility of the 
Community. The County shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities by vendors 
and contractors of the Community, or their subcontractors. 

The Community shall take no unlawful action or conduct, which arises either directly or 
indirectly out of its obligations, responsibilities, and duties under the Permit which results 
in claims being asserted against or judgment being imposed against the County, and all 
officers, agents and employees thereof pursuant to a maintenance contract. In the event 
that same occurs, for the purposes of the Permit, it will be considered a breach of the 
Permit thereby giving the County a right to seek and obtain any necessary relief or 
remedy, including, but not by way of limitation, a judgment for money damages. 

With respect to any activities authorized by Permit, when the Community requires 
insurance on its own or its contractor's behalf, it shall also require that such policy 
include as named insured the County of Wayne and all officers, agents and employees 
thereof. 

The incorporation by the County of this Resolution as part of a permit does not prevent 
the County from requiring additional performance security or insurance before issuance 
of a Permit. 

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall, at no expense to Wayne 
County, provide necessary police supervision, establish detours and post all necessary 



signs and other traffic control devices in accordance with the Michigan Manual of 
Uniform Traffic Control Devices. 

This Resolution stipulates that the requesting Community shall assume full responsibility 
for the cost of repairing damage done to the County road during the period of road 
closure or partial closure. 

This Resolution shall continue in force from the date of execution until cancelled by the 
Community or the County with no less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the 
other party. It will not be cancelled or otherwise terminated by the Community with 
regard to any Permit which has already been issued or activity which has already been 
undertaken. 

The Community stipulates that it agrees to the terms of the County of Wayne permit at 
the time a permit is signed by the Community's authorized representative. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the following individual(s) is/are authorized in their 
official capacity as the Community's authorized representative to sign and so bind the 
Community to the provisions of any and all permits applied for to the County of Wayne, 
Department of Public Services Engineering Division Permit Office for necessary permits 
from time to time to work within County road right-of-way or local roads on behalf of the 
Community. 

Name 	 Title 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted 

by the [Board of Trustees/City Council] of the 	  

(name of Community), County of Wayne, Michigan, on 	  

#305299-v2 
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